Technical Manual

DYNASERV

DYNASERV DM/DR Series Motor + Drv.G II UD/UR Series Driver





TM A801-E,

Introduction

Thank you very much for your purchase of the DD servo actuator DINASERV. The DINASERV is an outer rotor type servo actuator that has achieved high torque, high speed, and high precision. It can be used in a wide range of applications in the FA device-related fields, such as industrial robotics and indexing.

This technical manual explains the DINASERV DM/SR series motors as well as its combinations with the DrvGII drivers. Please refer to this technical manual thoroughly when you use the product.

Precautions for Using this Technical Manual

- 1. Please make sure that this manual is handed out to the end user.
- 2. Please read this manual thoroughly and understand the contents fully before proceeding to the operation of the product.
- 3. Please note that the safety protection may be lost and the proper safety may not be guaranteed if the product is not used according to the instructions described in this manual.
- 4. Always make sure that this manual is handy for the operator when using this product. If it is stained or lost, we will distribute copies upon request, subject to charge.
- 5. This manual explains details of the features included in the product and does not guarantee to meet the specific purpose of the customers.
- 6. No part of this manual may be reprinted or reproduced in any form without permission.
- 7. The information in this document is subject to change without notice.
- 8. The information contained in this document is believed to be accurate at the time of publication, but if you notice any inaccuracies, errors, or omissions, please contact our sales or service staff.

Regarding the safe usage of this device

- This product has been marked with A and A warnings signs so that it can be used safely. Ignoring precautions and prohibitions related to these signs and using this product in an incorrect way may cause danger to the life and body of the operator. Always follow the precautions and observe the prohibitions explained below.
- Please make sure to understand the information given below completely before you start reading the technical manual.
- Please keep the technical manual and this sheet handy while using the product. In addition, make sure that they are handed out to the operator of the product.

🕂 Warnings

• Warning about rotation:

The motor periphery part of this device rotates at a high speed. People and objects should not be placed within the rotational radius when a load is attached to the motor.

Warning about electric shock:

Make sure to connect the device to ground to avoid electric shock. Make sure to turn the power off when connecting cables to the driver part. Make sure to turn the power off when removing the cover of the driver part while performing adjustment operations, etc.

• Fire and electric shock warning:

If any abnormalities such as abnormal noise, bad smell, or release of fumes that coming from the device are detected while it is in operation, turn the power off immediately, pull out the power supply plug, and contact us. If the device is dropped or given a strong impact, stop the operation immediately, turn the power off, and contact us.

Do not operate at power supply voltages other than the one indicated on the device.

Fire and electric shock warning:

Avoid dropping or inserting metal shards or combustible materials, or allowing water to get into the opening parts of the device (e.g., the clearance between the rotor and stator of the motor part, or the air vent of the driver part). In such an eventuality, turn the power off immediately and contact us.

The cables coming out from the motor part or the bottom of the index part should not be forcibly bent, twisted, pulled, heated, or placed under a heavy object.

Never try to remodel or repair the device by yourself.

- This product has been marked with A and A prohibitions signs so that it can be used safely. Ignoring precautions and prohibitions related to these signs and using this product in an incorrect way may cause danger to the life and body of the operator. Always follow the precautions and observe the prohibitions explained below.
- Please make sure to understand the information given below completely before you start reading the technical manual.
- Please keep the technical manual and this sheet handy while using the product. In addition, make sure that they are handed out to the operator of the product.

⚠ Precautions				
 Make sure to read the technical manual before using the device. Operational mistakes and faulty wiring may result in damages and failure of the device. 				
• Make sure to check the wiring once more before turning the power on. Faulty wiring may result in fire, electric shock, or damage of the device.				
• Confirm that the proper combination of motor and driver parts is used. Using the device with an incorrect configuration may result in failure. (Be sure to confirm the modelMODELon the rating nameplates.)				
• Make sure the conditions of temperature, humidity, dust, etc. are as specified for the installation and storage environments.				
• Do not block the air vent of the device. Keep the specified open space around the device as well. Poor ventilation may cause overheating, leading to failure.				
• Some of the motor parts are very heavy; please pay sufficient attention to this when carrying and installing the parts. If the weight is more than 10kg (22.04 lbs), carrying or lifting tools should be used as much as possible.				
• Both the motor and driver parts should be installed in the specified orientation.				
• Keep the protection cover (transparent plastic plate) attached on the power supply terminal part of the driver. It is provided to prevent inadvertent electric shock accidents.				



model, if a screw exceeds the effective thread depth, the function may be impaired (this applies only to the DR series).



- 10. The motor is neither dust-, drip- nor water (oil)-proof; the motor should be installed in carefully chosen environments.
- 11. If the motor will be oscillating or rotating at small angles (50° or less), it should be allowed to oscillate at an <u>angle</u> of 90° or more for approximately 10 times (running-in operation) each time it has made 10,000 small-angle oscillations in order to prevent poor lubrication of the bearing.
- 12. In order for the motor and driver to be compatible with each other, they must be of the same model.

- 13. Never attempt to disassemble or remodel the motor and driver. If such service is necessary, please contact us. We assume no responsibility for products that have been disassembled or remodeled without permission.
- 14. For the DYNASERV DR series motors, a coating has been applied on the load attachment surface of the upper surface of the motor and the stator on the lower surface in order to prevent rust. When starting to use the product, wipe off the coating completely with cloth or paper soaked in a petroleum or chlorine solvent before assembling. If any of the coating remains, it may affect the mechanical precision.



15. Do not place the motor on the floor and other surface in the manner shown in the figure below when carrying and installing the DYNASERV. The cables are crushed by the motor's own weight and the copper wires may be broken inside the cables. If it cannot be avoided to place the motor in such a manner, a support bench should always be placed so that the cables are lifted. Furthermore, if the cables need to be bent when installed in a device, etc., the minimum bending radius should be 50 mm or more. The cables are not strong enough to live up to robot cable specifications, so they should not be bent repeatedly.



- 16. Do not perform a withstanding voltage test on this device. If such a test is performed without discretion, the circuits may be damaged. If such test must be conducted, make sure to contact us.
- 17. When connecting the motor with a load, the centerlines of both cores should be aligned to a sufficient degree. Please note that if the deviation between the two cores becomes 10 μm or more, the bearings inside the motor may be damaged.



Table of Contents

Introduction1				
Chapter 1	Overview of the Product	1-1		
1.1	1.1 About the DYNASERV DM/DR Series			
1.2	About the DrvGII Type Driver			
1.3	Product Configuration			
1.4	Model Names and Codes			
1.5	Name and Function of Each Part			
1.6	System Configuration Diagram			
Chapter 2	Installation	2-1		
2.1	Installation of the Motor			
2.2	Installation of the Driver			
Chapter 3	Connection and Wiring	3-1		
3.1	Diagram of Overall Connection			
3.2	Cable Specification List			
3.3	Connection between Motor and Driver			
3.4	Wiring of Motor, AC Power Supply, and Ground Cable			
3.5	Wiring of Encoder Cable			
3.6	Wiring of Controller Cable			
3.7	Wiring of Sensor Brake Terminal			
3.8	Wiring of Regenerative Alarm Contact <cna></cna>			
	(For 500W Level Drive Only)			
Chapter 4	Basic Settings for Operating the Motor	4-1		
4.1	Procedure (Flowchart)			
4.2	Preoperation check			
4.3	Installing the PC Utility on the PC			
	4.3.1 Procedure	4-6 4-8		
4.4	Preparation			
	4.4.1 Selecting Communication Port			
	4.4.2 Selecting Channels			
	4.4.4 Main Menu.			
4.5	Setting the Status to Servo ON			
4.6	Auto-tuning	4-14		
4.7	Performing Homing Operation			

4.8	Pe	erforming the Basic Settings of Pulse Commands	4-18
	4.8.1	About Position Command Pulse Input	4-18
	4.8.2	Example of Operation	4-19
Chapter 5	5 Fur	nctions	5-1
5.1	Pa	arameters and Monitors	5-2
	5.1.1	General Parameters	5-2
	5.1.2	Mechanical Setting Parameters	
	5.1.3	Monitors	5-2
5.2	0	peration Functions	5-3
	5.2.1	Jog Move	5-3
	5.2.2	Auto-Tuning Operation	
	5.2.4	Homing Move	5-5
	5.2.5	Mechanical Setting Mode	5-9
5.3	С	oordinate System	5-9
	5.3.1	Coordinate System	5-9
	5.3.2	Switching Position Command Pulse Weights	5-9
5.4	С	ontrol System	5-10
	5.4.1	Velocity Control Part	5-11
	5.4.2	Position Control Part	5-12
	54.5	Servo Stiffness Parameter	5-12 5-13
55	A	cceleration/Deceleration Function	5-14
0.0	551	Velocity Override Function	5-14
	5.5.2	Velocity Profile	5-15
5.6	0	ther Functions	5-17
	5.6.1	Settling Wait, Position Settling Status, and Positioning Status	5-17
	5.6.2	Velocity Monitor and Analog Monitor	5-18
	5.6.3	Brake Signal	5-18
5.7	Sl	pecial Parameter Processing	5-19
	5.7.1	Internal Generation of Parameter Initial Values	5-19
	5.7.2	Limiting and Checking Maximum Velocity When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data and Maximum Velocity Parameters	5-10
	5.7.3	Auto Conversion and Clear Functions When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data.	5-19
	5.7.4	Limiting the Maximum Parameter Values	5-20
Chapter 6	6 Co	ntrol Interfaces	6-1
61	Te	erminal Function	6-2
0.1	611	Connection Setting and I/O Manning	6-2
	6.1.2	Explanation of Terminals	
	6.1.3	Electrical specifications	6-4
	6.1.4	I/O logic setting	6-5
6.2	Po	osition Command Pulse Input	6-6
6.3	E	ncoder Pulse Output	6-6
6.4	0	perations	6-7
	6.4.1	Starting an Operation	6-7
	6.4.2	Aborting an Operation	6-7
	6.4.3	1 iming Charts	6-8

6.5	Other Inputs	
	6.5.1 Pulse Weight Selection PLS_DIRECT	
	6.5.2 Position Control Bandwidth Selection FN	
	6.5.3 Velocity Control Bandwidth Selection GAIN	
	6.5.4 Settling Width Selection POSW [1.0]	
	656 Error reset (ERR RESET)	
	6.5.7 Servo ON SERVO	
	6.5.8 Current Limit Input	6-10
Chapter 7	RS232C Interfaces	7-1
7.1	Overview	
7.2	Connection and Setting	
7.3	Communication Specifications	
7.4	@ Commands	
	7.4.1 Start @3: Field 0	
	7.4.2 Stop @2	
	7.4.3 Abort @1	
	7.4.4 Error reset $(a)4$	
	7.4.5 Homing offset position setting @10	/-/ 7 7
	7.4.0 Jog move command (2011, Field 0	
75	Parameter Commands	7_8
Charter 0		
Chapter 8		0- I
8.1	Overview	8-1
8.1	Overview	8-1
8.1	Overview	8-1
8.1	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu	8-1
8.1 8.2	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation	8-1 8-2
8.1 8.2	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation	8-1
8.1 8.2	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-5
8.1 8.2 8.3	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-5 8-6
8.1 8.2 8.3	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-5 8-6 8-6 8-6
8.1 8.2 8.3	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-5 8-6 8-6 8-6
8.1 8.2 8.3	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Installation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-5 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-7 8-8
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-4 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-7 8-8 8-9
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port. 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Manu	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-4 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-6 8-7 8-8 8-9 8-9 8-9 8-14 8-16 8-10
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port. 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu Returne	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port. 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu 8.5.1 Homing 8.5.1 Homing	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port. 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu 8.5.1 Homing 8.5.2 Jog Move. 8.5.3 Test Operation	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting Channels 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu 8.5.1 Homing 8.5.2 Jog Move 8.5.3 Test Operation Data Management Menus	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting Channels 8.3.2 Selecting Channels 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Port 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu S.1 8.5.1 Homing 8.5.2 Jog Move 8.5.3 Test Operation Data Management Menus 8.6.1 Parameter Manager	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6	Overview 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu Installation Installation 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility Preparation Preparation 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port. 8.3.2 Selecting Channels. 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings 8.3.4 Main Menu Operation Menu Operation Menu 8.4.1 Terminal 8.4.2 Servo Tuning 8.4.3 Oscilloscope Action Menu S.1 8.5.1 Homing 8.5.2 Jog Move 8.5.3 Test Operation Data Management Menus 8.6.1 Parameter Manager 8.6.2 I/O Set	8-1 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-2 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3 8-3

Chapter 9	Operation Display Pendant	
9.1	Overview	
9.2	Features and Part Names	
9.3	Switching Displays	
9.4	Terminal Mode Display	
9.5	Parameter Monitor Display	
9.6	Parameter Settings Display	
9.7	I/O Monitor Display	
9.8	Special Command Display	
Chapter 10	Maintenance and Inspection	10-1
10.1	Maintenance and Inspection of the Motor Part	
10.2	Maintenance and Inspection of the Driver Part	
10.3	Replacing the Battery for Memory Backup	
10.4	Backup and Restore Operations of Driver Memory Contents	
1	0.4.1 Backup Operation 0.4.2 Restore Operation	
10.5	Motor Problems and Corrective Actions	
Chapter 11	Specifications	11-1
11.1	Standard Specifications	
11.2	Torque - Speed Characteristics	
11.3	External Dimensions (Unit: mm)	11-9
11.4	Restrictive Conditions for the Frequency of Repeated Operations (DR5000B Series Only)	

Chapter 1 Overview of the Product

- 1.1 About the DYNASERV DM/DR Series
- 1.2 About the DrvGII Type Driver
- 1.3 Product Configuration
- 1.4 Model Names and Codes
- 1.5 Name and Function of Each Part
- 1.6 System Configuration Diagram

Overveiw of the Product

1.1 About the DYNASERV DM/DR Series

The DYNASERV servo motor, Yokogawa Precision's newly developed product, is a high speed, high torque, and high precision outer rotor type direct drive motor.

The DM series motors are contained in an aluminum chassis and have a built-in optical encoder. There are four models in the A series with output torques of 50 to 200N·m and five models in the B series with torques of 15 to 75N·m. The outside diameters are 264 mm for the A series and 160 mm for the B series. Each has a shaft hole of 58 mm and 25 mm in diameter at the center, respectively.

The outer shapes of the small-diameter and flat type DM series motors have successfully been made flatter and smaller in diameter based on the basic performance of the conventional DM/SD series. An outer diameter of 116 mm and a height (thickness) of 45 mm, respectively, are achieved for the DM small-diameter type and the DM flat type.

Both types are equipped with an optical encoder, which is characteristic of the DM series, and have the added features of high resolution and high mechanical precision. They are actuators with excellent output-to-space ratios and the best available option for servos for semi-conductor manufacturing devices, precision test devices, etc. They can be used in various applications.

The DYNASERV DR series is a series of operational direct drive motors that was developed based on the fieldproven DM series to satisfy new demands. There are six A type models (50 to 400N·m) with an outer diameter of 264 mm (10 inches), seven E type models (30 to 250N·m) with an outer diameter of 205 mm (8 inches), and five B type models (8 to 60N·m) with an outer diameter of 150 mm (6 inches). In addition, there is a 5000B/E type (consisting of five high-speed type models).

Moreover, in addition to the above standard models, several special type models are also available, such as light-weight types, types with flanges, types with brakes, and high mechanical precision installation surface types.

1.2 About the DrvGII Type Driver

The DrvGII type driver is a multipurpose driver with a built-in controller developed as the successor to the conventional SD/SR/TM type driver. Not only have the functions been improved, but also the driver box volume has been made smaller, and it can support the DYNASERV rotation type motors, as well as the LINEARSERV series motors that are of the direct drive type.

The features include the following:

- (1) The size of the driver is reduced to approximately half of the previous size (comparison within our company).
- (2) The internal resolution is increased by a factor of four for the DM series and a factor of two for the DR series.
- (3) It can now support most of the models of the DYNASERV and LINEARSERV series.
- (4) A sophisticated utility is now available and an oscilloscope function has been included as well.

Overveiw of the Product

1.3 Product Configuration

The following shows the configuration of this product. Upon unpacking, please check the model name and code of the product's main unit, whether or not all the standard accessories are included, and also the quantity supplied.

Part name Number Notes		S		
Main body	Motor part	1	The external appearance varies depending on the model name/code.	
Main bouy	Driver part	1	The external appearance varies depending on the model name/code.	
	Connector for driver CN2	1	Made by Honda Tsushin Kogyo	(connector) PCR-S20FS (cover) PCR-LS20LA1
Standard accessory	Connector for driver CN4	1	Made by Honda Tsushin Kogyo	(connector) PCR-S50FS (cover) PCR-LS50LA
	Connector for driver CN5*	1	Made by Phoenix Contact MC1, 5/6-ST-3, 81	
	Terminal for driver CNA**	1	Made by Phoenix Contact MC1, 5/2-ST-5, 08	
	Regenerative resistor **	1	80W 60 Ω (for 100V) or 80W 200 Ω (for 200V)	

- * Supplied for drivers whose interface type is the I/O contact type.
- ** Supplied only for 500W level drivers with regenerative terminals



Note: The exact shape varies depending on the model you ordered. Refer to the figure showing the outer dimensions for more details.

1.4 Model Names and Codes

There are restrictions on the combination of specifications. Please check with our sales staff before determining the specification.

(1) Motor	
-----------	--

	$\Box \Box = \Box * 1$
■Motor series name (DM or DR)	
Design version (1: standard/5: high-speed)	
Maximum output torque(N-m, three-digit number)	
■Motor type/outer diameter (A:∳264/B:∲160/C:∲116/E:∲205)	
Destination (0: domestic)	
 Motor part special shape (0: standard/B: light-weight/C: with flange/ D: with mechanical brake/F: with base) 	
 Mechanical precision - only for models requiring mechanical precision of it is not required (-1: mechanical precision of 5 mm or less/-2: mechanical precision of 10 mm or less/µm -3: mechanical precision of 20 mm or less) With compatibility function 	ion
(2) Driver	
■Driver series name (UD for DM and UR for DR)	
Motor type/(four-digit number of the motor, one line of alphabet letters)	
Box type/ (first digit 0: domestic standard/second digit A: 500W level without terminal, B: 500W level with regenerative terminal, K: 2kW level w regenerative unit, L: 2kW level without regenerative unit)	regenerative ith built-in
Current/ (A: 5A-DM small-diameter/B: 6A-DM flat/C: 15A-DMB type, DRB ty D: 20A-DMA type, DRA type, DRE type, DR5000E type)	/pe, DR5000B type /
■Voltage/1: 100V system, 2: 200V system	
■Interface/(first digit/S: pulse train position command, second digit/A: contact I/O voltage 12 to 24V + position differential, B: contact I/O voltage 5V + position comman	command input; nd input; differential)
■Option/0: none, N: with notch filter	
■CE marking/no mark: no CE specification, *C: with CE mark specification	fication*

- Note: 1. Compatibility between the motor and driver is valid only between the same models. This means that, for the standard models, the motor and driver are compatible only when the designations of the five digits in motor type (DR
 - 2. Separate selection is required for the driver without 2 kW class regenerative unit.

Overveiw of the Product

1.5 Name and Function of Each Part

(1) Motor Part



(2) Driver part

■ 500W level

(A model with regenerative terminal is shown)



■ 2kW level

(A model with a regenerative terminal is shown)



Overveiw of the Product



- Note: (1) All the items shown are of the contact I/O type.
 - (2) The power supply ground terminal and the motor cable ground terminal are connected within the driver chassis.



[Details of Setting Switches and Status Display LEDs]

Overveiw of the Product



Note: The allowable combinations between the DYNASERV motors and the DrvGII drivers are as follows.

- (1) The 500W level driver can only be used with the DM1004B/1004C.
- (2) All other DM and DR series <u>should be used</u> with the 2kW level driver. Note that they cannot be used with the 500W level driver.

Chapter 2 Installation

- 2.1 Installation of the Motor
- 2.2 Installation of the Driver

When you receive the product, verify the model name and code of the product's main unit, whether all the standard accessories are included, and that the combination of a motor and a driver is correct before you begin installation and wiring.

2.1 Installation of the Motor

The motor part can be installed and used in either a horizontal or a vertical position. However, if installed in a wrong way or position, the life of the motor may be shortened or the motor may fail. Always follow the instructions explained below.

(1) Installation Position

The motor part is designed based on the assumption that it is used indoors. Therefore, choose the location of installation so that it satisfies the following conditions:

- It should be indoors and not in a place where it can be exposed to corrosive and/or volatile gases.
- The ambient air temperature should be from 0 to 45 °C.
- There should not be too much dust or particles, the ventilation should be good, and the humidity should be low.

Note: The DYNASERV is not drip- or water (oil)-proof. If it is used in such an environment, a proper drip- or water (oil)-proof cover should be applied.

- (2) Mechanical Installation
 - When installing a load on the rotor of the motor, make sure to secure a clearance of 1 mm or more between the upper surface of the motor and the installed part in order to maintain the surface accuracy.
 - The clamping torque of the screws used to install the rotor and stator of the motor should be equal to or less than the value indicated below.
 - The surface flatness where the motor is fixed should be 0.01 mm or less.



Note: When tightening the screws, make sure to apply a screw lock using Loctite 601 or equivalent product.

2.2 Installation of the Driver

The standard installation method for the driver is either to mount it on a rack or a wall.

- (1) Installation Position
 - If there is a heating source near by, the temperature should be prevented from increasing by installing a shielding cover, etc.; the temperature around the driver should not exceed 50 °C (Note 1).
 - If there is a source of vibration near by, the rack should be installed via a vibration absorption material.
 - In addition to the above, it should be avoided to install the driver in surroundings that are high in temperature and humidity, filled with dust, metal powder, corrosive gas, etc.
- (2) Installation Method
 - The standard way of installation is to install the driver on a rack, aligning the top and bottom with the front panel in the front. Do not put the panel surface into a sideways position or upside down (see the figure below).
 - The driver box employs a natural air ventilation system. Make sure to secure space for ventilation above and below (25 mm or more) and right and left (25 mm or more) (see the figure below).
 - Make sure to use the installation holes (four places) of the upper and lower brackets at installation.



(Note: 1) 2 kW level drivers, but not other types, will have the current characteristics shown in the graph below as a function of the ambient air temperature during operation. Therefore, it is recommended to use the driver in an ambient air temperature of 40 °C or less in order to prolong its life.



Chapter 3 Connection and Wiring

- 3.1 Diagram of Overall Connection
- 3.2 Cable Specification List
- 3.3 Connection between Motor and Driver
- 3.4 Wiring of Motor, AC Power Supply, and Ground Cable
- 3.5 Wiring of Encoder Cable
- 3.6 Wiring of Controller Cable
- 3.7 Wiring of Sensor Brake Terminal
- 3.8 Wiring of Regenerative Alarm Contact <CNA> (For 500W Level Drive Only)

3 Connection and Wiring

3.1 Diagram of Overall Connection



* Optional parts (see separate wiring section for motor and encoder cables.)

3.2 Cable Specification List

	Cable name	Electric cable size	Driver	Current (A)
1)	AC power supply cable	2.0 mm ² or more, 30 m or less in length	TB1	*
2)	Ground cable (power supply)	2.0 mm ² or more	TB1	*
3)	Motor cable	2.0 mm ² or more, 30 m or less in length	TB1	*
4)	Sensor brake cable	0.3 to 0.75 mm ²	TB2	
5)	RS232C communication cable	Dedicated cable is required.	CN1	
6)	Encoder resolver cable	0.2mm ² twisted pair, batch shielded cable, outer diameter ϕ 14 mm or less, 10 m or less in length	CN2	Maximum 100 mA DC
7)	Jumper cable	2.0 mm ² or more	TB1	*
8)	Analog monitor card	Dedicated cable is required. [R7033YB] (cable with connector)	CN3	
9)	Controller cable	0.2 to 0.5mm ² , batch shielded cable, outer diameter ϕ 9 mm or less, 3 m or less in length	CN4	Maximum 500 mA DC

* 20A for the A (ϕ 264mm) and E (ϕ 205mm) types for both the DM and DR series 15A for the B (ϕ 160mm) type, and 10A for the DM1004B/1004C motors

Connection and Wiring

3

3.3 Connection between Motor and Driver

Note: Shielding should be applied to each wire.

(1) DM Series (DM1004B/1004C) motors



(2) DM Series motors (models other than the above)



(3) DR Series motors



3

B Connection and Wiring

3.4 Wiring of Motor, AC Power Supply, and Ground Cable

(1) For the DM1004B/1004C motors (in connection with a 500W level driver)
 * In the case shown, a regenerative resistance is required.



(2) For other DM/DR series (other than above) (in connection with 2kW level driver)



Cabla	Specification			
Cable	DM1004B/1004C	Other DM/DR series		
	0.5 mm ² or more, 30 m or less in length	■ 2.0 mm ² or more, 30 m or less in length		
AC power	■ Clamping torque of terminal: 12[kgf-cm ²](1.18[N·r	n])		
supply cable	(terminal screw: M4x0.7) ■ Power supply filter, recommended part: Tokin Corporation #LF-200 series			
	0.5 mm ² or more, 15 m or less in length	■ 2.0 mm ² or more, 30 m or less in length		
	■ Optional cable: CM6000C-□□□	■ Optional cable: CM300M-□□□ or CM0300R-□□□		
Motor cable		€		
Ground cable	0.5 mm ² or more (use as thick cable as possible)	2.0 mm ² or more (use as thick cable as possible)		
	■ Third grade ground (ground resistance 100Ω or less)			
Jumper wire		2.0 mm ² or more		
Regenerative	For 100V: 80W 60Ω			
resistance*	For 200V: 80W 200Ω			

* Only for models with regenerative resistance (500W level)

3 Connection and Wiring

3.5 Wiring of Encoder Cable

(1) DM1004B/C motor Signal Signal Pin # Pin # name name 1 + 10 V 11 2 12 GND -3 θSIG 0 13 4 14 GND 5 θ SIG 1 15 6 16 GND ECLK+ 7 17 ECLK-8 18 9 19 10 20 Chassis Shielded ground cable

(2) DM series motor (other than the one described to the left) Signal Signal Pin # Pin # name name 1 + 10 V 11 2 12 GND -3 θSIG 0 13 ECLK-4 ECLK+ 14 GND 5 θSIG 1 15 6 16 GND 7 17 8 18 9 ZERO+ 19 ZERO-10 20 Chassis Shielded ground cable

(3) DR series motor

Pin #	Signal	Pin #	Signal
1 111 //	name	1 111 //	name
1	-	11	+S180
2	+S0	12	-
3	-	13	-
4	-	14	-
5	-	15	-S180
6	-S0	16	-
7	-	17	-C180
8	-C0	18	-
9	-	19	-
10	+C0	20	+C180
		Chassis	FG
		ground	Shielded cable

Terminal for <CN2>



Electric wire specification	0.2 mm ² multiple-core <u>twisted pair</u> batch shielded cable, 30 m or less in length*			
Optional cable		<u> </u>	IJ	
	DM1004B/C	DM series motor (other than the ones described to the left)	DR series motor	
	CE7900C-000	СЕ7900М-ППП	CE7900R-000	

* Within 10 m only for small-diameter/flat types (DM1004B/C).

3.6 Wiring of Controller Cable

<CN4> terminal

Pin #	Signal name
1	COMP1
2	COMN1
3	OUT_DRDY
4	OUT_SRDY
5	OUT_BUSY
6	OUT_XOVL
7	OUT_OVER
8	OUT_COIN
9	UA_OUT+

Pin #	Signal name
10	UA_OUT-
11	DB_OUT+
12	DB_OUT-
13	Z_OUT+
14	Z_OUT-
15	PUA_IN+
16	PUA_IN-
17	SDB_IN+
18	SDB_IN-

Pin #	Signal name
19	IN_ERR_RESET
20	IN_SERVO
21	IN_MODE_START
22	IN_ABORT
23	IN_MODE.0
24	IN_MODE.1
25	IN_POSW.0
26	IN_POSW.1
27	IN_GAIN

Pin #	Signal name
28	IN_FN
29	IN_PLS_DIRECT
30	IN_PACT
31	(NC)
32	(NC)
33	CRNT_LMT_IN+
34	CRNT_LMT_IN-
35	(NC)
36	(NC)

Terminal for <CN4> Made by Honda Tsushin Kogyo Connector: PCR-S36FS Housing: PCR-LS36LA



3

Connection and Wiring

3.7 Wiring of Sensor Brake Terminal



The recommended sensor logic is B contact. Set the sensor to OFF when the light is shielded. The sensor described above will be set to OFF when the light is shielded by the following south


3.8 Wiring of Regenerative Alarm Contact <CNA> (For 500W Level Drive Only)

This driver (with regenerative terminal) is equipped with a regenerative circuit failure detection circuit. When connecting the regenerative circuit, build a sequence circuit as shown in the figure below in order to prevent burnout incidents.

Note: Build a sequence circuit so that it will turn off the power supply at alarm operation.



Chapter 4 Basic Settings for Operating the Motor

This chapter describes "Basic Settings," which should be used as the first step in understanding the "motor/driver/PC utility." The information is provided progressively, focusing on motor tuning, homing operation, and its setting method.

<u>Make sure to perform the operations described in this chapter</u> as a preliminary step before commencing device production.

- 4.1 Procedure (Flowchart)
- 4.2 Preoperation check
- 4.3 Installing the PC Utility on the PC
 - 4.3.1 Procedure
 - 4.3.2 Startup
- 4.4 Preparation
 - 4.4.1 Selecting Communication Port
 - 4.4.2 Selecting Channels
 - 4.4.3 Displaying Communication Strings
 - 4.4.4 Main Menu
- 4.5 Setting the Status to Servo ON
- 4.6 Auto-tuning
- 4.7 Performing Homing Operation
- 4.8 Performing the Basic Settings of Pulse Commands
 - 4.8.1 About Position Command Pulse Input
 - 4.8.2 Example of Operation

4.1 Procedure (Flowchart)

In this section, we will operate the motor according to the procedure below.



4.2 **Preoperation check**

(1) Items to prepare

- Motor unit/driver/sensor/DC power supply
- PC utility (floppy disk)
- Level block for fixing the motor
- PC (with Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000 installed)
- Various cables
- (2) Installation and Wiring



(3) Items to be checked Check Is the main body fixed on the level block? 1) 2) Is the motor not interfering with peripherals? 3) Is the power supply line wired properly? (LINE, GND) Is the motor cable wired properly? (VA, VB, VC. GND) 4) 5) Is the encoder cable wired properly? 6) Is the sensor wired properly? (Home position, OT sensor: driver (or positioning controller)) 7) Is the RS232C cable wired properly? 8) Is RS-232C operation enabled? (Is bit 2 of PSW1 is on?) 9) Is the wiring with the positioning controller done properly? (See a connection example on the following page.)





4.3 Installing the PC Utility on the PC

4.3.1 Procedure

Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000

The G2 PC utility (hereinafter referred to as the "PC utility") runs on Windows 95, 98, 98SE, Me, WindowsNT4.0 and 2000. It can be installed via "Add/Remove Programs" under the "Control Panel" in Windows. If an older version of the PC utility is present, delete it first and then install the new version. Display the "Properties of Adding/Removing Programs" dialog box and click "Set Up (1)." Then proceed according to the instructions displayed on the screen. The PC utility setup program starts up. Proceed with the setup according to the instructions on the screen. A dialog box for determining the directory in which to install the PC utility appears (see Figure 4.3.1).

Choose Destination Loc	ation 🔀	
	Setup will install DrvGII_E in the following directory.	
	To install to this directory, click Next.	
	To install to a different directory, click Browse and select another directory.	
	You can choose not to install DrvGII_E by clicking Cancel to exit Setup.	
	Destination Directory C:\Program Files\Yokogawa\DrvGII_E <u>Browse</u>	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> Cancel	

Figure 4.3.1 "Choose Destination Location" dialog box

Click "*Browse*" to display the "Select Directory" dialog box and select the desired drive and directory. Click "*Next*" to display "Select Program Folder" (see Figure 4.3.2).

Select Program Folder	×
	Setup will add program icons to the Program Folder listed below. You may type a new folder name, or select one from the existing Folders list. Click Next to continue. Program Folders: YOKOGAWA_E Existing Folders: Accessories Internet Explorer Online Services StartUp Yokogawa YOKOGAWA_E
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel

Figure 4.3.2 "Select Program Folder" dialog box

Select a program folder and click "*Next*." The installation begins. Follow the instructions on the screen and change disks. When the setup is completed, the "Setup Complete" dialog box appear (see Figure 4.3.3).

4

Setup Complete	
	Setup has finished copying files to your computer. Setup will now launch the program. Select your option below.
	T Yes, Launch the program file
	Click Finish to complete Setup.
	< <u>B</u> ack Finish

Figure 4.3.3 "Setup Complete" dialog box

To start the program, select "Launch the program file" and click "*Finish*." If you do not want to start the program, just click "*Finish*." If you are prompted to restart the computer, simply follow the message and restart it.

Note: Remove the floppy disk before restarting the computer.

4.3.2 Startup

1) To start the PC utility, click "Start," "Program (P)," "DrvMII" and then "DrvMII."



Figure 4.3.4 "Startup"

2) An "Version Information" dialog box is displayed for several seconds and then the PC utility starts up.



Figure 4.3.5 "Version Information" dialog box



Figure 4.3.6 After starting up the PC utility

4.4 Preparation

Connect the serial port of the PC with the serial port of the driver with a dedicated cable. (Do not use any of commercially available cables. Since 5V power is being output from the driver as the power supply for the operation display pendant, a breakdown may occur in the PC if such cable is used.)

4.4.1 Selecting Communication Port

When you start the PC utility, the "ComPortSelect" dialog box appears in the left side of the screen (see Figure 4.4.1). Change the setting according to the communication port of the connected PC.

ComPortSelect	
© ComPort1	
C ComPort2	
C ComPort3	
C ComPort4	
C ComPortS	
C ComPort6	
C ComPort7	
C ComPort8	
L	

Figure 4.4.1 "ComPortSelect" dialog box

Note: Settings made in the "ComPortSelect" dialog box are stored in a file. It is not necessary to make settings from the next time you start the PC utility. Change the setting as necessary.

4.4.2 Selecting Channels

When you start the PC utility, the "Communication mode" dialog box appears in the upper left corner of the screen (see Figure 4.4.2). If you are using one driver, select a single channel, and if you are using multiple drivers, select multi-channel addresses. (See Chapter 6 for how to make setting on the driver side.)

Communication mode		
Single channel		
Multi-char	mel Add –	
010	4 C 7	
020	5 🔿 8	
030	609	

Figure 4.4.2 "Communication mode" dialog box

Note: The settings made in the "Communication mode" dialog box are not stored. When the PC utility is started up, a single channel is always set.

4.4.3 Displaying Communication Strings

When you start the PC utility, the "Communication string" dialog box appears in the upper right corner of the screen. (See Figure 4.4.3.) Any strings that the PC utility sends to the driver as well as any strings received from the driver are displayed regardless of the menu.



Figure 4.4.3 "Communication string" dialog box

4.4.4 Main Menu

When you start the PC utility, the "MainMenu" dialog box appears (see Figure 4.4.4). See the following chapters for how to start the actual operation.



Figure 4.4.4 "MainMenu" dialog box

4.5 Setting the Status to Servo ON

The driver can be put into Servo On status through the following operation.

(1) Click the "I/O Config (I)" button in the "MainMenu" and then the "I/O config (L)" button.



(2) Enable Servo ON. Click the checkmark of "1" under DI and then click the Set (S) button.





n Make sure to click the "Set" button after finishing the setting (the status will become Servo ON). Verify that the "S-RDY" LED on the front panel is turned on.

(3) Reset the driver according to the message in the dialog box.



(4) Verify that the driver is reset and the "SRDY" LED on the front panel is turned on.

4.6 Auto-tuning

The auto-tuning can be performed according to the following procedure.

(1) Checking the rotation direction Check the rotation direction (CW/CCW) of the motor.



▲ Caution	Look carefully from both sides of the load installation surface to check the CW/CCW movement. When started, the motor operates in the CCW direction. Take extra care to ensure that there is no mechanical interference with the rotor, which is currently in the stop position.
-----------	--

(2) Click the "Servo Cntl (S)" button on the "MainMenu."



- (3) Click Auto Tuning Start (tuning starts).
- (4) Follow the message on the dialog box and click "OK" to start the auto-tuning operation.



Caution	The rotor rotates a maximum of 30° (seven times of reciprocating operation) in the CW direction. The operation width varies depending on the velocity rating of the motor. <u>Take extra care not to cause any mechanical interference around the rotor.</u> [<how calculate="" operation="" the="" to="" width=""></how>
	Operation width (degree) = motor velocity rating [rps] x 0.02 x 360

(5) Each parameter setting value is displayed and the auto-tuning is automatically terminated.

4.7 Performing Homing Operation

A homing operation can be performed according to the following procedure.

(1) Checking the rotation direction Check the rotation direction (CW/CCW) of the motor.



Look carefully from both sides of the load installation surface to check the CW/CCW A Caution movement. When started, the motor operates in the CCW direction. Take extra care to ensure that there is no mechanical interference with the rotor.

(2) Check the setting of the homing direction through the PC utility. Click "Drive" in the Main Menu, then "Homing."



4-16

(3) Set the "homing direction" in the "Homing" dialog box.



 \triangle Caution The initial value that should be set depends on the homing direction. Enter "#20 = 1" if the homing direction is CW and "#20 = 0" if it is CCW.

(4) Click the "Start" button to start the homing operation.

Homing Start(D) Abort(<u>A</u>) Terminal(<u>T</u>) EnReset(<u>B</u>)			
Click "Start."			
	Set(<u>S</u>)	SettingValue	
#1	+HOT_Error	Enable	0 🔺
#2	-HOT_Error	Enable	0
#4	AccProfeel		0
#S	DecProfeel		0
#7	TaccTrapezoid		1000
#8	TdecTrapezo	bid	1000
#11	ORG-OT_Sea	archVel	131072
#12	ORG-ORG_S	earchVel	131072
#13	ORG-7 Wall		65536
		Exit(X)	

 1) The homing operation finishes automatically after the operation is completed. In the event of

 The homing operation does not finish, and
 The motor does not stop even when the home position sensor is detected, Click "Abort (A)" to stop the motor, then check "wiring" and "auto-tuning" again.

If a homing abnormality message is displayed, follow the message to adjust the flag position using the limit value as a guideline. If an error occurs, press "ErrReset" as well.

4.8 **Performing the Basic Settings of Pulse Commands**

4.8.1 About Position Command Pulse Input

Perform input (pulses) required for operation according to the explanation in Section 6.2, "Position Command Pulse Input" in Chapter 6, "Controller Interface." Prior to performing pulse input, be sure to perform required settings according to the explanation in Section 6.1, "Terminal Function."

The position command value instructed from the controller interface is given to the driver by any pair of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals, which is then reflected in the command unit command value. Which pair of the signals will be used to give a command is set with the **#204** Command pulse type parameter.

	(PLS, SIGN)		(UP, DOWN)		(A, B)	
	+ direction	- direction	+ direction	- direction	+ direction	- direction
	PLS	150ns min	UP	s min -	А	
±						
SDB IN	3μs min	⊢ 3µs min SIGN	DOWN -	-	B 300ns min	
±			6μs min			
Caution	The signal should be H when active (status for flowing current to the driver photocoupler). As for the PLS, it should be L when normal.		The signal should be H when active (status for flowing current to the driver photocoupler). As for both the UP and DOWN, they should be L when normal.		The signal should I (status for flowing of driver photocouple	be H when active current to the r).

The position command value instructed from the controller interface can change the weight of a single pulse on the interface by the input signal "PLS_DIRECT." When the status of the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" is 0, a single pulse on the interface becomes the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter. While the status of the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" is 1, a single pulse on the interface is independent of the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter. While the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter, and becomes a single pulse inside the driver.

However, do not change the status of any of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals for 2 msec each before and after switching the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" (off \rightarrow on, on \rightarrow off).



4-18

4.8.2 Example of Operation

The following shows an example of operation. Input pulses from the positioning controller according to the velocity pattern shown below.



<Velocity pattern : Example of operation>



Chapter 5 Functions

5.1 Parameters and Monitors

- 5.1.1 General Parameters
- 5.1.2 Mechanical Setting Parameters
- 5.1.3 Monitors

5.2 Operation Functions

- 5.2.1 Jog Move
- 5.2.2 Test Operation
- 5.2.3 Auto-Tuning Operation
- 5.2.4 Homing Move
- 5.2.5 Mechanical Setting Mode

5.3 Coordinate System

- 5.3.1 Coordinate System
- 5.3.2 Switching Position Command Pulse Weights

5.4 Control System

- 5.4.1 Velocity Control Part
- 5.4.2 Position Control Part
- 5.4.3 Feed Forward
- 5.4.4 Servo Stiffness Parameter

5.5 Acceleration/Deceleration Function

- 5.5.1 Velocity Override Function
- 5.5.2 Velocity Profile

5.6 Other Functions

- 5.6.1 Settling Wait, Position Settling Status, and Positioning Status
- 5.6.2 Velocity Monitor and Analog Monitor
- 5.6.3 Brake Signal

5.7 Special Parameter Processing

- 5.7.1 Internal Generation of Parameter Initial Values
- 5.7.2 Limiting and Checking Maximum Velocity When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data and Maximum Velocity Parameters
- 5.7.3 Auto Conversion and Clear Functions When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data
- 5.7.4 Limiting the Maximum Parameter Values

5 Functions

5.1 Parameters and Monitors

The group of variables expressed by #*** is called *parameters and monitors*. Parameters/monitors are classified according to their numbers as follows.

Parameter No.	Parameter type	Backup	Comments
0 to 199	General parameters	Stored	Always possible to read and write.
200 to 299	Mechanical setting parameters	Stored	Reading is always possible, but writing is possible only when operating in mechanical setting mode.
300 to 399	Monitors	-	Read only. Reading is always possible, but writing is not possible at any time.

By expressing all parameters/monitors by #***, their values can be referenced (read). It is also possible to change (write) the values within the range allowed for each parameter/monitor.

5.1.1 General Parameters

These parameters can be read and written at all times and an operational meaning is assigned to each. The details of each parameter will be explained separately.

Note that these parameters are stored in the driver; they will not be deleted even if the power is turned off.

5.1.2 Mechanical Setting Parameters

It is always possible to read these parameters, but writing is possible only when operating in mechanical setting mode. These parameters are set only once when the device is started up. An operational meaning is assigned to each. The details of each parameter will be explained separately.

Note that these parameters are stored in the driver; they will not be deleted even if the power is turned off.

Note: If these parameters are changed during execution in mechanical setting mode, the changes made to the values will not be reflected until the power is turned on again. Therefore, please note that if you try to read a parameter value after you change the parameter, the value before the change is read until you turn the power off and on again.

5.1.3 Monitors

These variables are used to display the driver's status. Only reading is allowed at all times and each has an operational meaning. The details of each parameter will be explained separately.

5.2 **Operation Functions**



The status in which no operation is performed is called the *idle status*; jog moves can be performed in this status. If no jog move is being performed in the idle status, the driver follows the position command from the controller interface.

This driver is equipped with the operation functions listed below. Use them as needed.

The start, end, and stop actions of these operations can be controlled from either the controller interface side or the RS232C interface side. Refer to the related chapters (Chapter 6, "Controller Interface" and Chapter 7, "RS232C Interface") for operation methods.

The methods used to end each operation can be classified into three categories: the *self-end type* that ends automatically when the operation is complete, the *non-self-end type* that cannot end the action by itself, and the *non-end type* that cannot be stopped once started. An appropriate end or stop action must be performed for each type.

Operation No.	Name	Comment	Ending type
0	Test operation	Generates a 2.5Hz square wave position command signal for adjustment of the control part.	Non-self-end
1	Auto-tuning operation	Makes the rotor oscillate, measures load inertia and load mass, and sets the parameters for the control part automatically.	Self-end
2	(Reserved)		
3	Homing move	Finds the home position using the hardware over-travel signal, homing sensor, and motor Zero signal to establish the coordinate system.	Self-end
4 to 14	(Reserved)		
15	Mechanical setting mode	Special mode for changing mechanical setting parameters.	Non-end

5.2.1 Jog Move

The rotor can be moved in the positive (+) or negative (-) direction by issuing a jog move command while in idle status.

There are three types of jog move commands: (+) *direction move*, (-) *direction move*, and *stop*. Refer to the sections about the RS232C interface and PLC interface for how to issue a command.

The move can only be trapezoidal but it is possible to set the acceleration and deceleration profile. In addition, the velocity override does function in real time. The velocity in the jog move is determined by the value in the **#10** Jog Velocity parameter.

If operation is started while the jog move is in progress, the operation is executed as soon as the jog move stops. The settling wait function is not performed at the end of the jog move.

[Related parameter]

#10 Jog velocity

Functions

5.2.2 **Test Operation**

This operation generates a 2.5Hz square wave and uses it as position command signal for adjustment of the control part. Set the analog monitor to test operation response to measure the response waveform on the oscilloscope.

The position feed forward, velocity feed forward, and acceleration feed forward are set to 0 internally during the test operation.

The settling wait function is not performed at the end of the test operation.

[Related parameters]

- #31 Operation width under testing mode
- #50 Position control bandwidth 1
- #48 Position control bandwidth 2
- #51 Velocity control bandwidth 1
- #49 Velocity control bandwidth 2 #53 Position integral limiting value
- #70 Analog monitor selection
- #72 Test operation monitoring gain (analog monitor)
 - Obtain the fastest possible rise time of the response waveform and make adjustments so that overshoot will not occur.
 - The closer the position control bandwidth and velocity control bandwidth are, the more the waveform will oscillate.
 - If the inertia and weight of the load are large, the oscillations may be eliminated by setting the position integral limiting value to a small value.



Increase the position control bandwidth.



Make adjustments until this waveform is reached



If the velocity control bandwidth cannot be increased any further, the position control bandwidth should be decreased

5.2.3 Auto-Tuning Operation

This operation makes the rotor oscillate, measures the inertia and weight of the load, and automatically sets the parameters for the control part.

It accelerates/decelerates with half the rated torque and rated thrust of the motor, and measures the inertia and weight of the load from the velocity changes at that time. The result of the measurement is written to the #155 Load inertia/load mass parameter.

From the measured inertia and weight of the load, it adjusts the position control bandwidth, velocity control bandwidth, and position integral limiting value according to the setting value of the #38 Servo stiffness settings parameter. For the position control bandwidth and the velocity control bandwidth, the results are reflected in the parameters on the side selected by the controller interface (see Section 6.5.2, "Position Control Bandwidth Selection FN" and Section 6.5.3, "Velocity Control Bandwidth Selection GAIN). It does not adjust position feed forward, velocity feed forward, and acceleration feed forward.

The settling wait function is not performed at the end of the auto-tuning operation.

[Related parameters]

- #32 Operation width under Auto-tuning
- Maximum deceleration under Auto-tuning #33
- #34 Initializing the deceleration time while under Autotunina #37 Auto-tuning repeat count
- #38
 - Servo stiffness settings

[Auto-set parameters]

Position control bandwidth 1
Position control bandwidth 2
Velocity control bandwidth 1
Velocity control bandwidth 2
Position integral limiting value
Load inertia/load mass

5.2.4 Homing Move

In this operation the rotor is moved according to a preset home position search method in order to establish a coordinate system. After first moving to the home position determined by the proximity signal and motor Zero signal, it continues to move an amount further given in the #29 Offset distance from the Home position parameter's setting value. It then sets the drive coordinate command value to the value set in the #30 Homing complete operation command value parameter.

There are two ways to generate motor Zero signals (hardware and software Zero signals). The method used varies depending on the motor. See the explanation given below.

The homing operation is processed in the following order.

The move can only be trapezoidal but it is possible to set the acceleration and deceleration profile. In addition, the velocity override does function in real time.

The settling wait function is performed at each point during the homing operation.

[Related parameters]		[Hardware Zero signal]
#11 #12	Over-travel search velocity during a homing move Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal	DYNASERV DMA and DMB series
#13 #15 #20 #21 #25 #26	Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 Homing operation: Origin position offset feed velocity Homing direction Enable/Disable the over-travel signal under the homing mode Homing operation: Origin inside selection Enabling the proximity signal during OT search under	[Software Zero signal] Applicable motor: DYNASERV Flat motor (DM1004B) Small-diameter motor (DM1004C) Standard DRA, DRB and DRE series High-speed DRB and DRE series
#27 #29 #30	the homing mode Enabling the homing flag position error Offset distance from the Home position Homing complete operation command value	

#202 Coordinates (+) direction setting

(1) OT search move

The rotor moves until it finds an over-travel (OT) signal in the opposite side of the homing direction and in the opposite direction of homing direction. It is executed only when the OT signal search move is enabled in #21 *Enable/Disable the over-travel signal under the homing mode* parameter.

If the proximity signal during OT search move is enabled in the #26 Enabling the proximity signal during OT search under the homing mode parameter, and an home position proximity signal is detected during an OT search move, the rotor stops the OT search move, and then proceeds to (2) or (3) below.

The moving velocity is set to the value in #11 Over-travel search velocity during a homing move parameter.

(2) Homing search move

The rotor moves until it finds a homing sensor in the homing direction. The moving velocity is set to the value in #12 Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal search velocity parameter.

(3) Moving to outside of home position proximity area

This is executed only if #25 = 1. If #202 = 1, the rotor moves in (+) direction until it leaves the home position proximity area. If #202 = 0, the rotor moves in (-) direction until it leaves the home position proximity area. The moving velocity is set to the value in the **#13** Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 parameter.

(4) First home sensing move

With the #25 Homing operation: Origin inside selection parameter, it is possible to select and set either the inside Zero signal or outside Zero signal of the home position proximity signal as the home position. If #25 = 1, the inside Zero signal is set as the home position; if #25 = 0, the outside Zero signal is set as the home position. If #25 = 1, the rotor moves to search the home position proximity signal in (-) direction. If #25 = 1, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon entering the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position proximity signal in (+) direction. If #25 = 1, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon leaving the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon entering the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon entering the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon entering the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon leaving the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon leaving the area, and then stops. If #25 = 0, the rotor recognizes the first Zero signal edge as the home position upon leaving the area, and then stops. The moving velocity is set to the value in the #13 Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 parameter.

(5) Second home sensing move

The second home sensing move is executed in two steps.

1) Preparation move

The rotor moves as far as diametrically opposite the Zero signal edge in the opposite direction of the Zero signal edge search direction that was used in the first home sensing move. The moving velocity is set to the value in the #13 Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 parameter.

2) Zero signal edge search move

The rotor moves until it finds the Zero signal edge in the Zero signal edge search direction that was used in the first home sensing move.

The moving velocity is set to the value in the #13 Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 parameter.

(6) Home position move

The home position is moved to the detected Zero signal edge position. Motors that use software Zero signals further perform a second corrective move.

The moving velocity is determined internally by the driver.

(7) Home position offset move

The home position is moved for the distance given by the value set in #29 Offset distance from the Home position parameter, after which the operation coordination command value is set to the value given in #30 Homing complete operation command value parameter.

The moving velocity is set to the value in #15 Homing operation: Origin position offset feed velocity parameter.

For the homing move to be completed normally, the distance between the home position proximity area and the Zero signal edge must be within a specific range based on the value of #358 Z-phase signal pulse interval monitor. The reference value differs depending on the method by which the Zero signal (hardware or software Zero signal) is generated.

At the first home sensing move, the distance to the first Zero signal edge after passing through the home position proximity area (pulse amount) has been measured and written in #318 Homing operation: The measured value monitor. If this value does not satisfy the equations below, an error or warning will occur. In that case, the home position proximity dog should be adjusted and the homing move should be performed again. Repeat these steps until the operation is completed normally.

al type]						
	#318 value	<	0.05* # 358 value	error			
\leq	#318 value	<	0.1 * # 358 value	warning			
\leq	#318 value	\leq	0.7 *#358 value	normal			
<	#318 value	\leq	0.75*#358 value	warning			
<	#318 value			error			
[Software zero signal type]							
	#318 value	<	0.05* # 358 value	error			
\leq	#318 value	<	0.1 * # 358 value	warning			
\leq	#318 value	\leq	0.4 *#358 value	normal			
<	#318 value	\leq	0.45* # 358 value	warning			
	≦ ≦ < ! type] ≦ <	# 318 value	$\begin{array}{rrrr} & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & \leq \\ & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & \leq \\ & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & \\ & & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & < \\ & & & & & & \# 318 \text{ value} & \leq \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ & & & & & & & \\ \end{array}$	# 318 value $0.05^* \# 358$ value \leq # 318 value $0.1 * \# 358$ value \leq # 318 value $0.7 * \# 358$ value # 318 value $0.75^* \# 358$ value # 318 value $0.75^* \# 358$ value # 318 value $0.05^* \# 358$ value # 318 value $0.05^* \# 358$ value \leq # 318 value $0.1 * \# 358$ value \leq # 318 value $0.4 * \# 358$ value			

5 Functions



5-8

Zero signal outside

Homing direction

Homing operation:

position

Origin inside selection

during OT search under the homing mode

Enable/disable the over-travel

signal under the homing mode

Enabling the proximity signal

Offset distance from the Home

Coordinate (+) direction setting

(-) direction

Not used

Outside

Invalid

0

#20 = 0

#21 = 0

#25 = 0

#26 = 0

#29 = 0

#202 = 1

Zero signal inside

5.2.5 Mechanical Setting Mode

This is a special mode for changing parameters related to the mechanical settings. Parameters #200 to #299 can be changed only when this operation is being executed. In addition, once started, this operation cannot be stopped. After you finish changing the necessary parameters, turn the power to the driver off and on again. Note that if you change these parameters, the changed values are not reflected until after the power is turned on again. Therefore, please note that if you try to read a parameter value after you change the parameter, the value before the change is read until you turn the power off and on again.

5.3 Coordinate System

5.3.1 Coordinate System

The driver controls the position of the motor by three coordinate systems with different units: a *command unit coordinate system*, and a *pulse coordinate system*.

The pulse coordinate system manages the coordinate values in units of pulses that can be detected by the encoder resolver. The position control part of the driver controls the motor based on these coordinate values. It has a command value and a current value, and they are always updated and displayed in the #320 Pulse position command value monitor and #321 Pulse position current value monitor, respectively.

The command unit coordinate system manages coordinate values in the amount of pulses on the controller interface. The position command values that occur in the driver itself (test operation, auto-tuning operation, homing operation, jog move operation) are also processed based on these coordinate values. The command unit coordinate system has command values and current values, each of which are constantly updated and displayed in the **#323** *Command unit command value* monitor and the **#370** *Command unit current value* monitor, respectively.

5.3.2 Switching Position Command Pulse Weights

The position command value instructed from the controller interface is given to the driver by any pair of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals, which is then reflected in the command unit command value. Normally, the pulse position command value inside the driver for a single pulse on the controller interface becomes the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter. For example, if the setting value is 4, a single pulse on the controller interface will be equivalent to 4 pulses inside the driver. In addition, the command unit current value is output from the driver by either the (UP, DOWN) or (A, B) signal. The pulse position current value inside the driver for a single pulse on the controller interface will be equivalent. For example, if the setting value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter. For example, if the setting value is 4, a single pulse on the controller interface will be equivalent to 4 pulses inside the driver. While the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" is on, the position command value instructed from the controller interface is independent of the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted scaling weighted data parameter; a single

pulse on the controller interface will be a single pulse inside the driver, instead. However, do not change the status of any of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals for 2 msec each before and after switching the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" (off \rightarrow on, on \rightarrow off).

[Related parameters]

#207 Simplified scaling weighted data

5.4 Control System

In this section, the *position control part*, *velocity control part*, and *feed forward* of the driver are explained. The block diagram of the control system is shown below.



5.4.1 Velocity Control Part

For the velocity control bandwidth, either the value set with the #51 Velocity control bandwidth 1 parameter or the #49 Velocity control bandwidth 2 parameter is selected, according to the status of the controller interface input signal IN_GAIN. The selected value is displayed in the #376 Velocity control bandwidth monitor. The velocity control part calculates the #361 Velocity proportional gain monitor value from the #155 Load inertia/load mass parameter value, which is either measured and set by an auto-tuning operation or entered directly as a numerical value, according to the velocity control bandwidth value. During this process, the frequency characteristics of neither the velocity feedback filter nor the notch filter are considered but only the frequency characteristic of the first order delay compensation device is considered to calculate the velocity proportional gain.

The first order compensation device can be set in four ways via the #152 First order delay compensation device setting parameter. The first order delay compensation device has the effect that it improves the gain characteristics of the velocity control part. The frequency characteristics for each setting of the first order compensation device is shown below. Note that there is no frequency dependency when the first order compensation is not set.

There are two channels available for the notch filter (optional). The central frequency value can be set independently for each channel via the #153 Notch filter: Frequency selection 1 and #154 Notch filter: Frequency selection 2 parameters. The notch filter has the effect that it improves the gain characteristics of mechanical systems that tend to resonate.

The velocity feedback filter can be enabled or disabled by setting the #219 Enable/Disable velocity feedback filter parameter. When enabled, the filter bandwidth can be set in the #220 Velocity feedback filter bandwidth parameter. The velocity feedback filter is effective in eliminating noise at motor operation, but with a small bandwidth the velocity control part tends to oscillate.

The filter bandwidth of the velocity command filter can be set in the #221 Velocity command filter bandwidth parameter. The velocity command filter helps achieving smoother acceleration/deceleration, but with a small bandwidth the position control part tends to oscillate.

[Related parameters]

- #51 Velocity control bandwidth
- #152 First order delay compensation device setting
- #153 Notch filter: Frequency selection 1
- #154 Notch filter: Frequency selection 2
- #155 Load inertia/load mass
- #219 Enable/Disable velocity feedback filter
- #220 Velocity feedback filter bandwidth
- #221 Velocity command filter bandwidth



5.4.2 Position Control Part

For the position control bandwidth, either the value set with the **#50** *Position control bandwidth 1* parameter or the **#48** *Position control bandwidth 2* parameter is selected, according to the status of the controller interface input signal IN_FN. The selected value is displayed in the **#375** *Position control bandwidth* monitor. The position control part calculates the proportional control gain, integral control gain, and differential feedback gain, according to the position control bandwidth value.

The position integral limiter set by the #53 Position integral limiting value parameter is effective in suppressing integrator windup due to motor torque and thrust saturation. Decrease the value in order to suppress windup further. On the other hand, if you set the value too small, the motor torque and thrust are limited; set a value as large as possible in the range where windup does not occur.

The integral operation of the position control part can also be set either to be active (allow) or inactive (prohibit). If you clamp the motor with an external device when the motor is stopped, the integral operation should be prohibited after clamping in order to prevent overloading the controller. Refer to Chapter 6 "Controller Interface" and Chaper 7 "RS232C Interface" for details of the operation.

The position current value filter outputs the result obtained by filtering the position current value to the #384 Motor linear coordinate current value after filtering monitor. The filter bandwidth is set with the #59 Position current value filter frequency parameter. The position control part outputs a value before or after being filtered to the #321 Pulse position current value monitor, according to the setting status of the #203 Using position current value filter parameter. It also calculates the value of the #322 Pulse position deviation monitor, using the current value before or after being filtered, according to the setting status of the #203 parameter.

[Related parameters]

- #50 Position control bandwidth 1
- #48 Position control bandwidth 2
- #53 Position integral limiting value
- #59 Position deviation filter frequency
- #203 Using position current value filter

5.4.3 Feed Forward

Three types of feed forward functions are available: position feed forward, velocity feed forward, and acceleration feed forward. Feed forward function is effective for quick positioning.

The position feed forward can be set by percentage in the **#54** *Position feed forward percentage* parameter. The position feed forward makes the position deviation at equal velocity move smaller and helps to achieve a smooth settling at acceleration/deceleration.

The velocity feed forward can be set by percentage in the #55 Velocity feed forward percentage parameter. The acceleration feed forward calculates the acceleration feed forward gain from the #155 Load inertia/load mass parameter values, which are measured and set by the auto-tuning operation or set directly by numerical values, based on the #56 Acceleration feed forward gain parameter. #56 parameter is given as a percentage.

[Related parameters]#54Position feed forward percentage#55Velocity feed forward percentage#56Acceleration feed forward percentage#155Load inertia/load mass

5.4.4 Servo Stiffness Parameter

The **#38** Servo stiffness settings parameter is for general settings for the control system. The control parameters are set based on this parameter after measuring the load inertia/load mass in the auto-tuning operation.

If #38 is changed, either one of the position control bandwidth parameters (#50, #48) selected by IN_FN and either one of the velocity control bandwidth parameters (#51, #49) selected by IN_GAIN are set. In addition, the gain of the control system is set automatically, and the position integral limiting value parameter (#53) is also automatically set to the minimum position integral limiting value that can generate the maximum torque and the maximum thrust in the motor lock status. It is not necessary to set parameters related to feed forward and filters again.

[Related parameters]

5 Functions

5.5 Acceleration/Deceleration Function

This driver performs trapezoidal moves during jog moves and homing moves, and uses the acceleration/deceleration function described in this section.

In addition, it has a velocity override function for switching velocity during a move, which works in real time even during the move (real time velocity override function).

The maximum velocity of the motor is defined in #213 Maximum velocity, but is limited by the maximum velocity defined within the driver. The limited value is displayed in the #357 Maximum velocity monitor.

5.5.1 Velocity Override Function

The velocity override value is set with the #16 Velocity override percentage 1 parameter.

The velocity override value can be set in increments of 0.01% from 0 to 200%. Please note that if a value greater than 100% is set, the velocity during the move may exceed the maximum velocity, which may cause an error. How the velocity override is applied differs for the trapezoidal move and cam profile move.

[Related parameters]

#16 Velocity override percentage 1
5.5.2 Velocity Profile

In a trapezoidal motion, the acceleration of the moving part follows the acceleration type set by the #4 Selecting acceleration type parameter until it reaches the feed velocity. Hereafter, the move is continued with the feed velocity, then decelerates and stops according to the deceleration type set by the #5 Selecting deceleration type parameter. The feed velocity varies depending on the operation.

The acceleration and deceleration types can be selected separately. There are two options for acceleration and deceleration: a *constant acceleration type* and an *S-shaped type* (where the acceleration/deceleration follows a second order spline). Generally, the S-shaped type can limit vibrations in the machine better, but the peak torque or peak thrust at acceleration/deceleration become greater and a correspondingly larger motor torque or motor thrust will be required.

The acceleration/deceleration time can also be selected separately. The values of the **#7** Acceleration time during a trapezoidal move and **#8** Deceleration time during a trapezoidal move parameters are set to values equivalent to the maximum velocity shown in the **#357** Maximum velocity monitor. The actual acceleration/deceleration time becomes the value obtained by multiplying the maximum velocity by the velocity ratio during a trapezoidal move. By doing so, the same acceleration can be maintained without changing **#7** and **#8** even when the feed velocity setting is changed.





[Acceleration]

[Deceleration]







The feed velocity during a move becomes the commanded velocity multiplied by the velocity override value. If the velocity override value is changed during a move, the moving part is accelerated at the same acceleration profile and acceleration as the normal acceleration time when the velocity override value is increased. In the same way, the moving part is decelerated at the same deceleration profile and deceleration as the normal deceleration time when the velocity override value is the normal deceleration time when the velocity override value is decelerated.



[Acceleration: s-shaped, deceleration: constant acceleration]

[Related parameters]

- #3 Selecting the type of cam profile move
- #4 Selecting the acceleration type
- #5 Selecting the deceleration type
- #7 Acceleration time during a trapezoidal move
- #8 Deceleration time during a trapezoidal move

5.6 Other Functions

5.6.1 Settling Wait, Position Settling Status, and Positioning Status

Position settling status refers to the status where the position deviation (pulse coordinates) is within the specified range in the pulse coordinate system. The specified range is set with the #58 *Position settling pulse width 1, #45 Position settling pulse width 2, #46 Position settling pulse width 3,* and #47 *Position settling pulse width 4* parameters in pulse units, which are selected by the controller interface input signal IN_POSW[1..0]. The selected value is then displayed in the #377 *Position settling width* monitor. The #322 *Pulse position deviation* monitor is used for the position deviation to be evaluated. The position settling status is set when the absolute value of position deviation becomes shorter than the position settling width for the duration set with the #61 *Position settling signal chattering processing count* parameter. The check cycle is 2 msec. If chattering occurs in a "COIN" due to an overshoot during position settling, depending on the load status, the settling status is displayed in the #328 *Position settling status* monitor. It is also displayed with the "COIN" LED on the front panel: it turns on to indicate the position settling status. Furthermore, it is output to the "COIN" of the CN3 analog monitor interface by a digital signal.

Positioning status is the status where an acceleration/deceleration command for a move is completed and in position settling status. The positioning settling status is displayed in the #329 **Positioning status** monitor. **Settling wait** is a function invoked to keep on waiting until the positioning status is reached at the end of a move. Settling wait can be made in two ways depending on the operation: never perform settling wait or always perform settling wait.

	Operation
Never perform	Jog move, test operation, auto-tuning operation
Always perform	Homing move

[Related parameters]

#58 Positioning settling width 1
#45 Positioning settling width 2
#46 Positioning settling width 3
#47 Positioning settling width 4
#61 Position settling signal chattering processing count
#203 Using position current value filter

5.6.2 Velocity Monitor and Analog Monitor

The current velocity value of the motor is output to "VEL" of the CN3 analog monitor interface as the *velocity monitor* signal.

The signal sensitivity of the velocity monitor ([V/rps] in case of a rotating DYNASERV motor and [V/mps] in case of a linear LINEARSERV motor) can be obtained by multiplying the **#69** Velocity monitor gain parameter setting by the **#356** Digital velocity sensitivity monitor value. For example, if the setting of #69 is 6.55V/8192 digits and the value of #356 is 4800 [digit/rps] in a rotating motor, the signal sensitivity of the velocity monitor is 3.84 [V/rps]. The velocity monitor signal is output in the range of $\pm 6.55V$.

Moreover, it is possible to output only the AC element of the current velocity value of the motor via the setting of the **#75** Velocity monitor selection parameter.

One of the data items below is output to "AMON" of the CN3 analog monitor interface as an *analog monitor* signal.

The content of the analog monitor can be selected by the #70 Analog monitor selection parameter. Depending on the selected content, the signal sensitivity is adjusted using the corresponding monitor gains #71 to 74. The analog monitor signals are output in the range of \pm 6.55V.

Analog monitor selection	Unit	Monitor gain
Position deviation	Pulse	#71 Positioning error monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
Test operation response	Pulse	#72 Test operation monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
Position command value	Pulse	#72 Desition monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
Position current value	Pulse	#73 Position monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
Position command differential value	pps	#74 Position differential value monitor gain (Analog
Position current differential value	pps	monitor)

[Related parameters]

- #69 Velocity monitoring gain
- #70 Analog monitor selection
- #71 Positioning error monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
- #72 Test operation monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
- #73 Position monitoring gain (Analog monitor)
- #74 Position difference value monitor gain (Analog
- monitor) #74
- #75 Velocity monitor selection

5.6.3 Brake Signal

BRK+ and BRK- are output to the TB2 external sensor interface as brake signal outputs that operate linked to the Servo ON status. The brake signal is a relay contact output. The contact opens when the brake should be applied such as when the power is disconnected or the driver is in Servo OFF status, and the contact short circuits when the brake should be released.

The Servo ON status and the brake signal operate according to the timing diagram shown below via the #89 Brake turn OFF delay time upon Servo ON and #90 Advanced brake turn ON before Servo OFF parameters.



5.7 Special Parameter Processing

The setting values of the parameters listed below are automatically changed inside the driver by the operation of the driver.

5.7.1 Internal Generation of Parameter Initial Values

The initial values of all of the following parameters when they are reset will be generated internally by the motor:

[Related parameters]

#9	Feeding velocity	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity into command units.
#10	Jog velocity	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity into command units.
#11	Over-travel search velocity during a homing move	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.1 into command units.
#12	Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal search velocity	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.1 into command units.
#13	Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.05 into command units.
#15	Homing operation: Origin position offset move feed velocity	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.1 into command units.
#31	Operation width under testing mode	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.002 into command units.
#32	Operation width under Auto-tuning	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity*0.02 into command units.
#213	Maximum velocity	Value obtained by converting the motor rating velocity into command units.
#207	Simplified scaling weighted data	DM: 4 DR: 2
#58	Positioning setting width	 Pulse width equivalent to command unit * 1 Pulse width equivalent to command unit * 5 Pulse width equivalent to command unit * 20 Pulse width equivalent to command unit * 100

5.7.2 Limiting and Checking Maximum Velocity When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data and Maximum Velocity Parameters

The following maximum velocity limiting and checking are performed during processing when the power is turned ON after simplified scaling weighted data is changed.

- Limit item 1) A limit is set when the maximum velocity in command units [unit/s] exceeds 9999999.
 - 2) A data checksum error is generated when the maximum velocity in pulse units [pls/s] exceeds 8000000.

5 Functions

5.7.3 Auto Conversion and Clear Functions When Changing Simplified Scaling Weighted Data

When simplified scaling weighted data is changed, the following parameters are automatically converted:

[Related parameters]

- #9 Feeding velocity #10 Jog velocity #11 Over-travel search velocity during a homing move #12 Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal search velocity #13 Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity 1 #15 Homing operation: Origin position offset move feed velocity #29 Offset distance from the Home position #31 Operation width under testing mode #32 Operation width under Auto-tuning
- #58 Positioning setting width
- #45 Positioning setting width2
- #46 Positioning setting width3
- #47 Positioning setting width4
- #213 Maximum velocity

5.7.4 Limiting the Maximum Parameter Values

Limit processing is performed for the following parameters related to velocity at the time of parameter entry and when the power is turned ON.

[Related parameters]

#9 #10 #11 #12 #13	Feeding velocity Jog velocity Over-travel search velocity during a homing move Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal search velocity Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity1
#13	Homing operation: Home sensing feed velocity1
#15	Homing operation: Origin position offset move feed velocity

[At the time of parameter entry]

If a parameter value exceeds #357 *Maximum velocity monitor value* when it is set by the user, it will be processed as out of range data. However, limit processing is not performed in the hold-on state (while downloading parameters), when changing the simplified scaling weighted data, or when changing the maximum velocity data.

[When the power is turned ON]

During processing when the power is turned ON after simplified scaling weighted data or maximum velocity data is changed, a limit is applied using the value equivalent to the #357 Maximum velocity monitor that is successively initialized.

Chapter 6 Control Interfaces

6.1 Terminal Function

- 6.1.1 Connection, Setting, and I/O Mapping
- 6.1.2 Explanation of Terminals
- 6.1.3 Electrical specifications
- 6.1.4 I/O logic setting
- 6.2 Position Command Pulse Input
- 6.3 Encoder Pulse Output
- 6.4 Operations
 - 6.4.1 Starting an Operation
 - 6.4.2 Aborting an Operation
 - 6.4.3 Timing Charts

6.5 Other Inputs

- 6.5.1 Pulse Weight Selection PLS_DIRECT
- 6.5.2 Position Control Bandwidth Selection FN
- 6.5.3 Velocity Control Bandwidth Selection GAIN
- 6.5.4 Settling Width Selection POSW [1..0]
- 6.5.5 Disable Position Control Integral Operation PACT
- 6.5.6 Error reset (ERR_RESET)
- 6.5.7 Servo ON SERVO
- 6.5.8 Current Limit Input

6 Control Interfaces

6.1 Terminal Function

6.1.1 Connection, Setting, and I/O Mapping

CN4

Made by Honda Tsushin Kogyo Connector PCR-S36FS Cover PCR-LS36LA

19	IN_ERR_RESET	01	COMP1
20	IN_SERVO	02	COMN1
21	IN_MODE_START	03	OUT_DRDY
22	IN_ABORT	04	OUT_SRDY
23	IN_MODE. 0	05	OUT_BUSY
24	IN_MODE. 1	06	OUT_XOVL
25	IN_POSW. 0	07	OUT_OVER
26	IN_POSW. 1	08	OUT_COIN
27	IN_GAIN	09	UA_OUT+
28	IN_FN	10	UA_OUT-
29	IN_PLS_DIRECT	11	DB_OUT+
30	IN_PACT	12	DB_OUT-
31	(NC)	13	Z_OUT+
32	(NC)	14	Z_OUT-
33	CRNT_LMT_IN+	15	PUA_IN+
34	CRNT_LMT_IN-	16	PUA_IN-
35	(NC)	17	SDB_IN+
36	(NC)	18	SDB_IN-

Note) Do not connect any terminal with NCs.

6.1.2 Explanation of Terminals

		Signal name	Description	
Contact input signals Total 12 points				
	IN_MODE_START	1	Operation start command	Starts operation when setting from OFF to ON.
	IN_ABORT	1	Operation abort command	Stops operation when setting from OFF to ON.
	IN_MODE1, 0	2	Operation mode number	
	IN_PLS_DIRECT	1	Pulse weight selection	
	IN_FN	1	Position control bandwidth selection	Changes the position control bandwidth.
	IN_GAIN	1	Velocity control bandwidth selection	Changes the velocity control bandwidth.
	IN_POSW1, 0	2	Settling width selection	Switches the settling width.
	IN_PACT	1	Position control integral operation disabled	Disables the integral operation by turning ON.
	IN_ERR_RESET	1	Error reset	Executes error status reset when setting from OFF to ON.
	IN_SERVO	1	Servo ON	Servo ON by turning ON.
Cor	ntact output signals Total 6 points			
	OUT_DRDY	1	Driver ready	Turns ON when it is not in the error status.
	OUT_SEDY	1	Servo ready	Turns ON when it is in the servo ready status.
	OUT_OVER	1	Over signal	Turns ON when position deviation
		1	Overload signal	Turns OFF when overload occurs
				Turns ON when the position deviation
		1	Position settling signal	is within the settling width.
	OUT_BUSY	1	Busy	The status where operation cannot be performed according to the pulse train position command.
Pos Tota	sition command pulse input signals al 2 pairs	8		
	PUA_IN ±	1	Position command pulse 1	PLS, UP, or A, depending on the setting
	SDB_IN ±	1	Position command pulse 2	SIGN, DOWN, or B, depending on the setting
Pos Tota	sition current pulse output signals al 3 pairs			
	UA_OUT ±	1	Position current pulse 1	UP or A, depending on the setting
	DB_OUT ±	1	Position current pulse 2	DOWN or B, depending on the setting
	Z_OUT ±	1	Origin pulse	
Ana	alog input Total 1 pair			
	CRNT_LMT_IN ±	1	Current limit	0V: 0% to 10V: 100%

6 Control Interfaces

6.1.3 Electrical specifications

[Interface power supply inputs] COMP1, COMN1

Input the interface power supply for contact inputs and contact outputs.

Interface type name	SA	SB
Rated voltage	12 to 24 VDC (±10%)	50VCD (±10%)

[Contact inputs] IN_ERR_RESET, IN_SERVO, IN_MODE_START, IN_ABORT, IN_MODE.0, IN_MODE.1, IN_POSW.0, IN_POSR.1, IN_GAIN, IN_FN, IN_PLS_DIRECT, IN_PACT



Interface type name	SA	SB
Rated voltage	12 to 24 VDC (± 10%)	5 VDC (± 10%)
Rated input current	4.1 mA/point (at 12 VDC) 8.5 mA/point (at 24 VDC)	4.0 mA/point (at 5 VDC)
Input impedance	3.0kΩ	1.0kΩ
Operation voltage (relative to COMP*)	At OFF 3.0VDC or less At ON 9.0VDC or more	At OFF 1.0VDC or less At ON 4.0VDC or more
Allowable leak current	OFF is guaranteed at 1.0 mA or less	

Input is ON while current flows into the photocoupler.

[Contact outputs] OUT_DRDY, OUT_SRDY, OUT_BUSY, OUT_XOVL, OUT_OVER, OUT_COIN



Interface type name	SA	SB
Rated voltage	12 to 24 VDC (± 10%)	5 VDC (± 10%)
Maximum load current	0.1A/point, 0.5 A/comn	non
ON voltage	0.5VDC or less	
Leak current at OFF	0.1mA or less	

Output is ON while the output transistor is ON.

 $[Position \ command \ pulse \ inputs] \quad PUA_IN \ \pm, \ SDB_IN \ \pm$

Connect a differential type line driver conforming to the RS422A standard, which is equivalent to AM26LS31. (There is also an open collector specification. Please contact our sales department for more details.)



[Position current pulse outputs] UA_OUT ±, DB_OUT ±, Z_OUT ± Connect a differential type line receiver conforming to the RS422A standard, which is equivalent to AM26LS32.



Output is ON when the (+) terminal has a higher voltage than the (-) terminal

[Current limit analog input] CRNT_LMT_IN \pm



6.1.4 I/O logic setting

For the contact input and contact output signals, it is possible to set the physical I/O status and the logical relationship of the driver's internal signal status in both contact and bit units.

The input signals IN*** are processed via the I/O logical conversion and are then expressed as a logical input signal ***. If the signal status is reached, it is expressed as 1 and if the status is not reached, expressed as 0. A logical output signal *** is expressed as 1 if the status is reached and 0 if the status is not reached. After conversion via the I/O logical setting, it becomes an output signal OUT ***.

The I/O logical settings at the time of shipment from the factory are set to *positive logic* for all input and output signals. In other words, the internal input and output signals are set to 1 when the corresponding contact points are turned ON. By setting the I/O logical setting for IN_SERVO to negative logic using the PC utility, it is possible to connect a PLC interface in the same state as it was shipped from the factory. As a result, an RS232C interface can be used to confirm basic operations.

Driver's internal

Refer to Chapter 8 "DrvGII PC Utility" for a description of how to set the I/O logic.

					i processing		
Logic setting	Bit I/O status	Logic signal]		Processing	1.	
Positive logic	0	Status 0	Bit input (IN_***)		by logic setting	$ \Longrightarrow \rangle$	signal (***)
setting	1	Status 1			Processing		Logical
Negative logic	0	Status 1	Bit output	<	by logic		output signal
setting	1	Status 0	(001_****)	·	setting	•	(***)

6 Control Interfaces

6.2 Position Command Pulse Input

The position command value instructed from the controller interface is given to the driver by any pair of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals, which is then reflected in the command unit command value. Which pair of the signals will be used to give a command is set with the **#204** Command pulse type parameter.



The position command value instructed from the controller interface can change the weight of a single pulse on the interface by the input signal "PLS_DIRECT." When the status of the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" is 0, a single pulse on the interface becomes the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter. While the status of the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" is 1, a single pulse on the interface is independent of the value set with the #207 Simplified scaling weighted data parameter, and becomes a single pulse inside the driver.

However, do not change the status of any of the (PLS, SIGN), (UP, DOWN) and (A, B) signals for 2 msec each before and after switching the input signal "PLS_DIRECT" (off \rightarrow on, on \rightarrow off).



6.3 Encoder Pulse Output

The position current value is output from the driver via the controller interface by either pair of the (UP, DOWN) or (A, B) signals. Which pair of the signals will be used to output is set with the **#205** *Monitor pulse type* parameter.

The encoder origin signal is independent of this setting.



6.4 **Operations**

6.4.1 Starting an Operation

The operation start command via MODE_START instructs the start of operations other than jog moves. The operation start command is issued when the status is 1.

MODE[1..0] must set the number of the operation to be performed when the operation start command is issued via MODE START. See the table below.

In addition, the value set by MODE[1..1] is read and processed 10ms after the operation start command is issued. Therefore, if deviation in time between outputs by the controller is within several msec, the motor can be started normally by setting the time earlier than the time of the operation start command issuance via MODE_START. However, note that the dead time for issuing the operation start command will be added to this duration (10ms). The total dead time until the motor starts operating is thus 10ms (scan time) + 10ms (read delay) + internal delay time.

The BUSY output retains the executing status even when an operation ends while MODE_START is giving a command (while in status 1) after an operation is started.

No.	Name	End type
0	Test operation	Non-self-end
1	Auto-tuning operation	Self-end
2	(Reserved)	
3	Homing move	Self-end

6.4.2 Aborting an Operation

The operation abort command via MODE_ABORT stops operations other than jog moves.

The operation abort command is issued when the status is 1.

The motor immediately decelerates even during an operation involving a move, and ends the operation.

6 Control Interfaces

6.4.3 Timing Charts

[Self-end type] In case of self-end



[Self-end type] In case of end by the operation abort command [Non-self-end type]



[Non-end type]



6.5 Other Inputs

6.5.1 Pulse Weight Selection PLS_DIRECT

When the status of the PLS_DIRECT pulse weight selection input signal is 1, it is independent of the **#207** *Simplified scaling weighted data* parameter; the position command pulse that is input is directly used as the internal position command pulse. For more details, see Section 5.3.2, "Switching Position Command Pulse Weights" and Section 6.2, "Position Command Pulse Input."

6.5.2 Position Control Bandwidth Selection FN

The FN position control bandwidth selection signal selects to use either #50 Position control bandwidth 1 parameter or the #48 Position control bandwidth 2 parameter for the position control bandwidth value. Position control bandwidth 2 is selected with status 1, and position control bandwidth 1 is selected with status 0.

6.5.3 Velocity Control Bandwidth Selection GAIN

The GAIN velocity control bandwidth selection signal selects to use either #51 Velocity control bandwidth 1 parameter or the #49 Velocity control bandwidth 2 parameter for the velocity control bandwidth value. Velocity control bandwidth 2 is selected with status 1, and velocity control bandwidth 1 is selected with status 0.

6.5.4 Settling Width Selection POSW [1..0]

The POSW [1..0] settling width selection signal selects to use either one of **#58** and **#45** to **#47** *Position settling width pulse 1 to 4* parameters for the settling width used as the specified range for generating settling signals.

POSW	[10]	Sottling width value
1	0	Setting width value
Status 0	Status 0	#58 Position settling width pulse 1
Status 0	Status 1	#45 Position settling width pulse 2
Status 1	Status 0	#46 Position settling width pulse 3
Status 1	Status 1	#47 Position settling width pulse 4

6.5.5 Disable Position Control Integral Operation PACT

The PACT disable position control integral operation signal disables the integral operation of the position control part.

Integral operation is disabled with status 1, and integral operation is enabled with status 0.

6.5.6 Error reset (ERR_RESET)

The error reset command, ERR_RESET, cancels an error status in the driver. It functions irrespectively of the operation mode. It can only be executed while in the idle status.

The error reset command is issued as the status 1.

Depending on the error content, there are errors that cannot be canceled or errors that cause identical errors immediately after canceling. Avoid creating a program that maintains ERR_RESET and waits until ERR, the error status output, is canceled.



6.5.7 Servo ON SERVO

The SERVO servo ON input signal is set to servo ON when the status is 1. In addition to this instruction, the actual Servo ON/OFF status is affected by the setting of the SRV DS Servo ON disable switch on the front panel. See the table below.

Servo ON/OFF SERVO	SRV DS Servo ON disable on the front panel	Actual servo status	
Status 0	Disabled		
Status 0	Enabled	Servo OFF	
Status 1	Disabled		
Status I	Enabled	Servo ON	

6.5.8 Current Limit Input

The current limit analog input signal gives a current limit from 0 to 100%, in proportion to a voltage input of 0 to 10V given by the external source. To enable this function, enable the **#206** Enabling current limit external input parameter. This parameter has been disabled by factory default setting.

Chapter 7 **RS232C** Interfaces

- 7.1 Overview
- 7.2 **Connection and Setting**
- 7.3 **Communication Specifications**
- 7.4 @ Commands
 - 7.4.1 Start @3: Field 0
 - Stop @2 Abort @1 7.4.2
 - 7.4.3
 - 7.4.4 Error reset @4 Homing offset position setting @10 7.4.5
 - Jog move command @11: Field 0 7.4.6
 - Other convenient commands 7.4.7
- 7.5 Parameter Commands

RS232C Interfaces

7.1 Overview

The CN1 RS232C communication connector is provided in order to make connection with host devices such as PCs and PLCs via the RS232C. The *operation display pendant* (abbreviated as TBX, optional device) can also be connected to this connector. Refer to Chapter 9, "Operation Display Pendant" for a description of how to use the operation display pendant. This chapter explains how to connect the CN1 RS232C communication connector to devices other than the operation display pendant.

In the RS232C interface, two communication modes are available. The first is a *single channel communication* where the connection is made 1:1 with the host device, and the other is a *multi-channel communication* where 1:N communication can be performed by connecting one host device with several of these drivers (a maximum of nine). Please note that the connection and operation methods are different for each communication mode.

In addition, the *PC utility* (optional) running under Windows can also be connected to the drivers via the RS232C interface in order to support setting, operation, and maintenance work on the drivers. Refer to Chapter 8, "DrvGII PC Utility" for a description of how to use the PC utility.

7.2 Connection and Setting

[Connectors and terminal assignment]

Made by Japan Aviation Electronics DELC-J9SAF13L6 (9 pins)

01	FG				
01	10	06			
02	RxD	00	TIDAON	1	Do
	100	07	XTBXEMG		sin
03	TxD	•••	XI B/XEMIO		000
	=	08	+5V	1	ope
04	(NC)				
	、 ,	09	SG		
05	SG				

Do not use these connections, since they are used for the operation display pendant.

[Single channel]

The connection cables (optional) are available according to the PC to be connected (DOS/V, NEC PC98).



In order to set the communication mode to the single channel mode, the rotary switch RS-ID on the front panel should be turned to "0." This setting should be made before turning the power on.

[Multi-channel]

When preparing for multi-channel communication, connect the host device and a maximum of nine drives in a loop shape as shown in the figure below.



In multi-channel communication, the host device is assigned to *host ID* "0." The drivers should be set as *slave stations* and the *IDs* should be set for each driver from "1" to "9" in such a way that the station numbers do not overlap, using the rotary switch RS-ID on each driver's front panel. The order of the IDs does not need to be the same as the order of connection. This setting should also be made before turning the power on.

7

RS232C Interfaces

7.3 Communication Specifications

[Communication parameters]

Communication method	Start-stop system, text communication
Communication speed	9600 bps
Stop bit	1 bit
Data length	8 bits
Parity	None
Terminate	CR (both transmission and reception)
Flow control	None

[Single channel and multi-channel]

	Single channel	Multi-channel
Topology	Cross	Ring
ID	Unnecessary	Host device 0
	_	Drivers 1 to 9
Destination specification	Unnecessary	Add the destination ID at the beginning of the packets
	_	From the host device to drivers: n****CR (n: slave station ID)
		From drivers to the host device: 0n****CR (n: slave station ID)

[Transmission from the host device to drivers]

The number of characters to be transmitted should be 128 letters or less, including the slave station ID, recognition key, transmission character string, and CR.

Single channel		Recognition key	Transmission character string	CR
Multi-channel	Slave station ID	Recognition key	Transmission character string	CR

[Response from drivers to the host device]

The number of response characters should be 128 letters or less, including 0, slave station ID, recognition key, transmission character string, and CR.

Single channel			Recognition Response character string		CR
Multi-channel	0	Slave station ID	Recognition key	Response character string	CR

[Recognition key]

The recognition key is a function provided so that the host device can recognize that a response is a reply to a specific transmission by the host device. A maximum of 15 "!" characters can be included in the recognition key part. If more than 15 are added, the remainder of the number divided by 16 is processed as the actual recognition key number.

When the host device transmits a message to a driver and attaches N recognition keys to the transmission character string, the driver will send a response message back in which it attaches N recognition keys to that transmission character string. If, for instance, the host device issues a transmission character string to a driver that does not generate an immediate response, the host device may issue the next transmission character string before the response is returned. In such cases, it becomes difficult for the host device to recognize to which transmission character string the response character string returned afterward is issued. In this case, by issuing transmission character string a particular response corresponds, simply by obtaining the recognition key number as the response is received.

[Transmission character string]

Transmission character strings are classified as follows. The details about the @ commands and parameter commands will be explained separately in Section 7.4, "@ Commands" and Section 7.5, "Parameter Commands."

	Explanation	Receivable status
@ commands	Commands for operating the driver	Receivable status changes depending on the command.
Parameter commands	Commands for setting parameters and reading parameter/monitor values.	Receivable status changes depending on the parameter.

[Response character string]

A response character string is structured as follows.

Response character string	Header		Prompt	: Field 1	: Field 2	: Field 3	
3		1					

Space, one character

Response character strings are classified as follows.

	Header structure	□ part	■ part	Explanation
General	R□■	Number of fields	For the field expression method; see the note.	Normal response character strings to a transmission character string. The number of fields changes depending on the content of the response.
Error	ERR□□.■	Error/alarm	e (main) Error/alarm code (sub)	Response character string to a transmission
Alarm	ALM□□.■	code (main)		character string at error and alarm. Fields never exists.

Note: In case of a general response the part of the field is expressed in one of the following ways:

- 0: In case there is no field
- D: Character string expressed in decimal
- B: Binary expression (8, 16, 32 digits)
- H: Hexadecimal expression (2, 4, 8 digits)
- S: Character string
- Z: Other than above (character string, etc.)

The following shows some examples of response character strings.

R00

- R1D Position control bandwidth: 12
- R1B Sensor group signal status: 00010000
- ERR30.0 Servo not ready
- ALM60.0 Cannot interpret command

RS232C Interfaces

7.4 @ Commands

a

Command number : Field 0 : Field 1 : Field 2

. . .

Command name	Command No.	No. of fields	Response at normal operation
Abort	1	0	
Stop	2	0	
Start	3	1	P00
Error reset	4	0	RUU
Homing offset position setting	10	0	
Jog move command	11	1	

7.4.1 Start @3: Field 0

Start commands begin operating actions other than jog moves. For argument 0, set a numeric value corresponding to the content of the operation to be performed.

A response is issued when the corresponding operation is complete. In case of operations that do not end by themselves, such as test operations, perform the next operation without waiting for the response.

Operating action name	Command	No. of fields
Test operation	@3:0	1
Auto-tuning operation	@3:1	1
Homing move	@3:3	1
Mechanical setting mode	@3:15	1

7.4.2 Stop @2

Stop commands are used to end operating actions other than jog moves. They can be issued via the RS232C interface when the setting of the operation mode has given the main operation authority to the RS232C interface. The driver's response to stop commands varies depending on the current operating action. Refer to the table below.

The response is issued immediately.

Operating action name	Driver response
Test operation	Ends the operation when the motor returns to the start position.
Auto-tuning operation	Ends the operation when the oscillation command to the motor is completed.
Homing move	Immediately decelerate and stop the move, and ends the operation.
Mechanical setting mode	Invalid because this operation cannot be completed (ignored).

7.4.3 Abort @1

The abort command stops operating actions other than jog moves. It functions irrespectively of the operation mode.

Unlike with the stop commands, the motor immediately decelerates and stops, and the operating action is ended even during an operation that involves movement. When the M function is being executed, the abort command stops the execution and ends the operating action.

The response is issued immediately.

7.4.4 Error reset @4

The error reset command cancels error statuses of the driver. It functions irrespectively of the operation mode. It can only be run while in the *idle status*.

Depending on the error content, there are errors that cannot be canceled or errors that cause the same errors again immediately after being canceled.

The response is issued immediately.

7.4.5 Homing offset position setting @10

The homing offset position setting command instructs the **#29** Offset distance from the home position parameter to auto-set so that the current motor position will become the position after homing is completed from the next time. It functions irrespectively of the operation mode. It can only be run while in the *idle* status. When the command is issued, the current command unit command value and the value of the #29 parameter at that point are added. This value is temporality stored in the #29 parameter. The response is issued immediately.

7.4.6 Jog move command @11: Field 0

The jog move command is for performing jog operations. This command can be executed in the *idle* status when the #217 Jog move operation: RS232C selection parameter is set so that operations are performed via the RS232C interface.

When field 0 contains "1" a move in the + direction is commanded, when it contains "-1" a move in the - direction is commanded, and when it contains "0," a stop command is issued.

In the idle status, a jog move is performed as commanded by this command. If a start command is issued during a jog move, the move is immediately decelerated and stopped, after which the operation is started. If the operation is ended after that, the motor remains stopped regardless of the jog move status before starting the operation.

The response is issued immediately.

7.4.7 Other convenient commands

Command name	Command No.	Number of fields	Response at normal operation
Status request	0	1	R3H
Software driver reset	96	0	None

[Status request] @0:0

This command notifies the status of the driver. It functions irrespectively of the operation mode. The response is issued immediately.

Response character string: R3H:driver status:execution program number:execution block number

Dit No	Pit No. Contont	Value	
DIL NU.	Content	0	1
0	Operation mode	PLC	RS232C
1	Servo ready	Not ready	Ready
2	Operation is being executed	Not being executed	Being executed
3	Axis operation is being executed	Not being executed	Being executed
9	Mechanical setting mode is being executed	Not being executed	Being executed
16	Error status	Not in error status	Error status
17	Alarm status	Not in alarm status	Alarm status
Others	(Reserved)		

Driver status

[Software driver reset] @96

This command is software equivalent to turning the power to the driver off and on. There is no response.

RS232C Interfaces

7.5 Parameter Commands

Through the use of parameter commands, it is possible to refer to values of parameters and monitor (*reference commands*), assign numerical values and variables to parameters (*simple setting commands*), and assigning results of arithmetic operations on numerical values and variables to parameters (*calculation result setting commands*). The response is issued immediately.

A reference command issues a transmission character string simply containing a variable given directly by $\#^{***}$. At normal operation, if a response is generated, a response character string that begins from "R1 \square " and one data is returned.

In simple setting commands and calculation result setting commands, the left-hand side must be variables expressed by #***. The right-hand side can be direct numerical values, or it can contain variables such as a parameter/monitor referred to by #***. The response at normal operation is "R00."

[Reference commands]

#□	Reads the value of parameter #□	Response character string: R1D
#□	Reads the value of monitor #□	Response character string: R1B □ : 00010000

[Simple setting commands]

#400=□	Sets ☐ to variable #400.
#400=#□	Sets the value stored in $\#\Box$ to variable $\#\Box$.

[Calculation result setting commands]

The following operands can be used:

- + Addition
- Subtraction
- * Multiplication
- / Division
- % Remainder at integer division

#0 = 0 + 0 #0 = #0 - 0 #0 = 0 * #0 #0 = #0 / #0 #0 = 0%0	Sets the result of adding \Box and \Box to variable # \Box . Sets the value obtained by subtracting \Box from the value stored in # \Box to variable # \Box . Sets the result of multiplication of \Box and the value stored in # \Box to variable # \Box . Sets the value obtained by dividing the value stored in # \Box by the value stored in # \Box to variable # \Box . Sets the remainder of \Box divided by \Box to variable # \Box .
#□ = □%□	Sets the remainder of \Box divided by \Box to variable # \Box .

Chapter 8 DrvGII PC Utility

8.1 Overview

- 8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu
- 8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu
- 8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu

8.2 Installation

- 8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000
- 8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility

8.3 Preparation

- 8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port
- 8.3.2 Selecting Channels
- 8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings
- 8.3.4 Main Menu

8.4 Operation Menu

- 8.4.1 Terminal
- 8.4.2 Servo Tuning
- 8.4.3 Oscilloscope

8.5 Action Menu

- 8.5.1 Homing
- 8.5.2 Jog Move
- 8.5.3 Test Operation

8.6 Data Management Menus

- 8.6.1 Parameter Manager
- 8.6.2 I/O Set
- 8.6.3 Pulse Set

8 DrvGll PC Utility

8.1 Overview

The DrvGII PC Utility consists of three components that are accessed from the following menus: "operation menu," "action menu," and "data management menu."

8.1.1 Overview of the Operation Menu

The operation menu contains the following three functions :

• Terminal:

This menu allows you to send and receive character strings to/from the G2 driver (hereinafter referred to as the "driver"), monitor parameters/monitors as well as errors/alarms, and use parameter/command help.

Servo control:

This menu allows you to adjust the servo parameters of the motor through auto-tuning and manual tuning. It also allows you to adjust various compensation filters.

Oscilloscope:

This function displays graphs of time-series of parameter/monitor values.

8.1.2 Overview of the Action Menu

In the action menu, you can set and display parameters, display monitors, and start or stop actions related to the operations listed below.

"Homing move," "jog move," and "Test operation."

8.1.3 Overview of the Data Management Menu

The data management menu contains the following seven functions:

• Parameter:

This function allows you to save all the parameters to files and register them from files. It also allows you to edit the machine setting parameters.

• *I/O set*:

This function allows you to set the logical setting of I/O points.

- Pulse setting: This function allows you to perform various parameter settings related to pulses.
- Absolute precision compensation:

This function allows you to edit, register, and save absolute precision compensation data. (This setting is valid if the absolute precision option is set to "yes," with which the absolute precision of the motor is compensated for the entire circumference.)

8.2 Installation

8.2.1 Installation under Windows 95/98/98SE/Me/NT4.0/2000

The DrvMII utility (hereinafter referred to as the "PC utility") runs on Windows 95, 98, 98SE, Me, NT4.0 and 2000. It can be installed via "Add/Remove Programs" under the "Control Panel" in Windows. If an older version of the PC utility is present, delete it first and then install the new version.

Display the "Properties of Adding/Removing Programs" dialog box and click "Set Up (1)." Then proceed according to the instructions displayed on the screen. The PC utility setup program starts up.

Proceed with the setup according to the instructions on the screen. A dialog box for determining the directory in which to install the PC utility appears (see Figure 8.1).

Choose Destination Loca	ation 🔀
	Setup will install DrvGII_E in the following directory. To install to this directory, click Next. To install to a different directory, click Browse and select another directory. You can choose not to install DrvGII_E by clicking Cancel to exit Setup.
	Destination Directory C:\Program Files\Yokogawa\DrvGII_E Browse

Figure 8.1 "Choose Destination Location" dialog box

Click "*Browse*" to display the "Select Directory" dialog box and select the desired drive and directory. Click "*Next*" to display "Select Program Folder" (see Figure 8.2).

8 DrvGll PC Utility

Select Program Folder		×
	Setup will add program icons to the Program Folder listed below. You may type a new folder name, or select one from the existing Folders list. Click Next to continue. Program Folders: YOKOGAWA_E Existing Folders: Accessories Internet Explorer Online Services StartUp Yokogawa YOKOGAWA_E	
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel	_

Figure 8.2 "Select Program Folder" dialog box

Select a program folder and click "*Next*." The installation begins. Follow the instructions on the screen and change disks. When the setup is completed, the "Setup Complete" dialog box appear (see Figure 8.3).

Setup Complete	
Setup Complete	Setup has finished copying files to your computer. Setup will now launch the program. Select your option below.
	Click Finish to complete Setup.
	< Back. Finish



To start the program, select "Launch program file" and click "*Finish*." If you do not want to start the program, just click "*Finish*." If you are prompted to restart the computer, simply follow the message and restart it.

8.2.2 Starting the PC Utility

In order to start the PC utility under Windows, click the "Start" button, "Program," "Specified program folder," and then "YOKOGAWA_E" The "Version Information" dialog box (see Figure 8.4) is displayed for several seconds, and the PC utility starts up. (By default, the specified program folder is "YOKOGAWA_E")

DrvGII Version Infonation	Version of the PC utility
DrvGII Version 1.2.4 Copyright (C) 2000 Yokogawa Precision Corp. OK	

Figure 8.4 "Version Information" dialog box

8 DrvGll PC Utility

8.3 Preparation

Connect the serial port of the PC with the serial port of the driver with a dedicated cable. (Do not use any of commercially available cables. Since 5V power is being output from the driver as the power supply for the operation display pendant, a breakdown may occur in the PC if such cable is used.)

8.3.1 Selecting a Communication Port

When you start the PC utility, the "ComPortSelect" dialog box appears in the left side of the screen (see Figure 8.5). Change the setting according to the communication port of the connected PC.



Figure 8.5 "ComPortSelect" dialog box

Note: Settings made in the "ComPortSelect" dialog box are stored in a file. It is not necessary to make settings from the next time you start the PC utility. Change the setting as necessary.

8.3.2 Selecting Channels

When you start the PC utility, the "Communication mode" dialog box appears in the upper left corner of the screen (see Figure 8.6). If you are using one driver, select a single channel, and if you are using multiple drivers, select multi-channel addresses. (See Chapter 7 for how to make setting on the driver side.)



Figure 8.6 "Communication mode" dialog box

Note: The settings made in the "Communication mode" dialog box are not stored. When the PC utility is started up, a single channel is always set.

8.3.3 Displaying Communication Strings

When you start the PC utility, the "Communication string" dialog box appears in the upper right corner of the screen. (See Figure 8.7.) Any strings that the PC utility sends to the driver as well as any strings received from the driver are displayed regardless of the menu.



Figure 8.7 "Communication string" dialog box

8.3.4 Main Menu

When you start the PC utility, the "MainMenu" dialog box appears (see Figure 8.8). See the following chapters for how to start the actual operation.



Figure 8.8 "MainMenu" dialog box

8.4 **Operation Menu**

8.4.1 Terminal

Using this menu, you can send and receive character strings to/from the driver, monitor parameters/monitors as well as errors/alarms, and use parameter/command help.

Click "Terminal (T)" under "MainMenu" to display the "Terminal" dialog box (see Figure 8.9).



Figure 8.9 "Terminal" dialog box

[Sending/receiving character strings]

- 1) Enter a character string in the input text field and press the Enter (Return) key. The character string is sent to the driver and, at the same time, displayed in the display text area.
- 2) When a character string is received from the driver, it is displayed in the display text area.
- 3) If you click "Resend (R)," the character string transmitted last time is sent again.
 4) If you click "Re-edit (P)," the character string transmitted last time is displayed in the input text field.
- 5) It is possible to display a maximum of ten transmitted character strings in the order of transmission in the input text field by pressing the \uparrow arrow key on the PC keyboard. By pressing the \downarrow arrow key, the character strings displayed by pressing the \uparrow arrow key can be displayed in the reverse order.

8 DrvGll PC Utility

(1) Parameter/monitor

In the "Terminal" menu, click "*Parameter/Monitor (M)*" under "Monitor" to display the "Parameter/Monitor" dialog box (see Figure 8.10).

If the number of a parameter/monitor you want to monitor is entered in the parameter/monitor number text field, the contents and values of the corresponding parameters are displayed. Up to five parameters/monitors can be monitored, and they can be switched on and off by clicking their respective switch check boxes (the update cycle of the parameter/monitor values can be shortened by decreasing the number of parameters to be monitored).



(2) I/O monitor

In the "Terminal" menu, click *"I/O Monitor (I)*" under "Monitor" to display the "I/O Monitor" dialog box (see Figure 8.11).

With the "I/O Monitor" dialog box, it is possible to monitor the on/off status of DI and DO points. It displays the status of electrical I/O signals regardless of the I/O logic setting. For reference of DI and DO numbers and signal names, see Chapter 6.



Figure 8.11 "I/O Monitor" dialog box

(3) Axis signal status display

In the "Terminal" menu, click "Axis signal status (A)" under "Monitor" to display the "Axis signal status" dialog box (see Figure 8.12).

Via the "Axis signal status" dialog box, it is possible to monitor the axis status, etc. of the driver.



Figure 8.12 "Axis signal status" dialog box

(4) Error or alarm monitor

In the "Terminal," click "*Error or Alarm (S)*" under "Monitor" to display the "Error or Alarm" dialog box (see figure 8.13).

When an error occurs, this dialog box displays "error message" and shows the error history in the display text area. When an alarm occurs, it displays "alarm message" and shows the alarm history in the display text area. In the display text area, the error history is displayed first, and a maximum of 16 errors/alarms is displayed.



Figure 8.13 "Error or Alarm" dialog box
(5) Parameter/monitor help

In the "Terminal" menu, click "*Parameter/Monitor help (H)*" under "List" to display the "Parameter/Monitor help" dialog box (see Figure 8.14).

The Parameter/Monitor help can display the contents of a maximum of ten parameters/monitors. If you click "*Prev (P)*," parameters/monitors with smaller numbers than the currently displayed parameters/monitors are displayed. If you click "*Next (N)*," parameters/monitors with larger numbers than the currently displayed parameters/monitors are displayed.

Parameter/Monitor help
1:+HOT_ErrorEnable
2:-HOT_ErrorEnable
4:AccProfeel
S:DecProfeel
7:TaccTrapezoid
8:TdecTrapezoid
9:FeedVelocity
10:JogVelocity
#11:ORG-OT_SearchVel
#12:ORG-ORG_SearchVel
_
,
Prev(P) Next(N)



(6) Command help

In the "Terminal" menu, click "*Command Help (C*)" under "List" to display the "Command Help" dialog box (see Figure 8.15).

The Command Help can display the contents of a maximum of ten commands. If you click "*Prev (P)*," commands with smaller numbers than the currently displayed commands are displayed. If you click "*Next (N)*," commands with larger numbers than the currently displayed commands are displayed.

Command Help
@1ABORT@2STOP@3:0START TEST MODE@3:1START AUTO TUNING@3:3START ORG RETURN@3:4START PROGRAM@3:7START MDI
@3:15 START MACHINE SET @4 ERR RESET @10 ORG OFFSET
Prev(P) Next(N)

Figure 8.15 "Command Help" dialog box

8.4.2 Servo Tuning

This menu allows you to adjust the servo parameters of the motor through auto-tuning and manual tuning in addition to adjust various compensation filters

Click "Servo Cntl (S)" on "MainMenu" to display the "Servo Tuning" dialog box.

Servo Tuning			×
			•
Auto Tuning Start(<u>A</u>	2		$TestMode(\underline{T})$
	*0.	.001Kg	Filter(F)
Inertia Set	Serv	70 Rigidity	
0 *0.001K; *0.001K;	gm ²	3	
Vel Gain Po: 20 Hz	s Gain Po 1 Hz	os Gain 10000	Exit(X)
PosFeedFoward Vel	FeedFoward Ac	ccFeedFoward 0 % [TorqLim 10000 *0.01%

Figure 8.16 "Servo Tuning" dialog box

- (1) Auto-tuning
 - 1) Set the operation mode to the RS232C operation enable mode, and then turn on the power (see Chapter 5).
 - 2) Set the motor to Servo ON (the operations until this point must be made before opening the "Servo Tuning" dialog box.)
 - 3) Click "Auto Tuning (A)" to start the auto-tuning.
 - Note: The motor performs reciprocating movements in order to estimate the inertia and weight of the load (the operation width of the reciprocating movement can be changed in parameter <#32>). Please make sure that there are no interfering objects within the range of the operation width.
 - 4) After performing reciprocating movement for several times, the estimation of the inertia and weight is completed and reflected in the parameter for inertia/weight.
 - * By changing the servo stiffness setting parameter, three parameters the velocity control bandwidth, position control bandwidth, and position control integral limiter are changed and thus the servo stiffness changes.
- (2) Manual tuning
 - 1) Set the operation mode to the RS232C operation enable mode, and then turn on the power (see Chapter 5).
 - 2) Set the motor to Servo ON (the operations until this point must be made before opening the "Servo Tuning" dialog box.)
 - 3) Click "Test Mode (T)" to enter the test mode.
 - Note: The motor performs small width reciprocating movements (the operation width of the reciprocating movement can be changed in parameter <#32>). Please make sure that there are no interfering objects in the range of the operation width.
 - 4) In the test mode, the driver monitors the waveform of the motor position by oscilloscope, etc., and manipulates three parameters the velocity control bandwidth, position control bandwidth, and position control integral limiter to tune the servo (see Chapter 5 for more details).

[Other parameters]

- * The three parameters position feed forward, velocity feed forward, and acceleration feed forward have no relation with servo stiffness. They are parameters for adjusting the settling time decrease.
- * The torque limiter parameter should be changed when limiting the motor torque.

(3) Filter setting

Click *"Filter (F)"* under "Servo Tuning" to display the "Filter" dialog box (see Figure 8.17). The filter setting is divided into two sections, a first order delay filter setting and a notch filter setting.

- 1) To set the first order delay filter: Select one from None, 20/80, 30/120, and 40/160.
- 2) To set the notch filter: Manipulate the frequency setting scroll bar and set.
 - Clicking the arrows at either end:
 - Clicking between the slider bar and an arrow:
 - meking between the shder bar and
- The frequency changes in steps of one.
- The frequency changes in steps of ten.

• Dragging the slider bar:

- The frequency is set to the value at the position to which the slider bar is moved.
- * Refer to Chapter 5 for how to use the filters.



Figure 8.17 "Filter" dialog box

8.4.3 Oscilloscope

The oscilloscope displays time-series of parameter/monitor values.

- Click "Oscilloscope (O)" under "MainMenu" to display the "Oscilloscope" dialog box.
- Note: The parameter/monitor information is obtained automatically from the driver when the "Oscilloscope" dialog is started. Please wait for a while until it becomes ready for use. (This operation is required only once for the initial use.)



Figure 8.18 "Oscilloscope" dialog box

[How to use the oscilloscope]

(1) Click "Log Start" on the "Oscilloscope" dialog box to display the "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box (see Figure 8.19).



Figure 8.19 "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box

- (2) Click the ↓ to select the parameters/monitors you want to display in the "source selection choice box." (CH1 to CH4)
- (3) Select a trigger mode.Free: Obtains data immediately without using the trigger.Single: Obtains data when the trigger conditions are met.
- (4) Select a trigger edge. (Valid when the trigger mode is Single.)
- (5) Click the \downarrow to select a trigger source. (Valid when the trigger mode is Single.)
- (6) Enter a trigger level. (Valid when the trigger mode is Single.)
- (7) Click the \downarrow to select a trigger position. (Valid when the trigger mode is Single.)
- (8) Click the \downarrow to select a time (horizontal axis). (The unit is msec.)
- (9) Click "Set/Start" to return to the "Oscilloscope" dialog box and wait for the completion of data acquisition.
- (10) When the data is obtained, "Start Acquisition" becomes active.
- (11) Click "Start Acquisition" to extract data from the driver and display it in the "Oscilloscope" dialog box.
- Note: If the set trigger conditions are not satisfied and "Start Acquisition" does not become active, click "Log Stop" and set the trigger conditions again.

- (12) The displayed waveform can be reshaped using "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" in the "Oscilloscope" dialog box.
 When "Auto" is clicked at this time, the "Display position selection" value is changed to "5," and the "Vertical axis range selection" value is changed automatically to a value that enables to display the entire waveform as much as possible without cutting any part of the waveform.
- (13) When "Condition and display" under "Data save" is clicked, the status set in the "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box as well as the values set by "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" can be saved by assigning a file name. In addition, when "Graph" under "Data save" is clicked, the waveform currently being displayed, the status set in the "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box, and the values set by "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" can be saved by assigning a file name.
- * The status set in the "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box as well as the values set by "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" are automatically saved in the "oscscope.cnd" file when the "Oscilloscope" dialog box is closed. When the dialog box is opened next time, it displays the previous setting values.
- (14) When "Condition and display" under "Data load" is clicked, the setting status of the "SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box as well as the values set by "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" are loaded from files, and then displayed. The waveform is cleared at this time and all values are set to 0. In addition, when "Graph" under "Data save" is clicked, the waveform data, the setting status in the

"SetCondition/ELogStart" dialog box, and the values set by "Display position selection" and "Vertical axis range selection" are loaded from files, and then a waveform is displayed.

- Note: If the trigger condition that has been set cannot be established and "Start acquisition" cannot be activated, click "Log stop" and set a new trigger condition again.
- * The simplified terminal function is provided in the "Oscilloscope" dialog box. Use this function in order to change parameter values or to start an operation.

8.5 Action Menu

In the operation menu, you can set and display parameters, display monitors, and start or stop actions related to the operations listed below. *"Homing move," "jog move,"* and *"Test operation."*

Click "Drive (D)" under "MainMenu" to display the "DriveMenu" dialog box (see Figure 8.20).

DriveMenu	×
Homing	10
Jog()	D
TestMod	le(<u>T</u>)
Exit(Ø

Figure 8.20 "DriveMenu" dialog box

8.5.1 Homing

Click "Homing (O)" in the "DriveMenu" dialog box to display the "Homing" dialog box (see Figure 8.21). If the connection with the driver is established, the current values of the related parameters are read and can be edited.

	Homin	g		
	2	tart(D) Abort(A)	Terminal(<u>T</u>)	
		$ErrReset(\underline{R})$		
	-Hon	ingFlagPosition		
	Me	asured Value 0	Pulse	
	Lir	nit 8456 ~	2114 Pulse	
Parameter number cell		Set(S) SettingValue		
	#1	+HOT_ErrorEnable	0 🔺	2) Changed value text
	#2	-HOT_ErrorEnable		field
	#4	AccProfeel		
	#S	DecProfeel	0	1)
	#7	TaccTrapezoid	1000	Parameter content
	#8	TdecTrapezoid	1000	cell
	#11	ORG-OT_SearchVel	131072	
	#12	ORG-ORG_SearchVel	131072	Parameter value cell
	#13	ORG-7 Vall	65536	
		$Exit(\underline{X})$		

Figure 8.21 "Homing" dialog box

(1) Editing parameters

- 1) Click the parameter content cell of the parameter to be changed. The current value is displayed in the changed value text field.
- 2) Enter a value in the changed value text field and click the Enter (Return) key or click another cell to make the new parameter value valid.
- 3) Repeat steps 1) and 2) as necessary and click "Set (S)" to set the changed values in the driver. If there is an error in the set value, a warning message is displayed and the parameter is read again. Parameters whose setting values are erroneous will not be changed; therefore the changed parameters should be verified.

(2) Operation

The motor can be operated when the operation mode is set to the RS232C operation enable mode (see Chapter 5). (When the RS232C operation disable mode is set, some buttons are disabled.)

[Start]

- 1) Set the motor to Servo ON (see Chapter 5).
- 2) Click "Start (D)."

 \rightarrow The measured value of the homing is displayed after the homing operation is finished.

[Abort]

1) Click "Abort (A)."

 \rightarrow The motor decelerates and stops.

[Error Reset]

1) Click "ErrReset (R)."

 \rightarrow Errors that can be recovered are canceled.

[Simplified terminal]

- 1) Click "Terminal (T)."
- 2) Send or receive character strings.

8.5.2 Jog Move

Click "Jog (J)" in the "DriveMenu" dialog box to display the "JogMove" dialog box (see Figure 8.22). If the connection with the driver is established, the current values of the related parameters are read and can be edited.

		JogMa	ove			
		S	tart + (<u>P</u>)	Stop(S)	Terminal(<u>T</u>)	
		St	tart - (<u>M</u>)	ErrReset(<u>R</u>)		
Parameter number			Set(<u>S</u>)	SettingValue	-1.	
Cell	\sim	#4	AccProfeel		0 🔺	 Changed value text field
		#5	DecProfeel		0	
		#7	TaccTrapez	pid	1000	
		#8	TdecTrapez	zoid 🔨	1000	
		#10	JogVelocity		1310720	
		#16	VelOverride	1	10000	Parameter content
	l	4 0 9	TdooTropon	Highthart		cell
				Exit(<u>X</u>)		Parameter value cel

Figure 8.22 "JogMove" dialog box

- (1) Editing parameters
 - 1) Click the parameter value cell of the parameter to be changed. The current value is displayed in the changed value text field.
 - 2) Enter a value in the changed value text field and click the Enter (Return) key or click another cell to make the new parameter value valid.
 - 3) Repeat steps 1) and 2) as necessary and click "Set (S)" to set the changed values in the driver. If there is an error in the set value, a warning message is displayed and the parameter is read again. Parameters whose setting values are erroneous will not be changed; therefore the changed parameters should be verified.

(2) Operation

The following operation can be performed when jog move is selected via the RS232C interface (see Chapter 5). (When the main operation mode is set to the PLC main operation mode, some buttons are disabled.)

[Jog move in positive direction]

- 1) Set the motor to Servo ON (see Chapter 5).
- 2) Click "Start + (P)."

[Jog move in negative direction]

- 1) Set the motor to Servo ON (see Chapter 5).
- 2) Click "Start (M)."

[Jog stop]

1) Click "Stop (S)."

[Error Reset]

1) Click *"ErrReset (R)."*

 \rightarrow Recoverable errors are canceled.

[Simplified terminal]

- 1) Click "Terminal (T)."
- 2) Send or receive character strings.

8.5.3 Test Operation

To start a test operation, click "*TestMode (T)*" under "DriveMenu." This function is the same as the 'test operation' of servo tuning.

Note: The motor performs reciprocating motions with fine width. (The operating width of reciprocating motions can be changed with the parameter <#31>.) Be sure that there are no obstacles within the range of the operating width.

8.6 Data Management Menus

8.6.1 Parameter Manager

This menu allows you to save all the parameters to files and register them from files in addition to edit the machine setting parameters.

Click "Parameter (M)" under "MainMenu" to display the "Parameter Manager" dialog box (see Figure 8.23).

Parameter Manager	×
	•
Machine ParameterEdit(<u>M</u>)	
Upload(<u>U</u>)	
Download(<u>D</u>)	
View file(⊻)	
Reset Com(<u>R</u>)	
Exit(<u>X</u>)	

Figure 8.23 "Parameter Manager" dialog box

(1) Editing machine parameters

Click "*Machine Parameter Edit (M)*" in the "Parameter Manager" dialog box to display the "MachineParameterEdit" dialog box (see Figure 8.24). If the connection with the driver is established, the current values of the machine parameters are read and can be edited.

	Machir	neParameterE dit		
		SettingValue		Changed value text
	#201	EnglishDisplay 🔫	1 🔺	field
	#202	AxisCoordinateDir	1	
	#203	UsePfbMonFilter		
	#204	CmdPlsType	2	Parameter content
	#205	MonPbType	1	Cell
	#206	ExtCurLmtEn		
Parameter number	#207	CmdWeight	4	
cell	#213	Vmax	1310720	Parameter value cel
	#218	OverloadErrorEn	1	
	# 219	UseVfbFilter	0	
	# 220	VfbFilterFreq	1000	
	#221	VcmdFilterFreq	1000	
	# 222	OverSpeedErrorEn	1 💌	
		Set(S) Exi	t(<u>X</u>)	

Figure 8.24 "MachineParameterEdit" dialog box

[Editing]

- 1) Click the parameter value cell of the parameter to be changed. The current value is displayed in the changed value text field.
- 2) Enter a value in the changed value text field and click the Enter (Return) key or click another cell to make the new parameter value valid.
- 3) Repeat steps 1) and 2) as necessary and click "Set (S)" to start downloading to the driver. (If you click "Exit (X)," the parameter values are not changed.)
- 4) When the downloading is finished, follow the message and reset the driver.
- Note: If any erroneous data are set, the parameters that could not be downloaded are displayed. In this case, reset the driver once and set the parameters again.
- Note: In the case of the machine setting parameters, the changed values cannot be updated until you reset the driver.
- (2) Uploading (from the driver to a file)
 - 1) Click "Upload (U)" in the "Parameter Manager" dialog box.
 - 2) Enter the name of the file to which parameters are to be saved. Do not enter a file extension (*.prm); it is added automatically.
 - 3) Click "Save (S)" to start uploading. If you wish to stop the uploading, click "Cancel."

- (3) Downloading (from a file to the driver)
 - 1) Click "Download (D)" in the "Parameter Manager" dialog box.
 - 2) Enter the name of the file to be downloaded to the driver. Do not enter a file extension (*.prm); it is added automatically.
 - 3) Click "Open (O)" to start downloading. If you wish to stop the downloading, click "Cancel."
 - 4) When the downloading is finished, follow the message and reset the driver.
- (4) Displaying the file contents
 - 1) Click "View file (V)" in the "Parameter Manager" dialog box.
 - 2) Enter the name of the file you want to display. Do not enter a file extension (*.prm); it is added automatically.
 - 3) Click "Open (O)" to begin displaying the file contents in the "Parameter file display" dialog box (see Figure 8.25).
 - 4) If you want to print the file, click "Print (P)."
 - 5) Click "Exit (X)" and return to the "Parameter Manager" dialog box.

View parameter file		×	
[ROM_Version] ID : R7033SE KerVer : 2.12 AppVer : 2.12 CpuFRom : ecf2 ExtFRom : 21c1 IFB : 100			- Upload information
[MotorType] DM1004C1 Std X Date : 2001.06.11			Uploaded parameter value
Inme : Usi42 EnglishDisplay AxisCoordinateDir UsePfbMonFilter CmdPlsType MonPlsType ExtCurLmtEn ExtCurLmtEn CmdWeight Vmax OverloadErrorEn UseVfbFilter VfbFilterFreq	#201= #203= #204= #205= #206= #207= #213= #218= #219= #220=	1 0 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 2 1 1 1 1	
	Print(P)	Exit(X)	

Figure 8.25 "Parameter file display" dialog box

(5) Resetting the communication

If the communication with the driver finishes abnormally, click "*Reset Com (R)*" in the "Parameter Manager" dialog box to return to the normal status.

8.6.2 I/O Set

In this menu, you can set the logical setting of DI/DO points (For reference of DI and DO numbers and signal names, see Chapter 6.).

Click "I/O set (I)" under "MainMenu" to display the "I/O configuration" dialog box (see Figure 8.26).

170	configuration 🗵
	$U_pLoad(\underline{U})$
	DownLoad(D)
	I/O config(<u>L</u>)
	Exit(X)

Figure 8.26 "I/O configuration" dialog box

(1) Logical setting

- 1) Click "I/O config (L)" in the "I/O configuration" dialog box.
- 2) The "Discrete configuration" dialog box is displayed and the current setting status is read. (The maximum number of setting statuses that can be displayed at once is 32 points for both DI and DO.)



Figure 8.27 "Discrete configuration" dialog box

- 3) Click a number you want to display from the selection text field in order to display the logical setting of that number.
- 4) Click the check boxes of the I/O points to change the logical setting.
- Note: An I/O point with a check mark is set to positive logic (A contact) and an I/O without a check mark is set to negative logic (B contact).
- 5) Click "Set (S)."
- 6) When the setting is completed, follow the message and reset the driver.
- (2) Uploading (from the driver to a file)
 - 1) Click "Upload (U)" in the "I/O configuration" dialog box.
 - 2) Enter the name of the file to which I/O configuration is to be saved. Do not enter a file extension (*.ioc); it is added automatically.
 - 3) Click "Save (S)" to start uploading. If you wish to stop the uploading, click "Cancel."

- (3) Downloading (from a file to the driver)
 - 1) Click "Download (D)" in the "I/O configuration" dialog box.
 - 2) Enter the name of the file to be downloaded to the driver. Do not enter a file extension (*.ioc); it is added automatically.
 - 3) Click "Open (O)" to start downloading. If you wish to stop the downloading, click "Cancel."
 - 4) When the downloading is finished, follow the message and reset the driver.

8.6.3 Pulse Set

- (1) Pulse setting
 - 1) Click "Puls Config (P)" in the "Main Menu" dialog box.
 - 2) The "Puls configuration" dialog box is displayed and the current setting status is read.

Pulse configuration		×
Axis Coordinate Directory Default	Command Weight	
Command Pulse Type PLS, SIGN	Set(<u>S</u>)	
Monitor Pulse Type A, B	Exit(X)	

Figure 8.28 "Puls configuration" dialog box

- 3) Select the parameter from the combobox.
- 4) Click "Set (S)" to start downloading the selected parameter to the driver.
- 5) When the downloading is finished, follow the message and reset the driver.

Chapter 9 Operation Display Pendant

- 9.1 Overview
- 9.2 Features and Part Names
- 9.3 Switching Displays
- 9.4 Terminal Mode Display
- 9.5 Parameter Monitor Display
- 9.6 Parameter Settings Display
- 9.7 I/O Monitor Display
- 9.8 Special Command Display

9 Operation Display Pendant

9.1 Overview

The operation display pendant (abbreviated as TBX, optional device) should be connected to the CN1 RS232C communication connector. It is set to the same status as the single channel communication in the RS232C interface, regardless of the setting status of the rotary switch RS-ID on the front panel. The following functions are provided for the operation display pendant.

• Terminal mode display:

In this display, you can send @ commands and parameter commands in the same way as with the RS232C interface and display response character strings.

- **Parameter monitor display:** In this display the updated contents of parameters/monitors referred to by #*** can be displayed repeatedly.
- **Parameter settings display:** In this display, you can make changes to parameters referred to by #***, if they can be written to.
- *I/O monitor display:* In this display the updated I/O status of the PLC interface and the signal status of the TB2 sensor/break can be displayed repeatedly.
- **Special command display:** In this display, you can issue common commands in a simple manner.
- **Program menu display:** In this display, you can edit, copy, and delete programs.

9.2 Features and Part Names



9.3 Switching Displays

Each display shifts in the order shown in the figure below. When the power is turned on and the operation display pendant is connected, the initial screen shows the terminal mode display. Each display of the program menu display can be accessed by selecting edit (EDT), copy (CPY), or delete (DEL).



9 Operation Display Pendant

9.4 Terminal Mode Display

The terminal mode display allows you to send a character string entered from the keypad to the driver and display the response character string in the display.

In the example below, "#50" is input in display 2) and the response character string "R1D position bandwidth:12" is shown in display 3).

In the response character string display, the header part of a response character string (e.g., R00, ALM^{**}, *) is not displayed. Even though the cursor is not displayed, hidden parts can be horizontally scrolled through and displayed by pressing the \leftarrow and \rightarrow keys.

The cursor is displayed by pressing the input key (a key that allows character input when pressed), or the \uparrow and \downarrow keys. Once it is displayed, you can enter character strings.



9.5 Parameter Monitor Display

The current values of parameters/monitors with the numbers input from the keypad are displayed periodically. It is not necessary to press the Return in order to set a number.

In the previous example of display 2), parameter number "50" is entered to display the prompt character string of that parameter/monitor. When the f2 DATA key is pressed here, display 3) appears and displays the current value of the parameter/monitor.

If a nonexistent number is entered, both the data and comment displays show the comment in display 4).

f2 DATA:

1) Initial display

	# <u>0</u> -№	01:+HOT_ErrEn Ion- DATA N/P
2) Di	spla	Cursor ying comment

CMNT: f3 N:	To the comment (prompt) display To the next display
f7 P:	To the previous display
0 to 9:	Each character is entered.
\leftarrow and \rightarrow keys:	Moves the cursor on the parameter/monitor number to the left or right.
\uparrow and \downarrow keys:	Increases/decreases the numeric value of the digit indicated with the cursor.

Switches display; to the data display

3) Displaying data

#050: 12 -Mon- CMNT N/P

#050: Position bandwidth -Mon- DATA N/P

4) Displaying comment (when a number does not exist)



9 Operation Display Pendant

9.6 Parameter Settings Display

This display is for changing the values of parameters.

When you input a parameter number from the keypad, the display shows a prompt for the parameter when comments are being displayed, and the current value of the parameter when data is being displayed.

When data is being displayed, it is possible to move the cursor to the data setting area using the \leftarrow and \rightarrow keys. In the data setting area (sign part), it is possible to reverse the sigh by pressing the – key. In the data setting area (absolute value part), the setting value can be set using the numeric keys as well as the \uparrow and \downarrow keys. When you press the Return key, the entered data is set as the parameter value of the parameter number (the Return key is accepted only when data is being displayed).

When the data is set, the setting result is displayed. If it is set normally, the display shows "OK!" If it failed to set, the display shows "NG! [ERROR ALARM CODE]". When you press the f2 DATA key, the display switches to the data display; when you press the numeric keys or the \uparrow and \downarrow keys, it switches to the comment display. In the previous example of display 2), the parameter number "50" is entered to display the prompt character string of that parameter/monitor. If the f2 DATA key is pressed here, display 3) appears and displays the current value of the parameter/monitor. Display 4) shows the status in which the cursor is moved and data is input from the keypad. When the Return key is pressed here, the setting result is displayed as in display 5).

If a nonexistent number is entered, both the data and comment displays show the comment in display 6). In addition, if you input a parameter that exists but cannot be written to, the data display (but not the comment display) changes similarly to display 6).



9.7 I/O Monitor Display

The I/O signal status of the blocks with numbers input from the keypad for the selected I/O type is displayed periodically. It is not necessary to press the Return key in order to set a number. There are three types of I/O that can be selected: "Ctl I," "Ctl 0," and "Drv I." You can switch among them by pressing the f2/f6 SEL key.

In the previous example of display 2), block number "1" is entered to display the signal status of Ctl DI block 1. If the f2/f6 SEL key is pressed here, the display changes similarly to display 3) and switches to the Ctl DO display.



9

Operation Display Pendant 9

Special Command Display 9.8

In this display, you can transmit selected commands to the controller.

The selection of the commands you can choose from depends on the main operation mode. They can be switched by pressing the f2/f6 SEL key.

When you select a command from the list and press the Return key, it is transmitted to the controller and the result of the command is shown in the display. By pressing the f2/f6 SEL key, it is switched to the command content display.

In the previous example of display 2), command "toMode15" is selected. When you press the Return key, this command is transmitted to the controller and the result of the command is displayed in display 3).

Command	Display			
Abort	CMD:Abort			
Error reset	CMD:RstErr			
Servo ON	CMD:SrvOn			
Servo OFF	CMD:SrvOff			
Mechanical setting operation start	CMD:toMode15			
Software driver reset	CMD:RstDrive			
Motor type request	CMD:MotorType			
ROM version request	CMD:ROM Version			
Error status request/refresh	CMD:RefErrSts			

1) Initial display

CMD:Abort -Spc- SEL N/P	f2 SEL: f3 N: f6 SEL: f7 P:	Switches command (positive). To the next display Switches command (opposite). To the previous display
Displaying command	Return key:	Transmits the selected command to the driver.

2) Displaying command



3) Displaying command result



Chapter 10 Maintenance and Inspection

- 10.1 Maintenance and Inspection of the Motor Part
- 10.2 Maintenance and Inspection of the Driver Part
- 10.3 Replacing the Battery for Memory Backup
- 10.4 Backup and Restore Operations of Driver Memory Contents
 - 10.4.1 Backup Operation
 - 10.4.2 Restore Operation
- 10.5 Motor Problems and Corrective Actions

10 Maintenance and Inspection

10.1 Maintenance and Inspection of the Motor Part

Simple daily checks need be performed on the motor part. Check the motor for excessive noise or abnormal vibration.

Do not dismount the motor.

If the motor operates abnormally <u>after 20,000 hours of operation or five years since installation</u>, depending on the environment and conditions used, replace the motor, and also the servo driver if necessary.

10.2 Maintenance and Inspection of the Driver Part

There is no need for a daily maintenance and inspection of the driver part. However, it is prudent to clean the driver unit periodically to protect it from dust or particles since they may damage insulation.

10.3 Replacing the Battery for Memory Backup

A lithium battery is provided inside the driver in order to store parameter data in memory. The life span of the lithium battery is normally 20,000 hours.

When the battery reaches the end of its life, an alarm signal will be displayed. When this happens, replace the battery as soon as possible.

The following describes the procedure used to replace the battery:

- 1) Back up parameters, programs, cam data and other important data stored in memory to flash ROM before replacing the battery. (For details on memory backup, see Section 10.4.)
- 2) Turn OFF the power.
- 3) Remove the six screws located on the side panel of the driver. (See the figure below.)



- 4) Replace the battery quickly (within 10 seconds).
- 5) Check the connection and turn ON the power. If no error is displayed, the battery has been replaced correctly.
- Note 1: If a battery error is displayed, it is necessary to reset the system after replacing the battery. In this case, parameters and other data must be set again.
- Note 2: Be sure to use <<u>CR2032> 3V</u> or equivalent battery. Be careful on the front and back orientation of the battery.

10.4 Backup and Restore Operations of Driver Memory Contents

Be sure to back up the driver memory contents in case of the occurrence of problems. If a problem occurs in the driver memory contents, it may become necessary to initialize (all reset) the driver to the same settings at the time of shipment from the factory. If the driver memory contents have been backed up in such a case, the driver memory contents can easily be restored to the factory settings.

10.4.1 Backup Operation

It is recommended to back up the driver memory contents to a file using the PC utility as well as to back up the driver memory contents to the driver's built-in flash ROM.

[Backup to a file using the PC utility]

Using the PC utility, back up the driver memory contents to an electronic file in the personal computer. Perform the following backup operation using the PC utility:

- Parameters upload
- Programs upload (batch)
- Index equal division compensation upload (batch)
- Index unequal division upload (batch)
- Parts upload (batch)
- I/O settings upload

[Backup to the driver's built-in flash ROM]

Back up the driver memory contents to the on-board flash ROM by copying the driver memory contents to the driver's built-in flash ROM in a batch operation.

Set the slide switch on the front panel as shown in the figure below, and turn ON the power. When the CRDY lamp flashes after several seconds, the backup operation is completed.



10 Maintenance and Inspection

10.4.2 Restore Operation

The restore operation uses either of the backup data that was copied to a file via the PC utility or that was copied to the driver's built-in flash ROM. Perform either of the following restore operations:

[Restore using the PC utility]

Using the PC utility, restore the backed up driver memory contents to an electronic file in the personal computer to the driver. Perform the following restore operation using the PC utility:

- Parameters download
- Programs download (batch)
- Index equal division compensation download (batch)
- Index unequal division download (batch)
- Parts download (batch)
- I/O settings download

[Restore from the driver's built-in flash ROM]

Restore the driver memory contents from the on-board flash ROM by copying the driver memory contents to the driver's built-in flash ROM in a batch operation.

Set the slide switch on the front panel as shown in the figure below, and turn ON the power. When the CRDY lamp flashes after several seconds, the restore operation is completed.



10.5 Motor Problems and Corrective Actions

When an abnormality occurs during motor operation, first check the LED display as well as the error display LED (7 segments) on the front panel of the driver.

If the cause of the problem cannot be determined by the indication of the LED display, take an appropriate corrective action as provided below.

If the driver is still not be able to return to a normal operating condition despite corrective actions taken, stop operating the drive and contact us.

Problem		Possible cause	Item(s) to be inspected	Corrective action	
	٠	No AC power is being supplied.	Check the wiring.	Turn on the power.	
	•	The servo ON terminal is set to H.	Inspect.	Set to L.	
The motor does not	٠	The Servo ON disable (SRVDS) button is being pressed.	Inspect.	Release the button.	
	•	Position control bandwidth, velocity control bandwidth, and/or position integral limiting value are too small.	Inspect.	Adjust to the proper value(s) or perform auto-tuning.	
	٠	Motor is overloaded.	Check to see if the motor operates without any load.	Reduce the load or replace a motor with higher torque if the motor starts.	
The motor does not start.	٠	Incorrect external wiring	Inspect the wiring.	Refer to the connection diagram and connect correctly.	
	•	Position control bandwidth, velocity control bandwidth, and/or position integral limiting value are too small.	Inspect.	Adjust to the proper value(s) or perform auto-tuning.	
The motor rotation	٠	Improper connections	Check the motor connections in phases A, B, C, and GND.	Refer to the connection diagram and connect correctly.	
is unstable.	•	Incorrect motor/driver model combination	Check the model numbers on the rating nameplates.	If the combination is incorrect, change to the correct combination.	
The motor	٠	Ambient temperature is too high.	Check if the ambient temperature is above 45°C.	Lower the ambient temperature to $45^\circ\!\!\!\mathrm{C}$ or less.	
overheats.	•	Motor is overloaded.	Check to see if the motor operates without any load.	Reduce the load or replace a motor with higher torque if the motor starts.	
	٠	Improper mounting	Mounting screws are loosened.	Tighten the screws.	
Abnormal sounds are generated.	٠	Bearing problem	Check for abnormal sound and vibration from the bearings.	Motor replacement is necessary. (Contact us.)	
	٠	Mounting base vibration	Check the mounting base.	Reinforce the mounting base.	
	•	Incorrect motor/driver model combination	Check the model numbers on rating nameplates.	If the combination is incorrect, change it to the correct combination.	
Motor torque is too	٠	Motor is overloaded.	Check the OVL error signal.	Review the operation. Reduce the load.	
	•	Position control bandwidth, velocity control bandwidth, and/or position integral limiting value are too small.	Inspect.	Adjust to the proper value(s) or perform auto-tuning.	
Motor runs out of	•	Incorrect motor/driver model combination	Check the model numbers on rating nameplates.	If the combination is incorrect, change it to the correct combination.	
control.	•	Improper connections	Check the motor/encoder connections	Refer to the connection diagram and connect correctly.	

Chapter 11 Specifications

- 11.1 Standard Specifications
- 11.2 Torque Speed Characteristics
- 11.3 External Dimensions (Unit: mm)
- 11.4 Restrictive Conditions for the Frequency of Repeated Operations (DR5000B Series Only)

11.1 Standard Specifications

(1) DM Series Motor

						A Se	A Series			
		Item		Unit	DM1200A	DM1150A	DM1100A	DM1050A		
Maximum output torque					00*1	00*1	00*1	00*1		
Motor + driver	Maximum o	utput tor	que	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	200 (20)	150 (15)	100 (10)	50 (5.0)		
	Rated number of revolutions (100/200V)			rps	0.5/1.0 1.0/1.0			′1.0		
	Detetional	Encoder resolution		p/rev	4,096,000					
	nositioning	Repeatability accuracy		Sec	±1					
	poolitioning	Absolute accuracy		Sec	±15					
	Rotor inertia			kg⋅m²	167 x 10⁻³	142 x 10 ⁻³	119 x 10⁻³	96 x 10 ⁻³		
	Allowable axial load		Positive	NL (kaf)	4 x 10 ⁴ (4 x 10 ³)					
			Negative	in (kgi)	2 x 10 ⁴ (2 x 10 ³)					
	Allowable m	noment lo	bad	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	400 (40)					
Motor	Axial displace	cement	Positive	mm/N	2 x 10 ⁻⁶ (2 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
WIOtor	rigidity		Negative	(mm/kgf)	3 x 10⁻⁶ (3 x 10⁻⁵)					
	Moment displacement rigidity			rad/ N⋅m	4 x 10 ⁻⁷					
	woment us	moment displacement rigidity			(4 x 10 ⁻⁶)					
	Mass			kg	29	24	19	14.5		
	Height (refe	r to dime	ension diagram)	mm	188	163	138	113		

				B Series						
	Item		Unit	DM1075B 00*1	DM1060B 00*1	DM1045B 00*1	DM1030B 00*1	DM1015B 00*1		
	Maximum output tor	N·m (kgf·m)	75 (7.5)	60 (6.0)	45 (4.5)	30 (3.0)	15 (1.5)			
	Rated number of rev (100/200V)	rps	1.0/2.0	1.0/1.5	1.0/2.0	1.5/2.0	2.0/2.0			
Motor +		Encoder resolution	p/rev	2,621,440						
driver	Rotational positioning	Repeatability accuracy	Sec	Sec ±1						
		Absolute accuracy	Sec	±15						
	Rotor inertia	kg⋅m²	27 x 10 ⁻³	23 x 10 ⁻³	19 x 10 ⁻³	15 x 10⁻³	12 x 10⁻³			
	Allowable axial	Positive	N (kaf)	3 x 10 ⁴ (3 x 10 ³)						
	load	Negative	N (Kgi)	1 x 10 ⁴ (1 x 10 ³)						
	Allowable moment le	oad	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	200 (20)						
Motor	Axial displacement Positive		mm/N	2.5 x 10 ⁻⁶ (2.5 x 10 ⁻⁵)						
WOU	rigidity	Negative	(mm/kgf)	3 x 10 ⁻⁶ (3 x 10 ⁻⁵)						
	Moment displacement rigidity		rad/ N⋅m (rad/kgf⋅m)		1 x 10 ⁻⁶ (1 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
	Mass	Mass			12	9.5	7.5	5.5		
	Height (refer to dime	mm	194	168	143	118	92.5			

Motor model name	DM1004B0F-2□*1	DM1004C0F-2□*1			
Maximum torque (N·m)	4				
Maximum number of revolutions (rps)	2.5				
Encoder resolution (p/rev)	2,621,440				
Absolute accuracy (sec)	Note				
Repeatability accuracy (sec)	±3				
Axial rotational deflection (µm) _{p-p}	1	0			
Radial rotational deflection (µm) _{p-p}	1	0			
Rotor inertia (kg·m ²)	5.5 x 10 ⁻³ 2.5 x 10 ⁻³				
Withstand load (N)	50				
Mass (kg)	3 3				

Note: \Box : A/Absolute accuracy ±20 sec, B/Absolute accuracy ±60 sec

11 Specifications

(2) DR Series Motor

Item					A Series						
				Unit	DR1400 A00*1	DR1300 A00*1	DR1200 A00*1	DR1150 A00*1	DR1100 A00*1	DR1050 A00*1	
	Maximum output torque			N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	400 (40)	300 (30)	200 (20)	150 (15)	100 (10)	50 (5.0)	
Motor	Rated number of revolutions (100/200V)			rps	0.25	0.25/0.5 0.5/1.0 1.0/1.0 1.5/1					
+		Enco	der resolution	p/rev			1,638	3,400			
driver	Rotational positioning	Repeatability accuracy		Sec		±3					
		Absolute accuracy		Sec		±30					
	Rotor inertia			kg⋅m²	400x10 ⁻³	340x10 ⁻³	285x10 ⁻³	230x10 ⁻³	200x10 ⁻³	180x10 ⁻³	
	Allowable axial Positive		Positive	NL (kaf)	4 x 10 ⁴ (4 x 10 ³)						
	load		Negative	in (kgi)	2 x 10 ⁴ (2 x 10 ³)						
	Allowable moment load			N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	400 (40)						
	Axial		Positive	mm/N	2 x 10 ⁻⁶ (2 x 10 ⁻⁵)						
Motor	displacement rigidity		Negative	(mm/kgf)		3 x 10 ⁻⁶ (3 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
	Moment displacement rigidity		rad/ N⋅m (rad/kgf⋅m)		4 x 10 ⁻⁷ (4 x 10 ⁻⁶)						
	Mass			kg	65	55	45	36	31	26	
	Height (refe diagram)	r to din	nension	mm	358	304	250	212	185	158	

Item					B Series					
				Unit	DR1060 B00*1	DR1045 B00*1	DR1030 B00*1	DR1015 B00*1	DR1008 B00*1	
	Maximum o	utput to	orque	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	60 (6.0)	45 (4.5)	30 (3.0)	15 (1.5)	8 (0.8)	
Motor	Rated number of revolutions (100/200V)			rps	1.0/1.5 1.0/2.0 1.5/2.0 2.0/2.0					
+		Encoder resolution		p/rev			1,015,808			
driver	Rotational positioning	Repeatability accuracy		Sec		±3				
		Absolute accuracy		Sec		±45				
	Rotor inertia			kg⋅m²	33 x 10 ⁻³	26 x 10 ⁻³	24 x 10 ⁻³	21 x 10 ⁻³	15 x 10 ⁻³	
	Allowable axial load		Positive	N (kaf)	3 x 10 ⁴ (3 x 10 ³)					
			Negative	N (Kgi)	1 x 10 ⁴ (1 x 10 ³)					
	Allowable moment load			N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	200 (20)					
	Axial	Positive		mm/N	m/N 3 x 10 ⁻⁶ (3 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
Motor	displacemer rigidity	nt	Negative	(mm/kgf)	4 x 10 ⁻⁶ (4 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
	Moment displacement rigidity		rad/ N⋅m (rad/kgf⋅m)		2 x 10 ⁻⁶ (2 x 10 ⁻⁵)					
	Mass			kg	15.5	13.0	11.0	9.0	6.0	
	Height (refer to dimension diagram)			mm	207	179	151	123	85	
						E Series				
---------------------------	--	--	---	---	---	--	---	--		
lte	em		Unit	DR1250E	DR1220E	DR1160E	DR1130E	DR1100E		
				00*1	00*1	00*1	00*1	00*1		
Maximum out	put tor	que	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)	250 (25)	220 (22)	160 (16)	130 (13)	100 (10)		
Rated number	r of rev	volutions	rps		0.5	/1.0		1.0/1.5		
(100/200V)	-					-				
	Enco	der resolution	p/rev			1,228,800				
Rotational positioning	Repe accu	eatability racy	Sec			±3				
	Abso	olute accuracy	Sec			±45				
Rotor inertia			kg∙m²	185 x 10 ⁻³	170 x 10 ⁻³	140 x 10 ⁻³	125 x 10 ⁻³	100 x 10 ⁻³		
Allowable axia	al	Positive	NL (kof)		4	x 10 ⁴ (4 x 10	³)	•		
load		Negative	in (kgi)		2	x 10 ⁴ (2 x 10) ³)			
Allowable mor	ment l	oad	N⋅m (kgf⋅m)			400 (40)				
Axial displace	ment	Positive	mm/N		2	x 10⁻⁰ (2 x 10) ⁻⁵)			
rigidity		Negative	(mm/kgf)		3	x 10⁻⁰ (3 x 10) ⁻⁵)			
Momont diank		nt rigidity	rad/ N⋅m			4 x 10 ⁻⁷				
Moment displa	aceme	Intrigiality	(rad/kgf⋅m)			(4 x 10⁻ ⁶)				
Mass			kg	48	44	36	32	26		
Height (refer t	o dime	ension diagram)	mm	355	327	271	243	210		
	Ite Maximum out Rated numbe (100/200V) Rotational positioning Rotor inertia Allowable axia load Allowable axia load Axial displace rigidity Moment displ Mass Height (refer f	Item Maximum output tor Rated number of rev (100/200V) Rotational Repe positioning Allowable axial load Allowable moment I Axial displacement rigidity Moment displacement Height (refer to dime	Item Maximum output torque Rated number of revolutions (100/200V) Rotational positioning Encoder resolution Rotational positioning Encoder resolution Rotational positioning Repeatability accuracy Absolute accuracy Absolute accuracy Atlowable axial load Positive Allowable moment load Negative Axial displacement rigidity Positive Negative Moment displacement rigidity Negative Mass Height (refer to dimension diagram)	ItemUnitMaximum output torqueN·m (kgf·m)Rated number of revolutions (100/200V)rpsRotational positioningEncoder resolutionp/revRotational positioningEncoder resolutionp/revRotational positioningEncoder resolutionp/revRotational positioningPoetability accuracySecRotor inertiaPositive accuracySecAllowable axial loadPositive N (kgf)N (kgf)Allowable moment loadPositive NegativeN·m (kgf·m)Axial displacement rigidityPositive N (kgf)mm/N (mm/kgf)Moment displacement rigidityrad/ N·m (rad/kgf·m)kgMasskgkg	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c } & \label{eq:constraint} \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c } & \label{eq:constraint} \end{tabular} $	$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c } \hline Item & Unit & Unit & DR1250E & DR1220E \\ \hline 00^{*1} & 00^{*1} & 00^{*1} \\ \hline 00^{*1} & 250 & (25) & 220 & (22) \\ \hline Rated number of revolutions & rps & 250 & (25) & 220 & (22) \\ \hline Rated number of revolutions & rps & 0.5 & 0.5 \\ \hline (100/200V) & Repeatability & Sec & & & & \\ \hline Rotational & Repeatability & Sec & & & & \\ \hline Rotaccuracy & Sec & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & & & & & & & \\ \hline Rotor inertia & Repeatability & Sec & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c } \hline Item & Unit & Unit & Unit & Item & Item & Unit & Item & $	$ \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c } & \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c } & & \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c } & & \begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		

					E Se	eries
Item				Unit	DR1070E	DR1030E
					00*1	00*1
	Maximum out	out tor	que	N·m (kgf·m)	70 (7.0)	30 (3.0)
Motor	Rated number (100/200V)	of rev	volutions	rps	1.5/2.0	1.5/2.0
+		Enco	der resolution	p/rev	1,228	3,800
driver	Rotational positioning	Repe accu	eatability racy	Sec	±	3
		Absc	lute accuracy	Sec	±4	45
	Rotor inertia			kg⋅m²	85 x 10 ⁻³	72 x 10 ⁻³
	Allowable axia	al	Positive	NL (kaf)	4 x 10 ⁴	(4 x 10 ³)
	load		Negative	IN (KgI)	2 x 10 ⁴	(2 x 10 ³)
	Allowable mor	nent l	oad	N·m (kgf·m)	400	(40)
Motor	Axial displace	ment	Positive	mm/N	2 x 10⁻ ⁶	(2 x 10⁻⁵)
WOLDI	rigidity		Negative	(mm/kgf)	2 x 10⁻ ⁶	(3 x 10⁻⁵)
	Moment displ	acomo	ont rigidity	rad/ N·m	4 x	10 ⁻⁷
	woment uspic	aceme	ant rigitity	(rad/kgf⋅m)	(4 x	10 ⁻⁶)
	Mass			kg	22	18
	Height (refer t	o dime	ension diagram)	mm	183	156

Specifications

(3) DR/5000 Series Motor

					5000 E	Series	Ę	5000 B Serie	S
	lte	em		Unit	DR5100E 00*1	DR5070E 00*1	DR5070B 00*1	DR5050B 00*1	DR5030B 00*1
	Maximum out	put tor	que	N·m (kgf·m)	100 (10)	70 (7.0)	70 (7.0)	50 (5.0)	30 (3.0)
Motor	Rated number (100/200V)	r of rev	volutions	rps	/2	2.0		/4.0	
+		Enco	der resolution	p/rev	638	,976		557.056	
driver	Rotational positioning	Repe accu	eatability racy	Sec	±	-4		±5	
		Abso	lute accuracy	Sec	±	90		±90	
	Rotor inertia			kg∙m²	125 x 10⁻³	100 x 10⁻³	37 x 10 ⁻³	34 x 10 ⁻³	27 x 10⁻³
	Allowable axia	al	Positive	NL (kaf)	4 x 104 ⁴	(4 x 10 ³)	3	x 10 ⁴ (3 x 10	D ³)
	load		Negative	in (kgi)	2 x 10 ⁴	(2 x 10³)	1	x 10 ⁴ (1 x 10	D ³)
	Allowable more	ment l	oad	N·m (kgf·m)	400	(40)		200 (20)	
Motor	Axial displace	ment	Positive	mm/N	2 x 10 ⁻⁶	(2 x 10⁻⁵)	3	x 10⁻ੰ (3 x 10	D ⁻⁵)
WOO	rigidity		Negative	(mm/kgf)	3 x 10⁻6	(3 x 10⁻⁵)	4	x 10⁻⁰ (4 x 10	D ⁻⁵)
	Moment displa	aceme	ent rigidity	rad/ N⋅m (rad/kgf⋅m)	4 x (4 x	10⁻ ⁷ 10⁻ ⁶)		2 x 10⁻⁵ (2 x 10⁻⁵)	
	Mass			kg	32	26	18.0	16.0	13.5
	Height (refer t	o dime	ension diagram)	mm	243	210	240	212	184

(4) Motor Environment Specification

		Motor	Comment
Ambient	Temperature	0 to 45°C	
operating conditions	Humidity	20 to 85% R.H	Should have no condensation.
Ambient	Temperature	-20 to 85°C	
storage conditions	Humidity	20 to 85% R.H	Should have no condensation.
Operating e	environment	No corrosive gashould be pres	ases and dust ent.



(5) Driver Part (General Specifications)

Туре	500W	/ type		2kW	type	
Model name]DAD-*DD_]DBD-*DD_	VOODOOC	JOKO-*00_	VOODOOD]0L0-*00_
Input power supply voltage	100 to 115V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz	200 to 230V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz	100 to 115V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz	200 to 230V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz	100 to 115V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz	200 to 230V AC + 10%, -15% 50Hz/60Hz
Maximum current consumption (KVA)	0	.8	3	.4	3	.4
Ambient operating air temperature and humidity		0 to 50°	C, 20 to 90% RI	H, without cond	ensation	
Ambient storage air temperature and humidity		-20 to 85	°C, 20 to 90% F	RH, without con	densation	
Operating environment		No corro	sive gases and	dust should be	present.	
Mass (kg)	1.	.7	3	.6	3	.2

* Input voltage 100 to 115V AC: 1, 200 to 230V AC: 2

Note: The 20A-type driver requires the derating as indicated in the figure above for the current square duty, depending on the ambient temperature during operation. (For motors of DM1000A series, DR1000A series, DR1000E series, and DR5000E series)

(6) Driver Function Specifications

	Item			Specifications		
Higher in	nterface	RS232C in Controller	nterface (single channe interface (pulse train p	el communication, mul position command)	lti-channel communica	tion)
Mechani signal	cal input	Homing si signal, em	gnal, (+) direction harc ergency stop input sig	lware over-travel signa	al, (-) direction hardwa	re over-travel
Mechani signal	cal input	Brake sigr parameter	nal (can be switched be	etween clamp and dyr	namic brake applicatior	ns with a
Encoder (position resolutio shipped)	resolution command n when	Rotating ty	ype DM1000A serie DM1000B serie DM1004B/C; 2 DR1000A serie DR1000B serie DM1000E serie DR5000B serie DR5000E serie LM1/2; 0.25 μm LM3/5; 0.5 μm	s; 4096000 pls/rev (1 s; 2621000 pls/rev (6 621000 pls/rev (65536 s; 1638400 pls/rev (8 s; 1015808 pls/rev (5 s; 1228800 pls/rev (6 s; 557056 plc/rev (27 s; 638976 pls/rev (31 n (0.25 μm) (1.0 μm)	024000 pls/rev) 55360 pls/rev) 50 pls/rev) 19200 pls/rev) 07904 pls/rev) 14400 pls/rev) 8528 pls/rev) 9488 pls/rev) stiffness	series: 0.5 μm,
	Method	I-PD posit Various fe Various st Optional fi	ion control (position: in ed forward functions (p andard filters (velocity Iter (notch filter 2 chan	tegral proportional con position, velocity, acce command filter, veloci inels)	ntrol, velocity: proportio leration) ty feedback filter, first o	onal control) order delay filter)
Control part	Adjustment	Position cc Position ir Various fe Various st enable/dis Optional fi *1) Calcu autor the lo acce *2) Calcu integ manu	ontrol bandwidth:1 Hz tegral limiter setting ed forward percentage andard filter settings (v able, bandwidth, first of lter setting (notch filter ulates proportional gair matically based on mea bad inertia/weight with leration feed forward p ulates position control ral limiting value auton al setting of the servo	to 32Hz, velocity continues (position, velocity, a velocity command filte order delay filter settin bandwidth) an and acceleration feet asurement by the autor respect to the settings ercentage. bandwidth, velocity contatically during executivation stiffness	rol loop width: 5Hz to 2 cceleration) r bandwidth, velocity fe g) d forward gain of the ve b-tuning operation or m s of velocity control bar ntrol loop bandwidth, a ion of the auto-tuning o	200Hz eedback filter elocity control part anual setting of adwidth and and position operation or by
Accelera ion contr	tion/decelerat	Trapezoid Accelerati maximum	al move: Acceleration on time or deceleratior velocity).	curve and deceleration time can be selected	n curve can be selecte individually (with resp	d individually. ect to the
		*3) Real	time override possible	, interlock possible		
		Follows th below is b	e position command fr eing performed.	om the controller inter	face when none of the	operations listed
			Operation	Pulse	e train	
Onoratio	n function			Controller interface	RS232C interface	
Operatio	munction			0	0	
			Auto-tuning	0	0	
			Jog move	×	0	
		Encodor/r	acolver error, power m	odulo orror (ovor volta	and over ourrent)	main nowor
Protectio	on functions	supply err	or, overload, maximum over-travel (only for line	velocity, excessive pear coordinate)	osition deviation, hard	ware over-travel,
Others		Support so Possible to	oftware PC utility runni	ng under Windows (op n display pendant (op	otional) tional)	
Monitor		Analogue For genera test opera differentia Digital sig Monitoring Error and	signal monitor (velocit al monitoring, what is s tion response, positior l value) nal monitor (settling sig i internal information b alarm display on a 7-s	y, general, torque/thru hown by the monitor of command value, curr gnal) y higher interface egment LED	st command) can be selected by sett rent position value, pos	ing (position error, sition command

Specifications

11.2 Torque - Speed Characteristics

(1) DM Series



(2) DR Series



11.3 External Dimensions (Unit: mm)

(1) DM Series Motor

1) Type A



2) Type B



3) DM1004B/C





<DM1004B>



11

1 Specifications

(2) DR Series Motor





- (3) Driver Section
- UDDDDDDA/B (500W, Type B is shown in the figure.)



2) UDDDDDDL(2kW level without regenerative unit)



1 Specifications

3) UDDDDDDDK

(2kW level with regenerative unit)



11.4 Restrictive Conditions for the Frequency of Repeated Operations (DR5000B Series Only)

When running and stop operations are performed repeatedly on DYNASERV DR5000B series (DR5030B, 5050B, 5070B) because of a high number of rated revolution, some restrictions may apply based on the characteristic of the motor and the driver with respect to the frequency of repeated running and stop operations. Consider those restrictions carefully when using the motor.

(1) Restrictions on the motor

The operating conditions under which the motor rotates and stops repeatedly are set assuming that the motor is mounted on a metal stand, and the ambient temperature is 45° C.

When the motor is operated repeatedly with a cycle of acceleration, uniform speed, deceleration and stop, if the load conditions and the operation time are set as shown in Figure 11.1, it is necessary to satisfy the equations below.

In addition, if either the average speed (number of revolutions) or the current duty is known, the other can simply be obtained from the graph shown in Figure 11.2.

The motor, current and speed can actually be measured by the oscilloscope function (see Chapter 8) of the PC utility. Verify them with the monitor numbers listed below.

#365 Present velocity value #369 Present current value (A/D)

$\eta^{\rm B} = \frac{N_{\rm R}}{2} (t_1 + 2t_2 + t_3) \times \frac{1}{5t_{\rm CY}} \times 100$ Equation (1)	$\eta^{\rm B}$ = Velocity duty $\eta^{\rm B}$ = Current duty
$\eta^{\rm C} = (t_1 I_1^2 + t_2 I_2^2 + t_3 I_3^2) \times \frac{1}{5 t_{\rm CY}} \times 100$ Equation (2)	I ₁ , I ₂ , I ₃ = Current (A) N _R = No. of revolutions (rps)
$\eta^{\mathrm{B}} + 2.6 \cdot \eta^{\mathrm{C}} < 103$ Equation (3)	tcy = Cycle time (msec) t1, t2, t3 = Time (msec)



<Example>

$$N_{R} = 4 (rps)$$

$$I_{1} = I_{3} = 9 (A)$$

$$I_{2} = 3 (A)$$

$$t_{1} = t_{2} = t_{3} = 1/4t_{CY}$$

When calculating from the above setting example,

$$\eta = \frac{4}{2} \left(\frac{1}{4}\operatorname{tcy} + \frac{2}{4}\operatorname{tcy} + \frac{1}{4}\operatorname{tcy}\right) \times \frac{1}{5\operatorname{tcy}} \times 100$$
$$= \frac{2}{5} \times 100 = 40$$
$$\eta = \left(\frac{81}{4}\operatorname{tcy} + \frac{9}{4}\operatorname{tcy} + \frac{81}{4}\operatorname{tcy}\right) \times \frac{1}{225\operatorname{tcy}} \times 100$$
$$= \frac{17100}{900} = 19$$

When substituting the above into equation (3),

$$40 + 2.6 \times 19 = 98 < 103$$

Therefore, the result satisfies the equation, and the setting is deemed to be correct.

(2) Restrictions on the driver

The repeat frequency caused by the driver is restricted by the heat generation of the driver's built-in regenerative resistor. If a repeated operation is performed using the pattern as shown in Figure 11.3, the repeat frequency, as shown in Figure 11.4, is restricted by the load inertia using the number of revolutions as a parameter. If the load inertia exceeds 1 kgm², or if it is necessary to use on DYNASERV DR5000B series (DR5030B, 5050B, 5070B) outside of the limits, please contact Yokogawa.



Para	imeter List			SI U1		
Parameter No.	Parameter name	Minimum value	Maximum value	Initial value	Unit	Possible to change
-	Enables the over-travel error function in the	0	-	0	None	Always
2	+ direction Enables the over-travel error function in the	0	~	0	None	Always
	- direction				:	:
4	Selecting the acceleration type	0	~	0	None	Always
2	Selecting the deceleration type	0	~	0	None	Always
7	Acceleration time during a trapezoidal move	-	6666	1000	msec	Always
8	Deceleration time during a trapezoidal	,	6666	1000	msec	Alwavs
1	move					
б	Feeding Velocity	0	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command unit/sec	Always
10	Jog Velocity	0	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command unit/sec	Always
11	Over-travel search velocity during a	4	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command	Always
	homing move				unit/sec	
12	Homing operation: Home sensor proximity signal search velocity	.	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command	Always
13	uginal scaron versoury Homing operation: Home sensing feed	C	1600000	Motor dependent		SVEWID
2	velocity 1	5	00000		unit/sec	
15	Homing operation: Origin position offset	-	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command	Always
:	move feed velocity				unit/sec	:
16	Velocity override percentage 1	0	20000	10000	1/100 %	Always
20	Homing direction	0	~	0	None	Always
21	Enable/disable the over-travel signal under	0	.	0	None	Always
L	the homing mode	c			2	
97. 27	Homing operation: Urigin inside selection	0 0			None	Always
	Enabling the homing flag position error	0	1	- 0	None	Always
29	Offset distance from the Home position	-9999999	6666666		Axis command unit	Always
31	Operation width under testing mode	0	6666666	Motor dependent	Axis command unit	Aways
32	Operation width under Auto-tuning		6666666	Motor dependent	Axis command unit	Always
33	Maximum acceleration/deceleration under	100	6666	6666	msec	Always
	Auto-tuning					
34	Initializing the acceleration/deceleration	100	6666	1000	msec	Always
	time while under Auto-tuning		1		:	:
38	Servo stiffness settings	~ _	5	Ω	None	Always
45	Position settling pulse width 2	0	32767	Motor dependent	pulse	Always
46	Position settling pulse width 3	0	32767	Motor dependent	pulse	Always
47	Position settling pulse width 4	0	32767	Motor dependent	pulse	Always
48	Position control bandwidth 2	-	32	-	Hz	Always
49	Velocity control bandwidth 2	5	200	20	Hz	Always

Parameter No.	Parameter name	Minimum value	Maximum value	Initial value	Unit	Possible to change
50	Position control bandwidth 1	÷	32	—	Hz	Always
51	Velocity control bandwidth 1	5	200	20	Hz	Always
53	Position integral limiting value	0	4999999	10000	None	Always
54	Position feed forward percentage	0	126	06	%	Always
55	Velocity feed forward percentage	0	126	100	%	Always
56	Acceleration feed forward gain	0	200	0	%	Always
58	Position settling pulse width 1	0	32767	-	pulse	Always
59	Position current value filter frequency	-	200	10	Hz	Always
61	Position settling signal chattering	–	100	–	None	Always
	processing count					
65	Value causing an error detection in the (+)	-	666666	666666	pulse	Always
	or CW direction					
66	Value causing an error detection in the (-) or CCW direction	-999999	,	-999999	pulse	Always
68	Torque limit percentage	0	10000	10000	1/100 %	Always
69	Axis velocity monitoring gain (digital monitor)	0	ω	0	None	Always
20	Analog monitor selection	C	5	4	None	Alwavs
71	Axis nositioning error monitoring gain	- C) œ	· c	None	Always
-	(analog monitor)	0	þ	5		
72	Test operation monitoring gain (analog	0	8	0	None	Always
	monitor)					
73	Position monitoring gain (analog monitor)	0	14	0	None	Always
74	Position differential value monitoring gain	0	7	0	None	Always
	(analog monitor)					
75	Velocity monitor selection (digital monitor)	0	-	0	None	Always
89	Brake turn OFF delay time upon Servo ON	0	2000	0	msec	Always
06	Advanced Brake turn ON before Servo	0	2000	0	msec	Always
	OFF					
91	TBX_EMG Servo status	0	2	0	None	Always
93	IFB_EMG Servo status	0	2	0	None	Always
94	Position command differential value	0	5	-	None	Always
	excessive error processing type					
95	Over-travel error function in the + direction	0	5	-	None	Always
:	processing type		!		:	:
96	Over-travel error function in the - direction	0	5	~ -	None	Always
00	Processing type					
90	Emmergency stopping deceleration time during a tranezoidal move	<u> </u>	8888	.	msec	Always
106	Settling wait enable	0	-	0	None	Always

Parameter No.	Parameter name	Minimum value	Maximum value	Initial value	Unit	Possible to change
152	First order delay compensator setting	0	3	0	None	Always
153 154	Notch Iliter: Frequency I selection Notch filter: Frequency 2 selection	50 50	1500	1500	Н7 Н	Always Always
155	Load inertial/load mass	0	200000	0	1/1000kgm² or 1/1000kg	Always
201	Selection of English/Japanese display	0	–	0	None	While in machine
	:				:	setting mode
202	Coordinate (+) direction setting	0	. 		None	While in machine
		c		-		setting mode
203	Using position current value filter	0	~	Motor dependent	None	While in machine setting mode
204	Command pulse type	0	2	2	None	While in machine
						setting mode
205	Monitor pulse type	0	-	-	None	While in machine
206	Enabling current limit external input	0	-	0	None	setting mode While in machine
	-					setting mode
207	Simplified scaling weighted data	–	64	4	None	While in machine
070		Ţ	10000001			setting mode
213	Maximum velocity	~	1600000	Motor dependent	Axis command	
010		c		Ţ	unit/sec	Setting mode
210	Eriadies error when over-load occurs	D			None	
	\\- \- \\	c		c		setting mode
219	velocity reedback filter use	D		D	None	vvnie in macnine setting mode
220	Velocity feedback filter bandwidth	50	1000	1000	Hz	While in machine
	•					setting mode
221	Velocity command filter bandwidth	50	1000	1000	Hz	While in machine
						setting mode
222	Enables error when over-speed occurs	0	~	~	None	While in machine
						setting mode
224	Enables error when excessive position	0	~	-	None	While in machine
	deviation occurs					setting mode
227	Over-speed error processing type	0	2	-	None	While in machine
						setting mode
228	Over-load error processing type	0	2	~	None	While in machine
		,			:	setting mode
229	Excessive position deviation error	0	2	-	None	While in machine
	processing type					setting mode

Paramete	r details	STD1	
1 Enables the or	ver-travel error fun	ction in the + direction	Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	+ホウコウハート OT エラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	1		+HOT_ErrorEnable
Initial value:	0	Short:	+HOT_ErrEn
Unit:	None		+HOT_ErrEn
Specify whether or not	to enable an error whe	n the over-travel signal in the + direction i	s detected while commanding to
move the axis in the $+ d$	lirection.		
0: Does not enable	an error.		
1: Enables an error			
2 Enables the or	ver-travel error fun	ction in the - direction	Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	-ホウコウハート OT エラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	1		-HOT_ErrorEnable
Initial value:	0	Short:	-HOT_ErrEn
Unit:	None		-HOT_ErrEn
Specify whether or not	to enable an error whe	n the over-travel signal in the - direction is	s detected while commanding to
move the axis in the - d	irection.		
0: Does not enable	an error.		
1: Enables an error			
4 Selecting the a	acceleration type		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	カソクケイシ゛ョウセンタク
Maximum value:	1		AccProfeel
Initial value:	0	Short:	カソクケイシ゛ョウ
Unit:	None		AccProfeel
Select the acceleration t	type during trapezoida	l move.	
0: Constant acceler	ation		
1: S shaped			
5 Selecting the	deceleration type		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ケ゛ンソクケイシ゛ョウセンタク
Maximum value:	1		DecProfeel
Initial value:	0	Short:	ケ゛ンソクケイシ゛ョ
Unit:	None		DecProfeel
Select the deceleration t	type during trapezoida	l move.	
0: Constant deceler	ation		
1: S shaped			
7 Acceleration t	ime during a trapez	zoidal move	Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	1 acc 9 17111 JV
Maximum value:	9999		
Initial value:	1000	Short:	I acc タ イケイ エー・エー・
Unit:	msec		IaccIrapez
Specify the acceleration	time required for velo	ocity change for the maximum velocity du	rıng trapezoidal move.
8 Deceleration t	imo durina o trono	roidal movo	Δίωργο
Minimum value:			Theo b' 1411 ' this
Maximum value:	1	Long:	
	7777 1000	0h	
	1000	Snort:	IUCC 7 171

Γ

Unit:

msec

Specify the deceleration time required for velocity change for the maximum velocity during trapezoidal move.

TdecTrapez

9 Feeding Veloc	city		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	オクリソクト゛
Maximum value:	1600000		FeedVelocity
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	オクリソクト゛
Unit:	Axis command unit/sec		FeedVel
Specify the feeding velo	ocity.		
For trapezoidal move: S	Specify the feeding velocity.		
For cam move: Specify	the feeding velocity (peak velocity).		
10 Jog Velocity			Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	シ゛ョク゛オクリソクト゛
Maximum value:	1600000		JogVelocity
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	シ゛ョク゛ソクト゛
Unit:	Axis command unit/sec		JogVel
Specify the feeding vel	ocity in jog mode.		-
11 Over-travel se	arch velocity during a homing move		Always
Minimum value:	1	Lona:	ORG-OT <u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u>
Maximum value:	16000000		ORG-OT SearchVel
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	ORG-OT-VEL
Unit:	Axis command unit/sec		ORG-OT-Vel
Specify the velocity wh	en executing over-travel signal search move in homi	ng mode Ti	his parameter is invalid if t
	h is not executed	-	•
12 Homing opera velocity	ition: Home sensor proximity signal search		Always
12 Homing opera velocity Minimum value:	1	Long:	Always ORG-キンボ ウサーチオクリソクト
12 Homing opera velocity Minimum value: Maximum value:	1 16000000 Motor dependent	Long:	Always ORG-キンホ [*] ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe
12 Homing opera velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit:	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec	Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンホ [*] ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel
12 Homing opera velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T	Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンボ [*] ウサーチオクリソクト [*] ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin
12 Homing operative signal search 12 Homing operative signal search Velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to sproximity signal is not sproximity sproximity sproximity signal is not sproximity spro	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used.	Long: Short: his paramet	Always ORG-キンボ סָּשְׁ-+ָאַלַטָּוּטָאָ ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin
12 Homing operative velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Minitial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not 13 Homing operative	tion: Home sensor proximity signal search 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1	Long: Short: his paramet	Always ORG-キンボ סָּשְׁ-+ָדְאַסָּטַיָּאָ ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin
12Homing operative12Homing operativevelocityMinimum value:Maximum value:Initial value:Unit:Specify the velocity to a proximity signal is not a proximity signal is not a monogenerative13Homing operativeMinimum value:	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Long: Short: his paramet Long:	Always ORG-キンボ [°] ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG- <i>f</i> [°] ンテンニンジキソクト [°] 1
12Homing opera velocity12Homing opera velocityMinimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit:Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not13Homing opera Minimum value: Maximum value: Maximum value:	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000	Long: Short: his paramet Long:	Always ORG-キンホ [*] חָשָׁ-שָּׁלְאַחָטַאָרָ ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ゲ ישר שילי ביי ביי שילי לי ORG-Z Vel1
12Homing opera velocity12Homing opera velocityMinimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit:Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not13Homing opera Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Maximum value:	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 1 1000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 16000000 Motor dependent	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンボウサーチオクリソクド ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ゲンテンニンシキソクド 1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1
12Homing opera velocityMinimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit:Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not13Homing opera Maximum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit:	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンボウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ゲンテン=ンシキソクド1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z Vel1
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal is noth 16 Homing operative/signal is noth 17 Homing operative/signal is noth 18 Homing operative/signal is noth 19 Homing operative/signal is noth 11 Homing operative/signal is noth 12 Homing operative/signal is noth 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 11 Homing operative/signal is noth 12 Homing operative/signal is noth 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 10 Homing operative/signal is noth 11 Homing operative/signal is noth 12 Homing operative/signal is noth 1	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten performing the first home sensing move in homing	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th	Always ORG-キンボ ' חָשָׁ-שָּׁלְאָטָעַיָּאָ ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ゲ ' עדערביעיל אינער ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1
12 Homing operative velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to a proximity signal is not 13 Homing operative Maximum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity what was the feed velocity was the feed velocity what was the feed velocity what was the feed velocity was the feed velocity what was the feed velocity what was the feed velocity was the feed veloci	1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the	Always ORG-キンホ [*] ウָ+–ƒオクリソクჁ ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel ter is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ケ [*] ンテンニンシキソクト [*] 1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 e velocity set here is also to first home sensing move.
12 Homing operative velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not 13 Homing operative Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to proximity signal is not 13 Homing operative Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity what the feed	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the	Always ORG-キンボ חָשָׁ-+ָדְאַחָשָׁשָׁשָׁ ORG-ORG_SearchVer ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin <u>Always</u> ORG-ゲ עדיבעטָדָשָרָאָרָאָ 1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 oRG-Z_Vel1 origination of the origin of the origin origination of the origin of the origin of the origin origination of the origin of the origin of the origin origination of the origin of the origin of the origin of the origin origination of the origin of
12 Homing operative velocity Minimum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to a proximity signal is not 13 Homing operative Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity what Specify the velocity what as the feed velocity what Excessive move for the Excessive move for the	ation: Home sensor proximity signal search 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the	Always ORG-キンボ ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVer ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ケ ンテンニンシキソクト 1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal is noth 16 Homing operative/signal is noth 17 Homing operative/signal is noth 18 Homing operative/signal is noth 19 Homing operative/signal is noth 11 Homing operative/signal is noth 12 Homing operative/signal is noth 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal is noth 16 Homing operative/signal is noth 17 Homing operative/signal is noth 18 Homing operative/signal is noth 19 Homing operative/signal is noth 1	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the	Always ORG-キンボ ' חָשָׁ-+ָדְאַחָשָׁשָׁשָׁ ORG-ORG_SearchVer ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin <u>Always</u> ORG-ゲ ' עָדָע־בַעָשָׁדָשָׁשָׁ ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Maximum value: 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal search	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move ome sensing move Attion: Origin position offset feed velocity	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the	Always ORG-キンボ ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ケ ンテンニンシキソクト 1 ORG-Z_Vel2 ORG-Z_Vel2
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Maximum value: 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal search 15 Homing operative/signal search 15 Homing operative/signal search 15 Homing operative/signal search	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move me sensing after a home sensing move ome sensing move tion: Origin position offset feed velocity	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the Lona:	Always ORG-キンボ ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ケ ンテンニンシキソクト 1 ORG-Z_Vel1
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Maximum value: 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 14 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal is noth 16 Homing operative/signal is noth 17	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tton: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move ome sensing move tton: Origin position offset feed velocity 1 16000000	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the Long:	Always ORG-キンホ [*] ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-7 [*] ンテンニンジキソクト [*] 1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 ORG-Z_Vel1 e velocity set here is also to first home sensing move. Always ORG-オフセットイト [*] ウオクリソク ORG-OffsetVel
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search 13 Maximum value: 13 Homing operative/signal is noth 15 Homing operative/signal value: 15 Homing operative/signal value: Minimum value: Maximum value: Minimum value: Maximum value: 15 Homing operative/signal value: Minimum value: Maximum value: Maximum value: Maximum value:	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move ome sensing move tion: Origin position offset feed velocity 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move ome sensing move tion: Origin position offset feed velocity 1 16000000 Motor dependent	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンホ゛ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVe ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-Z_Vel1
12 Homing operative/signal search 12 Homing operative/signal search Minimum value: Maximum value: Maximum value: Initial value: Unit: Specify the velocity to a proximity signal is not a proximity sis proximity signal proximity signal is not a p	1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec search the home proximity signal in homing mode. T used. tion: Home sensing feed velocity 1 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec ten performing the first home sensing move in homin en performing the following moves in addition to per second home sensing move ne sensing after a home sensing move me sensing move tion: Origin position offset feed velocity 1 16000000 Motor dependent Axis command unit/sec	Long: Short: his paramet Long: Short: g mode. Th forming the Long: Short:	Always ORG-キンボ ウサーチオクリソクト ORG-ORG_SearchVel ORG-ORGVel ORG-ORGVel er is invalid if the origin Always ORG-ケ ンテンニンシキソクト 1 ORG-Z_Vel1

16 Velocity over	ride percentage 1		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ソクト゛オーハ゛ライト゛ 1
Maximum value:	20000		VelOverride1
Initial value:	10000	Short:	V オーハ [*] ライト [*] 1
Unit:	1/100 %		VelOvrrid1
Specify override 1 for	feeding velocity.		
20 Homing direc	tion		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ORG-ケ゛ンテンフッキホウコウ
Maximum value:	: 1	•	ORG-Direction
Initial value:	0	Short:	O-OrgDir
Unit:	None		O-OrgDir
Specify the homing dir	rection (origin proximity signal search direction) in hon	ning mode	
0: - direction		C	
1: + direction			
21 Enable/Disab	le the over-travel signal under the homing		Always
mode			·
Minimum value:	0	Lona:	ORG-OT シンコ゛ウショウ
Maximum value:	1	- J	ORG-OT SignalUse
Initial value:	0	Short:	O-OT Use
Unit:	None		O-OT Use
Specify whether or not	to execute the over-travel signal search in homing mod	le.	—
0: Disables the ov	er-travel signal search.		
1: Enables the ove	er-travel signal search.		
25 Homing oper	ation: Origin inside selection		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ORG-ケ゛ンテンウチカ゛ワセンタク
Maximum value:	: 1	U	ORG-InsideSelect
Initial value:	1	Short:	O-Inside
Unit:	None		O-Inside
If the home sensor pro	ximity signal is used in homing mode, specify whether	the Z sign	al inside the home sensor
proximity signal is use	d as the origin or the Z signal outside the home sensor	proximity	signal is used as the origin.
0: The Z signal ou	tside the home sensor proximity signal is used as the or	igin.	0
1: The Z signal ins	side the home sensor proximity signal is used as the original	gin.	
27 Enabling the	homing flag position error		Alwavs
Minimum value:	0	Lona:	ORG-ドグイチエラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	1	9'	ORG-DogErrorEnable
Initial value:	1	Short:	O-DogErrEn
Unit:	None		O-DogErrEn
When the homing mod	le is completed, an error or warning is generated when t	he relation	ship between the origin flag
position and motor Z-r	phase position is as follows.		1 0 0
0: Valid			
1: Invalid			
29 Offset distant	ce from the Home position		Always
Minimum value:	-9999999	Long:	ORG-オフセットイト゛ウリョウ
Maximum value:	9999999		ORG-Offset

O-Offset

O-Offset

Short:

Unit: Axis command unit Specify the origin offset amount in homing mode.

0

Initial value:

31 Operation wid	th under testing mode		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	TEST-ドウサハバ
Maximum value:	9999999	_	TestWidth
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	テストト゛ウサハハ゛
Unit:	Axis command unit		TestWidth
Specify the operation w	ridth in test mode.		
32 Operation wid	th under Auto-tuning		Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	A_TUNE-ドウサハバ
Maximum value:	9999999		A-TUNE-Width
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	AT-ドウサハバ
Unit:	Axis command unit		AT-Width
Specify the operating ra	inge in auto-tuning mode.		
33 Maximum acc	eleration/deceleration under Auto-tuning		Always
Minimum value:	100	Long:	A_IUNE-Iacc #19 19
Maximum value:	9999		A-IUNE_IaccMax
Initial value:	9999	Short:	AT-TaccMax
Unit:	msec		AT_TaccMax
Specify the maximum v	value of acceleration/deceleration time in auto-tuning r	node.	
24 Initializing the	e contention (de colonation time subile surder		A here we
34 Initializing the	acceleration/deceleration time while under		Always
Auto-tuning Minimum volue:	100	Longi	A TUNE Toos Vate
Maximum value:	100	Long:	A TUNE Tacc (197)
maximum value:	1000	Chart	
	1000	Short:	
Unit: Specify the initial value	msec		AT_Taccini
Specify the initial value	of acceleration/deceleration time in auto-tuning mode	5.	
38 Servo stiffnes	s settings		Always
Minimum value:	-3	Long:	サーホコ゛ウセイセッテイ
Maximum value:	5	U	ServoRigidity
Initial value:	3	Short:	サーホ゛コ゛ウセイ
Unit:	None		ServoRigit
Specify the servo stiffn	ess. (The larger the number is specified, the stronger the	ne servo sti	iffness becomes. However, the
motor vibrates more.)			···· , · ·
1: Velocity control	width: 30Hz Position control width: 7Hz		
2. Velocity control	width: 40Hz Position control width: 10Hz		
3. Velocity control	width: 50Hz Position control width: 12Hz		
4. Velocity control	width: 60Hz Position control width: 15Hz		
5. Velocity control	width: 70Hz Position control width: 17Hz		
45 Position settli	ng pulse width 2		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチセイテイハハ Pls2
Maximum value:	32767	-	CoinWidth Pls2
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	セイテイハハ* P2
Unit:	nulse		CoinWidth P2

Specify the setting width to be used for position settling check and position settling wait in the axis position control section.

This parameter is used when the position settling width 2 has been selected.

46 Position settli	ng pulse width 3		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチセイテイハハ Pls3
Maximum value:	32767		CoinWidth Pls3
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	セイテイハハ P3
Unit:	pulse		CoinWidth P3
Spacify the actting widt	h to be used for position settling sheets and position set	ling	in the existing control

Specify the setting width to be used for position settling check and position settling wait in the axis position control section.

This parameter is used when the position settling width 3 has been selected.

47	Position	settlir	ng j	pulse width 4	
	 -				ī

Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチセイテイハハ * PIs4
Maximum value:	32767		CoinWidth Pls4
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	セイテイハハ P4
Unit:	pulse		CoinWidth P4

Always

Specify the setting width to be used for position settling check and position settling wait in the axis position control section.

This parameter is used when the position settling width 4 has been selected.

48 Position contr	ol bandwidth 2		Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	15214 ं अप्रेरी र
Maximum value:	32		PosControlFreq2
Initial value:	2	Short:	イチタイイキ 2
Unit:	Hz		PosFreq2

Specify the position control bandwidth of the axis position control section. This parameter is set automatically by either executing auto-tuning operation or changing the "servo stiffness settings" parameter.

This parameter is used when the position control bandwidth 2 has been selected.

49 Velocity contro	ol bandwidth 2		Always
Minimum value:	5	Long:	ソクト ゙セイキ ゙ ヨタイイキ 2
Maximum value:	200		VelControlFreq2
Initial value:	30	Short:	ソクト [*] タイイキ 2
Unit:	Hz		VelFreq2

Specify the control bandwidth of the velocity control section. This parameter is set automatically by either executing auto-tuning operation or changing the "servo stiffness settings" parameter.

This parameter is used when the velocity control bandwidth 2 has been selected.

50 Position contr	ol bandwidth 1		Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	15रानें अप्रेरीने 1
Maximum value:	32		PosControlFreq1
Initial value:	1	Short:	15911+ 1
Unit:	Hz		PosFreq1
Sussified the manifiant some	that has devided a field and a solid an astron a section. This	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	an in nat antamatically has aith an

Specify the position control bandwidth of the axis position control section. This parameter is set automatically by either executing auto-tuning operation or changing the "servo stiffness settings" parameter. This parameter is used when the position control bandwidth 1 has been selected.

51 Velocity control	ol bandwidth 1		Always
Minimum value:	5	Long:	ソクト ゙ セイキ ゙ ヨタイイキ 1
Maximum value:	200		VelControlFreq1
Initial value:	20	Short:	ソクト [*] タイイキ 1
Unit:	Hz		VelFreq1

Specify the control bandwidth of the velocity control section. This parameter is set automatically by either executing auto-tuning operation or changing the "servo stiffness settings" parameter.

This parameter is used when the velocity control bandwidth 1 has been selected.

53 Position integ	ral limiting value		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチセキフ゛ンリミッタ
Maximum value:	4999999	_	PosIntegralLimit
Initial value:	10000	Short:	セキフ゛ンリミッタ
Unit:	None		PosIntLim
Specify the limiter valu	e of the position error integrator in the axis position con	ntrol secti	on. Specify a smaller value
when a wind-up conditi	on occurs during axis operation. This parameter is set a	utomatica	ally by either executing auto-
tuning operation or char	nging the "servo stiffness settings" parameter.		
54 Position feed	forward percentage		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチフィート゛フォワート゛ _%
Maximum value:	126	-	 Position_FF_%
Initial value:	90	Short:	イチ FF %
Unit:	°⁄0		 Inch_FF%
Specify the position fee	d forward of the axis control section.		_
55 Velocity feed	forward percentage		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ソクト゛フィート゛フォワート゛_ %
Maximum value:	126	-	Velocity_FF_%
Initial value:	100	Short:	ソクト* FF_%
Unit:	%		Vel_FF%
Specify the velocity fee	d forward.		
56 Acceleration f	eed forward gain		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	カソクト゛フィート゛フォワート゛ _%
Maximum value:	200		Accelaration_FF_%
Initial value:	0	Short:	カソクト゛FF_%
Unit:	%		Acc_FF%
Specify the acceleration	feed forward. This parameter calculates the internal ga	ain based	on the load inertia/load mass.
58 Positioning se	ettling pulse width 1		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチセイティハバ Pls1
Maximum value:	32767	-	CoinWidth Pls1
Initial value:	1	Short:	イチセイテイハハ P1
Unit:	pulse		Coin widthP1

Specify the settling width to be used for position settling check and position settling wait in the axis position control section.

This parameter is used when the position settling width 1 has been selected.

59 Position curre	ent value filter frequency		Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	イチケ゛ンサ゛イチフィルタシュウハスウ
Maximum value:	200		PfbMonFilteFreq
Initial value:	10	Short:	PfbFilFrq
Unit:	Hz		PfbFilFrq

Specify the position current value filter frequency. The position current value filter functions when the Using position current value filter parameter is set to "Use." This filter does not function for the position information that is fed back to the position control part.

61 Position settli	ng signal chattering processing count		Always
Minimum value:	1	Long:	COIN チャタリンク゛カイスウ
Maximum value:	100		COIN_ChatterVolume
Initial value:	1	Short:	COIN_カイスウ
Unit:	None		COIN_Vol
Specify the chattering c	ount when a position settling signal is generated. If the	e absolute	values of position deviations
(values after being filter	red in case a position deviation filter is used) continue	to be shor	ter than the position settling
width for the specified	number of times, a position settling signal will be form	ed. Once	any of the absolute values
becomes out of such ran	nge, a position settling signal will not be formed.		
The check cycle is 2 ms	Sec.		
65 Value causing	an error detection in the (+) or CW direction		Always
Minimum value:	1	Lona:	イチヘンサカタ゛イケンシュツチ+
Maximum value:	999999	3 -	PosDevErrLimit+
Initial value:	999999	Short:	イチヘンサリミット+
Unit:	pulse		PerrLim+
Specify the + direction	detection value when an excessive position deviation ϵ	error occui	S.
r j anothon			
66 Value causing	an error detection in the (-) or CCW		Always
direction			-
Minimum value:	-999999	Long:	イチヘンサカタ゛イケンシュツチー
Maximum value:	-1	Ū	PosDevErrLimit-
Initial value:	-999999	Short:	イチヘンサリミット-
Unit:	pulse		PerrLim-
Specify the - direction d	letection value when an excessive position deviation e	rror occurs	S.
69 Torquo limit n			Alwaya
68 Torque limit p	ercentage		
Minimum value:	0	Long:	トルクリミットハ ーセンテーシ エ ーマーン
Maximum value:	10000	.	I orqLimit_%
Initial value:	10000	Short:	トルクリミット %
Unit:	1/100 %		TorqLimit%
This parameter can limit	it the torque or thrust.		
69 Axis velocity	monitoring gain (digital monitor)		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ソクト モニタケ イン(Digital)
Maximum value:	8		VelMonitorGain(Dig)
Initial value:	0	Short:	VdigMon_G
Unit:	None		VdigMon_G
Specify the axis velocit	y monitoring gain of the velocity monitor when contro	lling the d	ligital velocity.
0: 6.55V / 32768 d	igits at digital detection velocity	-	
1: 6.55V / 16384 d	igits		
2: 6.55V / 8192 dis	gits		
3: 6.55V / 4096 dig	gits		
4: 6.55V / 2048 dig	zits		
5. 6 55V / 1024 die	vits		
6. 6 55V / 512 digi	ts		
7: 6 55V / 256 digi	ts		

7: 6.55 V / 256 digits
8: 6.55 V / 128 digits

70 Analog monit	tor selection		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	アナロク、モニタセンタク
Maximum value:	5		AnalogMonitorSelect
Initial value:	4	Short:	A_Mon tuby
Unit:	None		A_MonSel
Select the content to be	e output to the analog monitor.		
0: Position deviati	on [pulse]		
1: Test operation r	esponse [pulse]		
2: Position comma	and value [pulse]		
3: Current position	n value [pulse]		
4: Position comma	and differential value (command velocity) [pps]		
5: Current position	n differential value (current velocity) [pps]		
71 Axis position	ing error monitoring gain (analog monitor)		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチヘンサモニタケ゛イン
Maximum value:	8		PerrMonitorGain
Initial value:	0	Short:	PerrMon_G
Unit:	None		PerrMon_G
Specify the position de	eviation monitoring gain of the analog monitor.		
0: 6.55V / 32768 p	pulses		
1: 6.55V / 16384 p	pulses		
2: 6.55V / 8192 pt	ilses		
3: 6.55V / 4096 pt	ilses		
4: 6.55V / 2048 pt	ilses		
5: 6.55V / 1024 pt	ilses		
6: 6.55V / 512 pul	ses		
7: 6.55V / 256 pul	ses		
8: 6.55V/ 128 puls	ses		
72 Tost operatio	n monitoring gain (analog monitor)		Δίωσνο
Minimum value:		Long:	
Maximum value:	8	_0	TestMonitorGain
Initial value:	0	Short:	PerrMon G
Unit:	None		PerrMon_G
Specify the test operation	on response monitoring gain of the analog monitor.		
0: 6.55V / 32768 p	pulses		
1: 6.55V / 16384 p	bulses		
2: $6.55V / 8192$ pt	lises		
5. $0.33 \text{ V} / 4090 \text{ pl}$ $4^{\circ} - 6.55 \text{ V} / 2048 \text{ pl}$	11909 11909		
5: 6.55V / 1024 pt	ilses		
r			

6: 6.55V / 512 pulses 7: 6.55V / 256 pulses 8: 6.55V / 128 pulses

73 Position monit	toring gain (analog monitor)		Always	
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチモニタケ゛イン	
Maximum value:	14		PosMonitorGain	
Initial value:	0	Short:	PosMon_G	
Unit:	None	1 \ '	PosMon_G	
Specify the position mo	nitoring (position command value and current position	value) gai	n of the analog monitor.	
1. 655V / 2007152	pulses			
$2^{\circ} = 6.55 \text{ V} / 2097132$	nulses			
3: 6.55V / 524288 I	pulses			
4: 6.55V / 262144	pulses			
5: 6.55V / 131072 j	pulses			
6: 6.55V / 65536 pt	llses			
7: 6.55V / 32/68 pt	llses			
8: 0.55 V / 10384 pt 9: 6.55 V / 8192 pull	nses			
10.655V / 4096 pul	ses			
11:6.55V / 1024 pul	ses			
12:6.55V / 512 puls	es			
13:6.55V / 256 puls	es			
14:6.55V/ 128 pulse	S			
			•	
(4 Position differ	ential value monitoring gain (analog		Aiways	
Minimum value:	0	Lona:	ソクト、モニタケ、イン	
Maximum value:	7		VelMonitorGain	
Initial value:	0	Short:	VelMon G	
Unit:	None		VelMon_G	
Specify the position diff	ferential value monitoring (position command different	tial value a	nd current position differential	
value) gain of the analog	g monitor.			
0: 6.55V / 8192000	pulses			
1: 6.55V / 4096000	pulses			
2: 0.55V / 2048000 3: 6 55V / 1024000	pulses			
4: 6.55V / 512000 t	pulses			
5: 6.55V / 256000 j	pulses			
6: 6.55V / 128000 j	pulses			
7: 6.55V / 64000 pt	ilses			
75 Volocity monit	or soluction (digital monitor)		Alwaye	
Minimum value:		Lona:	ソクト、チニタヤンタク(Digital)	
Maximum value:	1	_0	VelMonSel(Digital)	
Initial value:	0	Short:	VelMonSelD	
Unit:	None		VelMonSelD	
This parameter switches	s the velocity monitoring output content when controlli	ng the digi	tal velocity.	
0: Velocity monitor				
1: Velocity monitor	AC			
89 Brake turn OF	E delay time upon Servo ON		Always	
Minimum value:		l ona.	サーホ、オンシ、フ、レーキオフチェン	
Maximum value:	2000	_og.	TimeSrvOn toBrkOff	
Initial value:	0	Short:	TimeBrkOff	
Unit:	msec		TimeBrkOff	
Specify the delay time f	rom servo ON to brake OFF.			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
90 Advanced Brake turn ON before Servo OFF Always				
Minimum value:	0	Long:	サーホ、オフシ、フ、レーキオンチエン	
Maximum value:	000	-	TimeBrkOn_toSrvOff	
Initial value:	0	Short:	TimeBrkOn	
Unit:	msec		TimeBrkOn	

Specify the advanced time for brake ON before servo OFF.

91 TBX_EMG Ser	vo status		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	TBX_EMG_サーボジョウタイ
Maximum value:	5		TbxEmgServoCondition
Initial value:	0	Short:	TbxEmg サーボ
Unit:	None		TbxEmgServ
Specify the servo status	of the motor when EMG from TBX is executed.		
When operating the	built-in controller axis:		
0: Maintains the	e servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).		
1: Turns the ser	vo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).		

- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

Alwavs

93 IFB_EMG Servo status

Minimum value:	0	Long:	IFB_EMG_サーボジョウタイ
Maximum value:	5		IfbEmgServoCondition
Initial value:	0	Short:	lfbEmg サーボ
Unit:	None		lfbEmgServ
· C . 1		1 1	

Specify the servo status of the motor when executing EMG from the interface board.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).

1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).

- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

94 Position command differential value excessive error

Always

+Hot ErrTyp

processing ty	pe		
Minimum value:	0	Long:	Over_dScmd エラーショリタイプ
Maximum value:	5		Over_dScmdErrorType
Initial value:	1	Short:	OVP_ErrTyp
Unit:	None		OVP_ErrTyp
7		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Specify the processing type when a position command differential value excessive error occurs.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

- 0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

95	Over-travel error function in the + direction processing			Always
	type			
Mi	inimum value:	0	Long:	+Hot_エラーショリタイプ
Ма	aximum value:	5		+Hot_ErrorType
Ini	itial value:	1	Short:	+Hot_ErrTyp

Unit: None Specify the processing type when an over-travel error in the + direction occurs.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).

- 1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).

4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).

5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

96 Over-travel error function in the - direction processing

Always

type			
Minimum value:	0	Long:	-Hot_エラーショリタイプ
Maximum value:	5		-Hot_ErrorType
Initial value:	1	Short:	-Hot_ErrTyp
Unit:	None		-Hot_ErrTyp
Specify the processing t	ype when an over-travel error in the - direction occurs.		

When operating the built-in controller axis:

- 0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

98	98 Deceleration time for immediate stop during trapezoidal		Always	
	move			
Ν	linimum value:	1	Long:	Tdec & イケイキュウテイシ
Ν	laximum value:	9999		TdecTrapezHighAbort
Ir	nitial value:	1	Short:	TdecT_High
U	Init:	msec		TdecT_High

Specify the deceleration time required to change the velocity from the maximum velocity when stopping immediately during a trapezoidal move.

106 Settling wait e	nable		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	セイテイマチュウコウ
Maximum value:	1		CoinEnable
Initial value:	1	Short:	セイテイマチュウコウ
Unit:	None		CoinEnable

Specify whether or not to execute a settling wait for the move followed by positioning when the axis move operation is completed. For the move that is not followed by positioning, the settling wait is not executed regardless of this parameter setting. The settling wait is executed in homing mode regardless of this parameter setting.

0: Does not execute settling wait.

1: Executes settling wait.

152 First order del	ay compensator setting		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチシ゛オクレホショウ
Maximum value:	3		CompFilterSel
Initial value:	0	Short:	イチシ゛オクレ
Unit:	None		FilterSel
Sussified to finat and and	.1		

Specify the first order delay compensator. 0: No first order delay compensator

- 1: 20Hz/80Hz
- 2: 30Hz/120Hz
- 2. 30HZ/120HZ
- 3: 40Hz/160Hz

153 Notch filter: F	requency 1 selection		Always
Minimum value:	50	Long:	ノッチフィルタシュウハスウ 1
Maximum value:	1500		NotchFilterFreq1
Initial value:	1500	Short:	ノッチシュウハスウ 1
Unit:	Hz		NotchFreq1
Specify the frequency ovalid for the driver with 154 Notch filter: F	If notch filter channel 1 for the driver equipped with the notch filter option. requency 2 selection	notch filt	er option. This parameter is no Always
Minimum value:	50	Long:	ノッチフィルタシュウハスウ 2
Maximum value:	1500		NotchFilterFreq2
Initial value:	1500	Short:	ノッチシュウハスウ 2
Unit:	Hz		NotchFreg2

Specify the frequency of notch filter channel 2 for the driver equipped with the notch filter option. This parameter is no valid for the driver without the notch filter option.

155 Load inertia/lo	bad mass		Always
Minimum value:	0	Long:	7 カ_J_or_M
Maximum value:	200000		Load_J_or_M
Initial value:	0	Short:	フカ _J_or_M
Unit:	1/1000kgm ² or 1/1000kg		LoadJ_or_M
Specify the load inertia or load mass mounted on the motor. If an auto-tuning operation is executed, the measured value			

will be set automatically.

201 Selection of E	nglish/Japanese display	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	エイコ゛ヒョウシ゛センタク
Maximum value:	1		EnglishDisplay
Initial value:	0	Short:	エイコ゛ヒョウシ゛
Unit:	None		EnglishDsp
Specify whether English	h display or Japanese display is used.		
0: Japanese display			
1: English display			
202 Coordinate (+)	direction setting	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	サ゛ヒョウケイセイホウコウ
Maximum value:	1		AxisCoordinateDir
Initial value:	1	Short:	サ゛ヒョウホウコウ
Unit:	None		AxCoordDir

Specify the coordinate system direction.

1:

203 Using position	n current value filter	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	PfbMonFilter ショウ
Maximum value:	1		UsePfbMonFilter
Initial value:	Motor dependent	Short:	PfbFil रेडपे
Unit:	None		UsePfbFil
G 10 1 1		I	

Specify whether or not to use a filter to generate the position current value. However, the filter will not function for the position information that is fed back to the position control part, regardless of the setting of this parameter.

0: Do not use.

1: Use.

^{0:}

204 Command pul	se type	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	シレイハ゜ルスタイフ゜
Maximum value:	2		CmdPlsType
Initial value:	2	Short:	CmdPlsType
Unit:	None		CmdPlsType
Specify the position con	nmand pulse type.		
0: PUA IN:UP, SD	B IN:DOWN		
1: PUA_IN:A, SDE	B_IN:B		
2: PUA_IN:PLS, SI	DB_IN:SIGN		
205 Monitor pulse	type	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	モニタハ゜ルスタイフ゜
Maximum value:	1		MonPlsType
Initial value:	1	Short:	MonPlsType
Unit:	None		MonPlsType
Specify the position mo	nitor command pulse type.		
0: UA_OUT:UP, D	B_OUT:DOWN		
1: UA_OUT:A, DB	_OUT:B		
206 Enabling curre	ent limit external input	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	ExtCurLmtEn
Maximum value:	1		ExtCurLmtEn
Initial value:	0	Short:	ExCurLmtEn
Unit:	None		ExCurLmtEn
Specify whether or not t	to perform a current limit according to the current limit	t external i	nput signal.
0: Do not perform.			
1: Perform.			
207 Simplified sca	ling weighted data	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	1	Long:	シレイオモミツ゛ケ
Maximum value:	64		CmdWeight
Initial value:	4	Short:	シレイオモミツ゛ケ
Unit:	None		CmdWeight
Specify how many pulse	es a single command unit equals to during a simplified	scaling op	peration. Specify in a power of
2 (e.g., 1, 2, 4, 8,).			
242 Avia mavimum	a velocity	\A/bile	in machine cotting mode
Maximum value:	1	Long:	917 177F
	1000000 Motor dependent	Shart	עווומא + / ג׳ / יו ג ו
initial value.	motor dependent	Short.	アイア コノクド

Unit: Axis command unit/sec Vmax Specify the maximum velocity during operation. The actual maximum velocity is determined by the smaller value of this parameter or the maximum velocity [axis command unit/sec] converted from the maximum velocity [rps, mps] determined by the motor and driver. This maximum velocity value is displayed on the monitor.

218 Enables error	when over-load occurs	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	オーハ゛ロート゛エラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	1		OverloadErrorEn
Initial value:	1	Short:	OVL_ErrEn
Unit:	None		OVL_ErrEn

Specify whether or not to process as an error when over-load occurs.

0: Does not process as an error.

1: Processes as an error.

219 Velocity feedb	ack filter use	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	VfbFilter ショウ
Maximum value:	1		UseVfbFilter
Initial value:	0	Short:	VfbFil ショウ
Unit:	None		UseVfbFil
Specify whether or not	to use a filter for the velocity information that is fed be	als to the t	algority control part

Specify whether or not to use a filter for the velocity information that is fed back to the velocity control part. 0: Do not use.

1: Use.

220 Velocity feed	ack filter bandwidth	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	50	Long:	VfbFilter タイイキ
Maximum value:	1000		VfbFilterFreq
Initial value:	1000	Short:	VfbFilFreq
Unit:	Hz		VfbFilFreq
~			

Specify the bandwidth of a filter to be applied to the velocity information that is fed back to the velocity control part. The velocity feedback filter functions when the Using velocity feedback filter parameter is set to "Use."

221 Velocity comm	nand filter bandwidth	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	50	Long:	VcmdFilter ४२८१
Maximum value:	1000		VcmdFilterFreq
Initial value:	1000	Short:	VcmdFilFrq
Unit:	Hz		VcmdFilFrq
0		.1	

Specify the bandwidth of a filter to be applied to the velocity command value that is an output from the position control part.

222 Enables error	r when over-speed occurs	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	オーハ゛スヒ゜ート゛エラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	: 1		OverSpeedErrorEn
Initial value:	1	Short:	OVS_ErrEn
Unit:	None		OVS_ErrEn
Specify whether or not	to process as an error when over-speed occurs.		
0: Does not proces	ss as an error.		
1: Processes as an	error.		
224 Enables error	r when excessive position deviation occurs	While	in machine setting mode
Minimum value:	0	Long:	イチヘンサカタ゛イエラーユウコウ
Maximum value:	: 1		OverPerrErrorEn
Initial value:	1	Short:	OVPe ErrEn

Unit: None OVPe_ErrEn

Specify whether or not to process as an error when an excessive position deviation occurs.

0: Does not process as an error.

1: Processes as an error.

227 Over-speed error processing type

Minimum value:0Maximum value:5Initial value:1Unit:None

While in machine setting mode

While in machine setting mode

Long: ל-\Long: ל-\Long: לי\Long: לי
OverSpeedErrorType
Short: OVS_ErrTyp
OVS_ErrTyp

Specify the processing type when an over-speed error occurs.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

- 0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

228 Over-load error processing type

Minimum value:	0	Long:	オーハ゛ロート゛エラーショリタイフ゜
Maximum value:	5		OverloadErrorType
Initial value:	1	Short:	OVL_ErrTyp
Unit:	None		OVL_ErrTyp

Specify the processing type when an over-load error occurs.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).

1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).

- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

229 Excessive position deviation error processing type

Minimum value:0Maximum value:5Initial value:1Unit:None

Long: לדְאַשְׁלָאָי אַבָּאָשָלָז׳ OverSpeedErrorType Short: OVPeErrTyp OVPeErrTyp

While in machine setting mode

Specify the processing type when an excessive position deviation error occurs.

When operating the built-in controller axis:

- 0: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 1: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (low level).
- 2: Stops the axis operation (low level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Maintains the servo status after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 4: Turns the servo OFF after the axis operation stops (high level).
- 5: Stops the axis operation (high level) and turns the servo OFF immediately.

When performing the higher controller follow-up:

- 0: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after a deceleration stop.
- 1: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after a deceleration stop.
- 2: Switches to the built-in controller, performs a deceleration stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.
- 3: Switches to the built-in controller, and maintains the servo status after an immediate stop.
- 4: Switches to the built-in controller, and turns the servo OFF after an immediate stop.
- 5: Switches to the built-in controller, performs an immediate stop, and turns the servo OFF immediately.

Mo	nitor List
Monitor No.	Monitor name
300	Currently under operation
301	Axis is under operation
302	Error status
303	Alarm status
304	Driver ready
305	Servo ready
310	Display of program number under execution
317	Completion of homing status display
318	Homing operation: The measured value
320	Pulse position command value

Unit	None	pulse	pulse	pulse	pulse	Axis command unit	Axis command unit	pulse	None	pulse/sec																				
	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	ā	ā	ā	ā	∢	∢	ā	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	z	ā

Command unit command value Scaling data (command unit side)

Scaling data (pulse side)

Position settling status

Pulse position current value

321

Pulse position deviation

Position control integral main switch status

Error code (main) Error code (sub)

Excessive position deviation status

Excessive velocity status

Braking OFF

Sensor group signal status

Zero signal status

322 323 324 325 325 325 325 335 333 333 333 333 340 341 345 345 345

Interface ready Overload status Multi-channel communication status Multi-channel communication slave code

Operation mode number

347 348 349 354

Maximum motor pulse velocity

Monitor No.	Monitor name	Unit
355	Monitor resolution	pulse/rev, pulse/m
356	Digital velocity sensitivity	digit/rps, digit/mps
357	Maximum velocity	Axis command unit/sec
358	Z-phase signal pulse interval	pulse/rev, pulse/m
360	Load ratio	x 1/100
361	Velocity ratio gain	x 1/100
363	Velocity command value (digital)	1/16 digit
364	Post-filter velocity command value (digital)	1/16 digit
365	Present velocity value	1/16 digit
366	Present post-filter velocity value	1/16 digit
367	Velocity deviation (digital)	1/16 digit
368	Current command value (D/A)	digit
369	Present current value (A/D)	digit
370	Present command unit value	Axis command unit
371	Command unit deviation	Axis command unit
372	Present velocity value DC	1/16 digit
373	Motor linear coordinate command second-order differential value	pulse/∆T ²
374	Acceleration feed forward command value	digit
375	Position control bandwidth	Hz
376	Velocity control bandwidth	Hz
377	Position settling width	pulse
384	Motor linear coordinate current value after filtering	pulse
390	Motor linear coordinate command differential value	pulse/∆T
391	Present motor linear coordinate differential value	pulse/∆T
392	Pre-filter current square duty	digit
393	Post-filter current square duty	digit
396	Driver code	None
398	Motor code	None
399	Time after power ON [msec]	msec

Monitor detail

STD1

300 Currently under operation

Unit: None

Indicates that an operation is being performed.

301 Axis is under operation

Unit: None

Indicates that an axis operation is being performed.

302 Error status

Unit: None Indicates the error status.

303 Alarm status

Unit: None Indicates the alarm status.

304 Driver ready

Unit: None Indicates that the driver is ready.

305 Servo ready

Unit: None Indicates that the servo is ready.

310 Display of program number under execution

Unit: None

Indicates the program number during execution or after execution.

317 Completion of homing status display

Unit: None

Indicates whether a homing operation has been completed after the power is turned on.

318 Homing operation: The measured value

Unit: pulse

Indicates the distance between the neighboring signal and origin that is measured during homing operation.

320 Pulse position command value

Unit: pulse

Displays the pulse position command value.

321 Pulse position current value

Unit: pulse

Displays the current pulse position value.

322 Pulse position deviation

Unit: pulse

Displays the pulse position deviation.

323 Command unit command value

Unit: Axis command unit Displays the command unit command value.

324 Scaling data (command unit side)

Unit: Axis command unit

Displays the axis scaling data (command unit side) that is actually used.

325 Scaling data (pulse side)

Unit: pulse

Displays the axis scaling data (pulse side) that is actually used.

328 Position settling status

Unit: None

Indicates that the axis position deviation is within the specified range.

335 Interface ready

Unit: None Indicates that the PLC interface is ready.

337 Overload status

Unit: None Displays the overload status.

338 Zero signal status

Unit: None Displays the zero signal status.

339 Sensor group signal status

Unit: None

Displays the sensor group signal status. Each bit in binary notation corresponds as follows:

- bit0: (Reserved)
- bit1: (Reserved)
- bit2: (Reserved)
- bit3: (Reserved)
- bit4: ORG Origin neighboring signal
- bit5: OTU + direction hardware over-travel signal
- bit6: OTD direction hardware over-travel signal
- bit7: (Reserved)

340 Excessive position deviation status

Unit: None

Displays the excessive position deviation status.

341 Excessive velocity status

Unit: None

Displays the excessive velocity status.

342 Braking OFF

Unit: None Indicates that the brake signal is OFF.

343 Position control integral main switch status

Unit: None

Displays the position control integral main switch status (0: OFF-disable, 1: ON-enable).

345 Error code (main)

Unit: None Displays the error code (main code).

346 Error code (sub)

Unit: None Displays the error code (subcode).

347 Operation mode number

Unit: None

Indicates the operation mode number during or after operation.

348 Multi-channel communication status

Unit: None

Indicates that the multi-channel communication status has been set.

- 0: Single channel communication status
- 1: multi-channel communication status

349 Multi-channel communication slave code

Unit: None

Indicates the slave station (self-station) code in multi-channel communication.

354 Maximum motor pulse velocity

Unit: pulse/sec

Displays the maximum velocity defined for the motor/driver.

355 Monitor resolution

Unit: pulse/rev, pulse/m Displays the monitor resolution.

356 Digital velocity sensitivity

Unit: digit/rps, digit/mps Displays the digital velocity sensitivity.

357 Maximum velocity

Unit: Axis command unit/sec

This parameter is defined by the smaller value of the maximum velocity [axis command unit/sec] set by the user and the maximum velocity [axis command unit/sec] converted from the maximum velocity [rps, mps] set by the motor and driver. The position command velocity is restricted by this value. In addition, for trapezoidal (constant acceleration/deceleration) move, the inclination of acceleration/deceleration is calculated from the acceleration/deceleration time parameter, feed velocity parameter in operation mode, and this parameter value.

358 Z-phase signal pulse interval

Unit: pulse/rev, pulse/m Displays the Z-phase signal pulse interval.

360 Load ratio

Unit: x 1/100 Displays the load inertia/self-inertia and load mass/self-mass.
361 Velocity ratio gain

Unit: x 1/100

Displays the velocity loop ratio gain.

363 Velocity command value (digital)

Unit: 1/16 digit

Displays the velocity command value when controlling the digital velocity. (1msec sample)

364 Post-filter velocity command value (digital)

Unit: 1/16 digit

Displays the post-filter velocity command value when controlling the digital velocity. (1msec sample)

365 Present velocity current value

Unit: 1/16 digit

Displays the present velocity value. (1msec sample)

366 Present post-filter velocity value

Unit: 1/16 digit

Displays the present post-filter velocity value. (1msec sample)

367 Velocity deviation (digital)

Unit: 1/16 digit Displays the velocity deviation. (1msec sample)

368 Current command value (D/A)

Unit: digit

Displays the current command value D/A output value. The conversion rate is as follows: 1 digit = 0.0036%

 27853 digits:
 +100%

 0 digits:
 0%

 -27853 digits:
 -100%

369 Present current value (A/D)

Unit: digit

Displays the A/D input value of the present current command value.(1msec sample) The conversion rate is as follows: 1 digit = 0.0036%

 27840digits:
 +100%

 0 digits:
 0%

 -27840 digits:
 -100%

370 Present command unit value

Unit: Axis command unit

Displays the present command unit value.

371 Command unit deviation

Unit: Axis command unit Displays the command unit deviation.

372 Present velocity value DC

Unit: 1/16 digit

Displays the present velocity value DC. (10msec sample)

373 Motor linear coordinate command second-order differential value

Unit: pulse/ ΔT^2

Displays the second-order differential value of the motor linear coordinate command value (example: 2 msec).

374 Acceleration feed forward command value

Unit: digit

Displays the acceleration feed command value.

375 Position control bandwidth

Unit: Hz

Displays the position control bandwidth.

376 Velocity control bandwidth

Unit: Hz

Displays the velocity control bandwidth.

377 Position settling width

Unit: pulse

Displays the position settling width.

384 Motor linear coordinate current value after filtering

Unit: pulse

Displays the eccentricity-compensated motor linear coordinate current value after position current value filter processing.

390 Motor linear coordinate command differential value

Unit: pulse/ ΔT

Displays the differential value of the motor linear coordinate command value. (2msec sample)

391 Present motor linear coordinate differential value

Unit: pulse/ ΔT

Displays the differential value of the present motor linear coordinate value. (2msec sample)

392 Pre-filter current square duty

Unit: digit

Displays the pre-filter current square duty (decimal point 15 bits).

393 Post-filter current square duty

Unit: digit

Displays the post-filter current square duty (decimal point 15 bits)

396 Driver code

Unit: None Displays the driver code.

398 Motor code

Unit: None Displays the motor code.

399 Time after power ON [msec]

Unit: msec Indicates the time after the power has been turned on.

Error/Alarm List

Error No.	Name	Туре
1	Memory error	[KIND_POR] Start-up e
2	Interface board error	[KIND_POR] Start-up e
3	Battery alarm	[KIND_ELS] Others
4	Watchdog error	[KIND_SYS] System e
5	Kernel error	[KIND_SYS] System e
10	Data sum error	[KIND_POR] Start-up e
11	Data error	[KIND_POR] Start-up e
15	Encoder error	[KIND_SYS] System e
16	Coordinate error A	[KIND_SYS] System e
17	Coordinate error B	[KIND_ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
18	Monitor pulse output error	[KIND_SYS] System e
19	Slave drive error	[KIND_RGR] Always e
20	Power module error	[KIND_RGR] Always e
21	AC power error	[KIND_SRV] Servo err
22	Over load	[KIND_RGR] Always e
23	Excessive position deviation	[KIND_SRV] Servo erro
24	Over speed	[KIND_RGR] Always e
30	Servo not ready	[KIND_ERR] error
31	Excessive position command differential value	[KIND_ERR] error
42	+ direction hardware over-travel	[KIND_ERR] error
43	- direction hardware over-travel	[KIND_ERR] error
44	+ direction software over-travel	[KIND_ERR] error
45	- direction software over-travel	[KIND_ERR] error
46	Emergency stop	[KIND RGR] Always e
49	Homing error	[KIND_ERRALM1]
		Error/operation alarm
50	Cannot execute	[KIND ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
51	Data not ready	[KIND_ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
52	Timeout	[KIND ERRALM1]
		Error/operation alarm
53	Cannot calculate	[KIND ERRALM1]
		Error/operation alarm
60	Cannot interpret	[KIND ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
61	Command format error	[KIND ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
62	Data is out of range	[KIND ERRALM2]
	-	Error/operation alarm
63	Operation error	[KIND ALM] Operation
65	Illegal parameter and monitor number	[KIND_ERRALM2]
		Error/operation alarm
66	Illegal device	[KIND ALM] Operation
67	Write protected	[KIND_ERRALM2]
	•	Error/operation alarm
80	No such command	[KIND ALM] Operation
81	Not registered	[KIND ALM] Operation
82	Out of memory	[KIND ALM] Operation
85	Device conflict	[KIND ALM] Operation

STD1

Tvpe	Measures
Start-up error	ITYPE PORI Do not start up.
Start-up error	TYPE PORI Do not start up.
Others	[TYPE_FLS] Others
System error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
System error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
Start-up error	[TYPE_POR] Do not start up
Start up orror	[TYPE_POP] Do not start up.
Start-up error	
System error	
	[TVDE_E2] Stop decoloration
System error	
Always error	[TYPE_SRV] Servo OFF
Always error	[TYPE_SRV] Servo OFF
Servo error	[TYPE_SRV] Servo OFF
Always error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
Servo error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
Always error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
error	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
error	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
error	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
Always error	[TYPE_ELS] Others
ALM1]	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
ALM2]	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
ALM2]	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
ALM1]	[TYPE E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
ALM11	[TYPE E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
ALM21	[TYPE E2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	[····]
AI M21	[TYPE_F2] Stop deceleration.
on alarm	
AI M21	[TYPE E2] Stop deceleration
on alarm	
Operation alarm	[TVPE_E2] Stop deceleration
	[TVPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
n alarm	
	ITVDE E21 Stop decoloration
	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
Operation alarm	
	$[1YPE_E2]$ Stop deceleration.
Operation alarm	[IYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.
Operation alarm	[IYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.

Error	Alarm Details					
Error number	1	Memoi	y error			
			-	Lonç	g:	メモリエラー
						MemoryError
Error type:	[KIND_POR] Start	t-up error		Shor	t:	メモリエラー
Measures:	[TYPE_POR] Do r	not start up).			MemoryErr
Main cause:	An error is detected	d during m	nemory check wi	hen the power is turne	ed or	n.
	[Subcode]		-			
	1: CPU bui	lt-in ROM	1 sum error			
	2: RAM er	ror				
A ation to talea.	3: Flash RC	JM sum e	rror			
Action to take:	Contact us.					
Error number	2	Interfa	ce board erro	r		
				Long	j :	インタフェースホ゛ート゛ェラー
						InterfaceBoardError
Error type:	[KIND_POR] Start	t-up error		Shor	rt:	IFB エラー
Measures:	[TYPE_POR] Do r	not start up).			IFB_Err
Main cause:	Failed to initialize	the interfa	ce board.			
Action to take:	Contact us.					
Error number	3	Battery	/ alarm			
				Long	j :	ハ゛ッテリアラーム
						BatteryAlarm
Error type:	[KIND_ELS] Othe	rs		Shor	rt:	ハ゛ッテリアラーム
Measures:	[TYPE_ELS] Othe	rs				BatteryAlm
Main cause:	Battery voltage for	memory b	backup is low.			
Action to take:	Replace with a new	v lithium b	attery.			
Error number	4	Watch	dog error			
			-	Long	j :	ウォッチト゛ック゛エラー
						WatchdogError
Error type:	[KIND_SYS] Syste	em error		Shor	t:	ウォッチト゛ック゛
Measures:	[TYPE_ELS] Othe	rs				Watchdog
Main cause:	A watchdog timer	error occu	rred. The driver	will be set in the reset	t sta	tus.
Action to take:	Contact us.					

Error number	5	Kernel error		
			Long:	カーネルエラー KernelError
Error type:	[KIND SYS] Syste	m error	Short:	カーネルエラー
Measures:	[TYPE ELS] Other	S		KernelErr
Main cause:	An error that should	have not occurred in drive	er software has occurred	
	[Subcode]			
	1: Axis oper	ation handshake error		
	2: System p	rogram error		
Action to take:	Contact us.	-		
Error number	10	Data sum orror		
	10	Data Sulli el Ol	l ong	テ、ータサムエラー
			Long.	DataSumError
Error type:	[KIND PORI Start.	un error	Short:	データサムエラー
Measures:	[TVPE_POR] Do n	ap circi	onort.	DataSumErr
Main cause:	Destroyed data was	detected during data check	when the nower was tu	rned on
widin eduse.	[Subcode]	detected during data cheek	when the power was ta	
	1. Paramete	r file		
	2: Parts data	i file		
	3. Program	file		
	4 [·] Index cor	rection file		
	5° I/O logic	setting file		
	6: Index file	Type B		
	7: Absolute	accuracy compensation file	e	
Action to take:	Perform the Reset A	Il operation, and download	l all backup data.	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	
Error number	11	Data error		~` h_~
			Long:	
F (Oh e ste	
Error type:	[KIND_POR] Start-	up error	Short:	r -y17-
Measures:	[TYPE_POR] Do no	ot start up.		
Main cause:	Data that cannot be	processed was detected wh	en the power was turned	l on.
	[Subcode]	1 1 1 . 1	1	
	1: Basic dat	a and adjustment data prob	lem	
A	2: Servo coi	istant problem		
Action to take:	Contact us.			
Error number	15	Encoder error		
			Long:	1/1-4 I7-
F .			~	
Error type:	[KIND_SYS] Syste	m error	Short:	
Measures:	[IYPE_SRV] Serve) UFF	1	EncoderErr
Main cause:	An encoder and reve	olver signal problem was d	etected.	
	[Subcode]			
	1: No SIGO	signal edge		
	2: No SIG1	signal edge		
	3: SIG0 sign	nal cycle problem		
	4: SIG1 sign	nal cycle problem		
Action to take:	Contact us.			

			Long:	サ゛ヒョウケイイシ゛ョウ А
				CoordinateErrorA
Error type:	[KIND_SYS] Syste	em error	Short:	サ ビョウエラー А
Measures:	[TYPE_SRV] Serv	ro OFF		CoordiErrA
Main cause:	An error occurred of [Subcode]	luring coordinate processing.		
	1: Eccentri	city compensation computation p	roblem	
	2: Conversi	ion problem from the command u	init to pulses	
Action to take:				
Error number	17	Coordinate error B		
			Long:	サ゛ヒョウケイイシ゛ョウ B
				CoordinateErrorB
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM2	2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	サ [*] ヒョウエラー B
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop d	eceleration.		CoordiErrB
Main cause:	An error occurred of [Subcode]	during coordinate processing.		
	1: Executed	d the process that was prohibited	in the coordinate n	on-settling status.
	2: Out of th	ne command coordinate area		
	2: Out of th 3: Executed	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i	is prohibited.	
Action to take:	2: Out of th 3: Executed	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i	is prohibited.	
Action to take:	2: Out of th 3: Executed	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i	is prohibited.	
Action to take: Error number	2: Out of th 3: Executed	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error	is prohibited.	
Action to take: Error number	2: Out of th 3: Executed	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error	is prohibited. r Long:	モニタハ゜ルスエラー
Action to take: Error number	2: Out of th 3: Executed	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error	is prohibited. r Long:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError
Action to take: Error number Error type:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys	ne command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error	is prohibited. r Long: Short:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー
Action to take: <u>Error number</u> Error type: Measures:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF	is prohibited. r Long: Short:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output.	is prohibited. r Long: Short:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output.	is prohibited. r Long: Short:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr
Action to take: <u>Error number</u> Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: <u>Error number</u>	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can	Monitor pulse output error Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output.	is prohibited. r Long: Short:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can 19	Monitor pulse output error Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output.	is prohibited. r Long: Short: Long:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr $\lambda \nu - 7$ 、ト [°] ライフ [°] エラー
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can 19	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error two OFF not be output. Slave drive error	is prohibited. r Long: Short: Long:	モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonitorPulseError モニタハ [°] ルスエラー MonPlsErr Xレーフ [°] ト [°] ライフ [°] エラー SlaveDriveError
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can 19 [KIND_RGR] Alw	a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output. Slave drive error ays error	is prohibited. r Long: Short: Long: Short:	$ξ=βn^{\circ} h Z x \bar{z} -$ MonitorPulseError $ξ=gn^{\circ} h Z x \bar{z} -$ MonPlsErr $Xν-7^{\circ} h^{\circ} \bar{z} f 7 \bar{z} \bar{z} -$ SlaveDriveError $Xν-7^{\circ} x \bar{z} -$
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can 19 [KIND_RGR] Alw [TYPE_SRV] Serv	a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error vo OFF not be output. Slave drive error ays error o OFF	is prohibited. r Long: Short: Long: Long: Short:	$ξ=βn^{\circ} h xzz \overline{p} -$ MonitorPulseError $ξ=gn^{\circ} h xzz \overline{p} -$ MonPlsErr $x \nu - 7^{\circ} \delta^{\circ} \overline{p} d7^{\circ} z\overline{p} -$ SlaveDriveError $x \nu - 7^{\circ} z\overline{p} -$ SlvDrvErr
Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause:	2: Out of th 3: Executed 18 [KIND_SYS] Sys [TYPE_SRV] Ser Monitor pulses can 19 [KIND_RGR] Alw [TYPE_SRV] Serv A tandem slave driventice 19	the command coordinate area d a process using the setting that i Monitor pulse output error stem error two OFF not be output. Slave drive error ays error to OFF ver error occurred.	is prohibited. r Long: Short: Long: Short:	$ξ=βn^{\circ} h xz \bar{z} -$ MonitorPulseError $ξ=gn^{\circ} h xz \bar{z} -$ MonPlsErr $xν - 7^{\circ} _{\tau}^{\circ} \bar{z} \bar{z} -$ SlaveDriveError $xν - 7^{\circ} z \bar{z} -$ SlvDrvErr

Error number	20	Power module error		
			Long:	ハ゜ ワーモシ゛ュールエラー
				PowerModuleError
Error type:	[KIND_RGR] Alwa	ays error	Short:	PwrMdl エラー
Measures:	[TYPE_SRV] Serv	o OFF		PwrMdlErr
Main cause:	A power module er	ror in the driver was detected.		
			\ \	
	1. Over-our	rent (over current detected 1 PM fault))	
Action to take	2. Over-eur	Tent (over-current detected, 1 1 W laut)		
Error number	21	AC power error	-	· ~ · · · · · · · · · ·
			Long:	
			Ole e ute	AC_PowerError
Error type:	[KIND_SRV] Serv		Snort:	
Main cause:	[I I PE_SKV] Selve	o OFF	e has not i	AC_FWIEII
Action to take	Verify the main pow	wer supply is not input of the input voltag		eached the fatting level.
retion to take.	verify the main po	wei suppry.		
Error number	22	Over load		
			Long:	オーハ゛ロート゛
				Overload
Error type:	[KIND_RGR] Alwa	ays error	Short:	オーハ゛ロート゛
Measures:	[TYPE_ELS] Other	rs		Overload
Main cause:	The motor use is ov	rerloaded.		
	[Subcode]	ar is overheated		
	2. The now	er module heat sink is overheated		
Action to take	2. The pow	er module heat slik is överheated.		
retion to take.				
Error number	23	Excessive position deviation		
			Long:	イチヘンサカタ゛イ
				OverPerr
Error type:	[KIND_SRV] Serv	o error	Short:	イチヘンサカタ゛イ
Measures:	[TYPE_ELS] Other	rs		OverPerr
Main cause:	The position deviat	ion was greater than the tolerance.	. 1.1	 1
Action to take:	Perform the servo a	djustment again. If an error still occurs, e	extend the	tolerance.
Error number	24	Over speed		
			Long:	ソクト゛カタ゛イ
				OverSpeed
Error type:	[KIND_RGR] Alwa	ays error	Short:	ソクト゛カタ゛イ
Measures:	[TYPE_ELS] Other	rs		OverSpeed
Main cause:	The velocity was hi	gher than the maximum velocity.		
Action to take:				

30	Servo not ready		
		Long:	サーホ、ノットレテ、イ
		5	ServoNotReadv
[KIND ERR] error		Short:	サーホ、ノットレテ、
[TYPE E2] Stop de	eceleration.		SrvNotRdv
The servo was not i	ready for the process that require	res the servo to be C	N.
Perform an error re	set operation, turn ON the serve	o, and execute again	L.
	1	, 6	
31	Excessive position comr	mand differential	value
		Lona:	イチシレイサブ゛ンチカタ゛イ
			OverDiffPcmd
[KIND ERR] error		Short:	イチシレイサブン
[TYPE_ELS] Other	rs		OverDPcmd
The position comm	and with the variation rate that	was greater than the	e maximum velocity was given
The velocity overri	de may be 100% or more. Veri	fv it	
42	+ direction hardware over	er-travel	
		Long:	+ホウコウハート゛オーハ゛トラヘ゛ル
		0	Hard OT + direction
[KIND ERR] error		Short:	— — — — +ѫウコウ Н ОТ
[TYPE ELS] Other	rs		+ Hard OT
The $+$ direction har	dware over-travel signal was de	etected while movin	$\frac{1}{2}$ g to the + direction.
Perform an error re	set operation, then move to the	- direction.	
	. ,		
43	- direction hardware ove	r-travel	
		Long:	-ホウコウハート゛オーハ゛トラヘ゛ル
			Hard_OTdirection
[KIND_ERR] error		Short:	-ホウコウ H_OT
[TYPE_ELS] Other	rs		Hard_OT
The - direction hard	lware over-travel signal was de	etected while moving	g to the - direction.
Perform an error re	set operation, then move to the	+ direction.	
44	+ direction software over	r-travel	
		Long:	+ホウコウソフトオーハ゛トラへ゛ル
			Soft_OT_+_direction
[KIND_ERR] error		Short:	+ホウコウ S_OT
[TYPE_E2] Stop de	eceleration.		+_Soft_OT
Attempted to move	to outside of the + direction ar	ea via positioning m	ove, but the command unit
command value wa	s outside of the + direction area	a.	
D C	ant an anotion. If the assumed a		is sutside of the owner means to
Perform an error re	set operation. If the command t	unit command value	is outside of the area, move to
the - direction. This	error occurs only for the linear	r coordinates.	is outside of the area, move to
	30 [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_E2] Stop de The servo was not r Perform an error res 31 [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Other The velocity overrie 42 [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Other The + direction hard Perform an error res 43 [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Other The - direction hard Perform an error res 43 [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Other The - direction hard Perform an error res 44 [KIND_ERR] error	30 Servo not ready [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration. The servo was not ready for the process that require Perform an error reset operation, turn ON the server 31 Excessive position command [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Others The position command with the variation rate that The velocity override may be 100% or more. Verified 42 + direction hardware over [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Others The + direction hardware over-travel signal was de Perform an error reset operation, then move to the 43 - direction hardware over [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Others The + direction hardware over-travel signal was de Perform an error reset operation, then move to the 43 - direction hardware over [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_ELS] Others The - direction hardware over-travel signal was de Perform an error reset operation, then move to the 44 + direction software over [KIND_ERR] error [TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration. Attempted to move to outside of the + direction are command value was outside of the + direction are command value was outside of the + direction are command value was outside of the + direction are command value was outside of the + direction are command value was outsi	30 Servo not ready Long: [KIND_ERR] error Short: [TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration. The servo was not ready for the process that requires the servo to be O Perform an error reset operation, turn ON the servo, and execute again 31 Excessive position command differential Long: [KIND_ERR] error Short: [TYPE_ELS] Others Short: The position command with the variation rate that was greater than the The velocity override may be 100% or more. Verify it. 42 + direction hardware over-travel Long: [KIND_ERR] error [KIND_ERR] error Short: [TYPE_ELS] Others The + direction hardware over-travel Long: [KIND_ERR] error [KIND_ERR] error Short: [TYPE_ELS] Others The + direction hardware over-travel signal was detected while moving Perform an error reset operation, then move to the - direction. 43 - direction software over-travel [KIND_ERR] error Short: [TYPE_ELS] Others The - direction hardware over-travel signal was detected while moving Perform an error reset operation, then move to the + direction. 44 + direction software over-travel <t< td=""></t<>

Error number	45	- direction softwar	re over-travel	
			Long:	-ホウコウソフトオーハ゛トラヘ゛ル Soft OT - direction
Error type:	[KIND ERR] error		Short:	-ホウコウ S OT
Measures:	[TYPE E2] Stop de	celeration.		- Soft OT
Main cause:	Attempted to move a	on area via positioning m	ove, but the command unit	
Action to take:	Perform an error res the + direction. This	et operation. If the comm error occurs only for the	and unit command value linear coordinates.	is outside of the area, mov
Error number	46	Emergency stop		
			Long:	ヒシ゛ョウテイシ
				EmergencyStop
Error type:	[KIND_RGR] Alwa	lys error	Short:	ヒシ゛ョウテイシ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop de	celeration.		EMG_Stop
Main cause:	An emergency stop	instruction was entered.		
Action to take:	Reset the error.			
Error number	49	Homing error		
		-	Long:	ケ゛ンテンフッキイシ゛ョウ
			-	OriginError
Error type:	[KIND ERRALM]	Error/operation alarm	Short:	ケンテンイショウ
Measures:	TYPE E21 Stop de	celeration.		OriginErr
Main cause:	An error occurred di	uring homing operation		5 5
	[Subcode]			
	1. Locating	fixture position problem		
Action to take:	11 20 0 mmg			
Error number	50	Cannot execute		
			Long:	シ゛ッコウフカ
				CantExec
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM2]] Error/operation alarm	Short:	シ゛ッコウフカ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop de	celeration.		CantExec
Main cause:	Cannot execute.			
	[Subcode]			
	1: Prohibite	d command		
	2: Execution	n in progress		
	3: Error stat	us		
	4. Data is be	eing used		
	5. Invalid de	ata		
	6. Access ti	ming		
	7. Driver m	nde		
	2. Involid m	ouram file		
	0. Invaria pr	verflow		
Action to take	9. mesting 0	WCI IIU W		
i ionon to take.				

	51 Data not ready		
		Long:	データノットレディ
			DataNotReady
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	デ゛ータノットレテ゛
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.		DataNotRdy
Main cause:	Data is not ready.		
	[Subcode]		
	2: Part data		
	3: Program file		
	4: Index A correction file		
	6: Index B file		
Action to take:			
Error number	52 Timeout		
		Long:	タイムアウト
			TimeOut
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM1] Error/operation alarm	Short:	タイムアウト
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop deceleration.		TimeOut
Main cause:	A timeout occurred during internal processing.		
Action to take:	Contact us.		
Error number	53 Cannot calculate		-\.11 ² \L
		Long:	
		0	
Error type:	[KIND_ERKALMI] Error/operation alarm	Short:	
Measures:	[1YPE_E2] Stop deceleration.	• . •	
Main cause:	The condition that cannot be calculated occurred durin	ig internal proce	ssing.
	[Subcode]		
	1: Auto tuning		
	a		

Error number	60	Cannot interpret		
			Long:	シレイホンヤクフカ CantInterpret
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM2	2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	シレイホンヤクフカ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop d	eceleration.		CantIntp
Main cause:	The command cann	not be interpreted.		
Action to take:				
Error number	61	Command format error		
			Long:	シレイフォーマットイシ゛ョウ
			Ole a sta	FormatError
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM.	2] Error/operation alarm	Snort:	シレイノオーマット FormatErr
Main cause:	A command format	terror occurred		Formaten
Action to take:				
Error numbor	62	Data is out of range		
Enor number	02	Data is out of range	Long	テ゛ータハソイカ゛イ
			Long.	Out ofRange
Error type:	[KIND ERRALM2	2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	デ [*] ータハンイカ [*] イ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop d	eceleration.		OutOfRange
Main cause:	The data is out of ra	ange.		
Action to take:				
Error number	63	Operation error		
			Long:	ソウサイシ゛ョウ
				OperationError
Error type:	[KIND_ALM] Ope	ration alarm	Short:	ソウサイシ゛ョウ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop d	eceleration.		OperateErr
Main cause:	An operation error	occurred.		
	1. Prohibite	ed operation in machine setting mode		
	2: Prohibite	ed operation while holding an operation		
Action to take:				
Error number	65	Illegal parameter and monitor nu	mber	
			Long:	フセイハンコンウ
				lllegalNo
Error type:	[KIND_ERRALM2	2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	フセイハ・ンコ・ウ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop de	eceleration.		IllegalNo
Main cause:	The parameter and	monitor of a non-existent number was sp	ecified.	
Action to take:				

	66	lilegal device		
			Long:	フセイデ・ハ・イスシレイ
				IllegalDevice
Error type:	[KIND_ALM] Ope	eration alarm	Short:	フセイデッバイス
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop d	eceleration.		llgDevice
Main cause:	An operation was a	ttempted using a device whos	e operation was prohi	bited.
Action to take:				
Error number	67	Write protected		
			Long:	カキコミフカ
			C C	WriteProtected
Error type:	[KIND ERRALM2	2] Error/operation alarm	Short:	カキコミフカ
Measures:	[TYPE E2] Stop d	eceleration.		WrtProtect
Main cause: Action to take:	A write access was	attempted to an area that is pr	rohibited to be written	
Error number	80	No such command		
			Long:	シレイヒソンサ゛イ
				NoSuchCommand
Error type:	[KIND_ALM] Ope	eration alarm	Short:	シレイヒソンサ゛イ
Measures:	[TYPE E2] Stop d	eceleration.		NoSuchCmd
Main cause:	A non-existent com	nmand was specified.		
Main cause: Action to take:	A non-existent com	nmand was specified.		
Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com	nmand was specified. Not registered		
Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com	nmand was specified. Not registered	Long:	トウロクミカンリョウ
Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com	nmand was specified. Not registered	Long:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope	nmand was specified. Not registered eration alarm	Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d	nmand was specified. Not registered eration alarm eceleration.	Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no	Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally.	Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no	Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally.	Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82	Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally.	Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82	Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally.	Long: Short: Long:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd ヨウリョウフ゛ソク
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82	nmand was specified. Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally. Out of memory	Long: Short: Long:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82 [KIND_ALM] Ope	Not registered reation alarm eceleration. t complete normally. Out of memory eration alarm	Long: Short: Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd ヨウリョウフ [*] ソク Out_ofMemory ヨウリョウフ [*] ソク
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Oped [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82 [KIND_ALM] Oped [TYPE E2] Stop d	Not registered eration alarm eceleration. t complete normally. Out of memory eration alarm eceleration.	Long: Short: Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd
Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause: Action to take: Error number Error type: Measures: Main cause:	A non-existent com 81 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Registration did no 82 [KIND_ALM] Ope [TYPE_E2] Stop d Insufficient memor	Not registered Peration alarm eceleration. It complete normally. Out of memory Peration alarm eceleration. Ty	Long: Short: Long: Short:	トウロクミカンリョウ NotRegistered トウロクミカン NotRegistd

Error number	85	Device conflict		
			Long:	デ゛ハ゛イスキョウコ゛ウ
				DeviceConflict
Error type:	[KIND_ALM] Ope	eration alarm	Short:	デ゛ハ゛イスキョウ
Measures:	[TYPE_E2] Stop de	eceleration.		DevConflic
Main cause:	An operation was a	ttempted by another device while	other device was	being operated.
Action to take:				